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Sunoco, Inc.,

headquartered in Philadeiphia, PR, is a leading manufacturer and marketer of petroleum and petrochemical
products. With 900,000 harrels per day of refining capacity, 4,804 retail sites selling gasoline and convenience
items, over 4,300 miles of crude oil and refined product owned and operated pipelines and 38 product
terminals, Sunoco is one of the largest independent refiner-marketers in the United States. Sunoco is a
significant manufacturer of petrochemicals with annual sales of approximately five hillion pounds, largely
chemical intermediates used in the fibers, resins and speciaities markets. Utilizing a unique, patented technology,
Sunoco also currently manufactures approximately two million tons annually of high-quality metallurgical-grade
coke for use in the steel industry.

Contents:

Financial HIGhIGOLS .......cuoiiieeiee s 1
Letter t0 SRAr€hOIABIS ... s 2
Health, Environment and Safety Report.........ccooeeeeeecceeeccccee s 5
ADOUL SUNOCO <.ttt 6
FINANCIAL SBCHION .o e 8
DireCtors and OFfiCEIS ... e, 76
Of Interest to Sunoco Shareholders ........ooooveeeee e, Inside Back Cover

Projections, estimates, business plans and other non-historical information contained in the Letter to Shareholders and elsewhere in this publication are forward-look-
ing statements. Actual future project dates, refinery utilization rates, volumes of products manufactured or sold, rates of return, income, cash flow, earnings growth,
capital spending, costs and plans could differ materially due to, for example, changes in market conditions, changes in refining, chemicals or marketing margins, crude
oil and feedstock supply, changes in operating conditions and costs, changes in law or government policy, technical difficulties and other factors discussed in more
detail in the “Forward-Looking Statements” discussion beginning on page 40. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information or future events.




Financial Highlights

(Dollars and shares in millions,

except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Operating Results

Sales and other operating revenue $25,468 $17,969 $14,299 $14,063 $14,514
Net income (loss) $605 $312 $(47) $398 $422
Net cash provided by operating activities $1,747 $1,000 $547 $779 $778
Capital program (including acquisitions) $1,263 $787 $439 $1,039 $465
Dividends paid $86 $79 $76 $82 $87

Share repurchases $568 $136 $— $393 $144

Financial Position, Year End

Total assets $8,079 $7,053 $6,441 $6,019  $5,537
Total debt $1,482 $1,601 $1,455 $1,444 $935
Shareholders’ equity $1,607 $1,556 $1,394 $1,642 $1,702
Capital employed $3,089 $3,157 $2,849 $3,086  $2,637
Per Share Data

Net income (loss) — diluted $8.08 $4.03 $(.62) $4.85 $4.82
Cash dividends on common stock $1.15* $1.025* $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Shareholders’ equity $23.18 $20.64 $18.24 $21.74  $20.06
Market price of common stock at December 31 $81.71 $51.15 $33.18 $37.34 $33.69

Other Data, Year End
Return on average capital employed

(based on net income (loss)) 21.0% 12.4% 0.9% 15.4% 18.1%
Shares outstanding 69.3 75.4 76.4 75.5 84.8
Number of employees 14,200 14,900 14,000 14,200 12,300

*The Company increased the quarterly dividend paid on common stock from $.25 per share ($1.00 per year) to $.275 per
share ($1.10 per year) for the fourth quarter of 2003 and then to $.30 per share ($1.20 per year) for the third quarter of 2004
and to $.40 per share ($1.60 per year) for the second quarter of 2005.




To Our Shareholders

2004 was an outstanding

year for Sunoco. We generated
record earnings and our share
price rose to record levels, We
had our best-ever overall
operating and Health,
Environment and Safety
performance. We grew and
upgraded our asset base while
returning significant cash to our
shareholders. We impraved our balance sheet and grew
our financial capacity.

Financially, it was our best year as an independent
refiner and marketer. Income before special items®
was $629 million ($8.40 per share), almost double
the relatively strong 2003 performance. Return on
Capital Employed™ — a key strategic and financial
metric for the Company — was a sector-leading 21.7
percent. Share price, the ultimate scorecard for our
owners, increased 60 percent for the year — on the
heels of a 54 percent increase in 2003,

The strengthening global economy in 2004
increased demand for our key products. The resulting
high refining margins allowed us to demonstrate the
earnings power of Sunoco’s refining assets at a time
when we also saw significant income contributions
from the balance of our diversified asset portfolio. I'd
like to share with you what we accomplished in 2004
and our ongoing strategy to create shareholder value.

* The Refining and Supply business led the way
with pacesetter performance combined with
record high margins. We took advantage of the
strong refining margin environment by running
our refineries at record operating rates. We set
production records, particularly for high-valued
products, and improved both the utilization and
energy efficiency of our facilities. We have made

significant reliability improvements through our
long-term program of investing in refining infra-
structure and by driving operational excellence.
These gains have been steadily accumulating
over the past several years. Since 2000, refinery
production increased by 18 million barrels,
excluding the Eagle Point refinery acquired in
2004, Over this period, we have been able to add
a b0,000 barrels-per-day “refinery within our
refineries" at little or no capital cost.

Refining and Supply results were substantially

enhanced by cost-advantaged marine time charters,
programs that expanded our crude oil mix, particularly
the use of heavily discounted high-acid crude oils,
and sales strategies that maximized product values.

All of these actions have improved the earnings
power and competitiveness of our refining system
and contributed significantly to our record 2004
refining results. We will continue to do more. We
still have unrealized potential.

While Refining and Supply led the way in 2004,
our other businesses also generated $233 million
of earnings in 2004. We expect this contribution
to grow in the years ahead.

Chemicals earned $394 million, including $70
million over the second half of the year. Despite
persistently rising feedstock costs, Chemicals
results have improved year-on-year for seven
consecutive quarters. Market fundamentals are
healthy, and a continued cyclical recovery should
lead to growth in earnings going forward.

Retail Marketing earned $68 million in 2004, an
outstanding result given the challenging retail
marketing conditions during most of the year. We
are aggressively expanding our geography and
upgrading our retail portfolio through targeted
acquisitions and divestitures. We have generated
significant proceeds from our Retail Portfolio
Management (RPM) program, divesting of selected




Sunoco sites but retaining the sales volumes
through long-term dealer or distributor contracts.
These strategic initiatives have resulted in a bigger,
stronger retail portfolio with little change in our
net investment.

Coke and Logistics, our most ratable businesses,
earned $40 million and $31 million, respectively,
and continue to offer significant value and growth
potential for the Company. In 2004, Sunoco
Logistics Partners LP. (NYSE: SXL) unit value
increased 17 percent, and annual cash distributions
increased by $0.40 per unit (20 percent).
Acquisitions and expansion capital totaled $65
million, and a successful equity offering was
completed in April 2004. In Coke, we are on
schedule to begin production at a new 550,000
tons-per-year cokemaking plant in Haverhill, Ohio
in March 2005 and construction is underway for a
joint-venture plant in Vitdria, Brazil that is expected
to be operational in 2006.

®

We view the diversity of our business portfolio as
a key strength of the Company, with each business
offering good returns and growth prospects. In
addition to realizing all we can from Refining and
Supply, a key element of our strategy is to maximize
income from the non-refining businesses to
moderate volatility in the Company’s earnings. We
expect to continue to grow the earnings power of
these non-refining businesses.

Our acquisition activity over the past two years has
been crucial to our success in 2004. The Eagle
Point refinery, the Speedway and ConocoPhillips
retail sites, and the Equistar Chemicals transaction
contributed $190 million, or 30 percent, to our
2004 income before special items. These
acquisitions, which totaled only $800 million,
have added significant earnings power to the
Company in 2004 and will have an impact going
forward. We will continue to be opportunistic and
disciplined as we pursue additional growth
across our business portfolio.

Sunoco 2004 Highlights

* Income before special items™ a record $629 million, or
$8.40 per diluted share

» Sector-leading Return on Capital Employed of 21.7
percent (based on income before special items)**

» Share price increase of 60 percent, reaching new
record highs

* Best overall operating and Health, Environment and
Safety performance

» From 2000 to 2004, refinery production up 18 million
barrels, excluding Eagle Paint refinery acquisition

* Acquisitions in 2003 and 2004 contributed $190
million to 2004 income before special items

*Net income for 2004 amounted to $605 million, which includes net charges for special
items of $24 million.

**ROCE for 2004 (based on net income) was 21.0 percent.

* New 550,000 tons-per-year cokemaking facility in
Haverhill, OH scheduled to begin production in March
2005; signed contract and began construction for joint-
venture plant in Brazil

* Approximately $425 million of proceeds generated
through portfolio management and divestment activities

* Increased annual dividend from $1.20 to $1.60 per
share in 2005 after an increase from $1.10 to $1.20
per share in 2004

« Repurchased 8.0 million shares of common stock,
reducing outstanding shares by 8 percent

* Restructured outstanding debt lowering pretax interest
costs by $20 million in 2005

|
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+ We spent capital to maintain and grow our asset
base, but we have also generated significant cash
through effective portfolio management and
divestment activities. In 2004, we received
approximately $425 million from sales of assets
that will have a minimal impact on future earnings.
We will continue to evaluate our portfolio for other
assets that might appropriately be monetized.

During 2004, we restructured our debt and
expanded our liquidity. We refinanced over $500
million of high-coupon debt which will result in
pretax interest savings of approximately $20 million
in 2005. We increased our revolving credit facility
from $785 million to $900 million and lengthened
the term to five years. We ended the year with a
net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined in our revolving
credit agreement) of 37 percent, an improvement
from prior-year levels. Our investment-grade credit
rating is very important to us, and we will continue
to maintain our conservative balance sheet.

+ In addition to growing the Company, we also
continued to return significant cash to our
shareholders. We increased our dividend by 33
percent for the second quarter of 2005 after a ©
percent increase for the third quarter of 2004. We
repurchased 8.0 million shares ($568 million) of
our common stock during 2004. Over the past five
years, we have repurchased 26.8 million shares
($1.2 billion) and reduced shares outstanding
by 23 percent. We are unique among our peers
in returning excess free cash to you. Our share
repurchase is an investment in Sunoco. It is our
way of giving long-term shareholders an increasing
share of a growing and improving Sunoco. Returning
cash to our shareholders has been, and will
continue to be, a core element of our strategy
to increase shareholder value.

-We are absolutely committed to increasing value for
our shareholders. We have consistently improved our
operating performance and have made sustainable
progress in getting more from existing assets. We are
very careful not to overspend in our basic commodity

businesses. We have profitably grown each of our
businesses. We have increased our dividend and
significantly reduced shares outstanding. We have
maintained a healthy balance sheet and good financial
capacity through both strong and weak business markets.

We will continue to follow the same course that has
brought us to this point. The markets in which we
operate, particularly refining and chemicals, look very
good but we have a healthy respect for the volatility
and unpredictability of many of the underlying
fundamentals. We must, and will, continue to incorporate
that thinking into our strategies and actions.

Ultimately, our success comes primarily from the
good efforts of our capable Sunoco workforce. These
very talented and dedicated people have delivered the
results and form the real foundation of our success
and my optimism for our future.

We continue to benefit from the guidance and counsel
of our Board of Directors. They have been questioning,
constructive and supportive when appropriate. This
year, | offer a special thanks to Bob Kennedy and
Norm Matthews who will be retiring from our Board
after 10 and 6 years, respectively, of service to
Sunoco. They have had an impact, and they will

be missed.

The Company’s value and prospects have never been
better. All of our efforts are aimed at delivering results
that will continue to grow Sunoco’s value for years to
come.

Ao s Ytid

JOHN G. DROSDICK
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and President




Health, Environment and Safety Report

Each year, aggressive targets are established by the business units for improvement in key health,
environment, and safety (HES) performance elements. These include, but are not limited to, the

safety of employees and contractors working in our facilities and the reduction of releases into the
environment, whether into the air or water around our facilities or our distribution system. In addition,
each year capital is invested in our facilities to improve processing and handling that will result in cleaner
products and reduced emissions. The pursuit of excellence in the management of heath, environment,
and safety performance within the Company is fundamental to our success and a responsibility that we
take seriously.

During 2004, Sunoco's HES performance continued to improve when compared to prior years and in
some particular areas the improvement was notable.

Some highlights include:

* The Refining and Supply and Chemicals business
units both had “best in history” employee safety
recordable rates at 0.52 and 0.59, respectively,
representing less than one injury for every one
hundred employees thraughout the plants.

¢ Contractors working in Sunoco refineries had their

safest year ever with a recordable rate of 0.43.

» A substantial reduction in the number of air and
water permit exceedences at operating plants was
achieved.

* The management systems at three refineries were
reviewed and a recommendation for Responsible
Care 14001 certification was made by an
independent auditor.

* The Retail Marketing business unit achieved its
second consecutive year without a Class 1 or 2
(greater than 10 barrels) product spill.

« While the number of spill incidents at refineries
and chemical plants increased, over 99 percent of
the product released was recovered.

 The installation of new processing units at four
of our refineries for the production of low-sulfur
gasoline progressed with completion expected in
2005. '

» Sun Coke’s new plant at Haverhill, Ohio will use the
Company’s proprietary low-emission process that is
recognized by the EPA as the industry’s Maximum
Achievable Control Technology (MACT).

¢ Sunoco was recognized by the Roberts
Environmental Center of Claremont McKenna
College as a leader in corporate environmental and
sustainability reporting.

Sunoco is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen in the communities in which our
businesses operate. Our complete 2004 Health, Environment, & Safety Review and CERES Report will
be published in May 2005.
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Sunoco operates five business units that compete
in three primary market segments — as a leading
independent U.S. refiner/marketer of petroleum
products; as a significant manufacturer of targeted,
high-growth petrochemicals and as a unigue
technologically-advantaged manufacturer of

coke for use in the steel industry.

Refining and Supply

The Refining and Supply business manufactures refined products (primarily gasoline, diesel, jet fuel
and residual fuels) and commodity petrochemicals. The Refining and Supply business consists of
Northeast Refining (comprised of the Philadelphia and Marcus Hook, PA refineries and the Eagle
Point refinery in Westville, NJ) and MidContinent Refining (comprised of refineries in Toledo, OH
and Tulsa, OK). With a combined 900,000 barrels per day of crude oil processing capacity,
Sunoco’s Refining and Supply business has the capacity to annually produce approximately
335 million barrels of refined products. The focus of this business is to operate safe, reliable
and environmentally sound facilities at an industry pacesetter level of efficiency and optimization.

Retail Marketing

The Retail Marketing business is comprised of over 4800 gasoline outlets, including over 750 convenience
stores, located in 24 states. With over five billion gallons of gasoline and diesel fuel and $700 million of
merchandise sales per year, Sunoco is a major retailer and recognized brand in the sale of transportation fuels
and convenience store items. The primary focus in this business unit is to continue to increase sales volumes
and profitability in each of the business channels through aggressive management of existing assets,
strengthening of the Sunoco® and APlus® brands, selective capital investment and opportunistic acquisitions.




Chemicals

The Chemicals business manufactures, distributes and markets refinery-based petrochemicals
used in the fibers, resins and specialties markets. Key products include polypropylene, phenol
and bisphenol-A used in many consumer and industrial products. With production at nine plants
and annual sales of approximately five billion pounds, Sunoco Chemicals is a major force in its
markets. The primary focus of Sunoco Chemicals is to fully capture the improvements built
into the business through safe and reliable operations while continuing to pursue organic
and external growth opportunities to further enhance the earnings power of the business.

Logistics

Sunoco’s Logistics business operates refined product and crude oil pipelines and terminals and
conducts crude oil acquisition and marketing activities primarily in the Northeast, Midwest and
South Central regions of the United States. Sunoco’s interests consist largely of its 62.6 percent
ownership and general partner interests in Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. (NYSE: SXL), a publicly
traded master limited partnership. Sunoco Logistics Partners aims to grow distributable cash flow
through internal growth and acquisitions.

Sun Coke Company manufactures high-quality coke for use in the production of blast furnace
steel. From facilities in East Chicago, IN and Vansant, VA, annual production is approximately two
million tons, representing over 15 percent of total U.S. coke production. Additionally, a 550,000
tons-per-year facility in Haverhill, OH will become operational in March 2005 and a 1.6 million
metric tons-per-year facility in Vitéria, Brazil, in which Sun Coke'will have a minority joint-venture
interest, will begin operations in 2006. With a proven, proprietary technology, this business is expected
to pursue opportunities for additional coke plants in both the domestic and international markets.

Hl



Selected Financial Data

{Millions of Dollars or Shares, Except Per Share Amounts) 2004 2003~ 2002 2001 2000
Statement of Income Data:
Sales and other operating revenue (including consumer excise
taxes) $25,468 $17,969 $14,299 $14,063 $14514
Income (loss) from continuing operations™™ $605 $312 $(47) $398 $411
Income from discontinued operations $— $— $— $— $11=
Net income (loss) $605 $312 $(47) $398 $422
Per Share Data:
[ncome (loss) from continuing operations:
Basic $8.16 $4.07 $(.62) $4.92 $4.72
Diluted $8.08 $4.03 $(.62) $4.85 $4.70
Net income (loss):
Basic $8.16 $4.07 $(.62) $4.92 $4.85
Diluted $8.08 $4.03 $(.62) $4.85 $4.82
Cash dividends on common stock $1.15t $1.025¢ $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $405 $431 $390 $42 $239
Total assets $8,079 $7.053 $6,441 $6,019 $5,537
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term dabt $103 $103 $2 $302 $2
Long-term debt $1,379 $1,498 $1,453 $1,142 $933
Shareholders’ equity $1,607 $1,556 $1,394 $1,642 $1,702
Outstanding shares of common stock 69.3 754 76.4 755 84.8
Shareholders’ equity per outstanding share $23.18 $20.64 $18.24 $21.74 $20.06

* Restated to reflect the conselidation of the Epsilon Products Company, LLC polypropylene joint venture, effective January 1, 2003, in connection with the adoption of FASB

Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” in the first quarter of 2004. (Seg Note 1 to the consalidated financial statements.)

“* Includes after-tax gains on income tax settlements totaling $18, $21 and $117 million in 2004, 2001 and 2000, respectively, an after-tax gain on settlement of insurance
litigation totaling $5 million in 2000, an after-tax gain assaciated with a retail marketing divestment program in the Midwest totaling $9 million in 2003, after-tax provisions for

asset write-downs and other matters totaling $8, $32, $22, $1 and $147 million in 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and an after-tax ioss from early

extinguishment of debt totaling $34 million in 2004. (See Notes 2, 3, 4 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements. )
*** Consists of a favarable adjustment to the 1996 gain on divestment of discontinued international cil and gas production operations.

1 The Company increased the quarterly dividend paid on common stock from $.25 per share ($1.00 per year) to $.275 per share ($1.10 per year) for the fourth quarter of 2003 and
then to $.30 per share ($1.20 per year) for the third quarter of 2004 and to $.40 per share ($1.60 per year) for the second quarter of 2005.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is management’s analysis of the financial performance of
Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively, “Sunoco” or the “Company”) and of significant trends
that may affect its future performance. It should be read in conjunction with Sunoco’s consolidated
financial statements and related notes. Those statements in Management's Discussion and Analy-
sis that are not historical in nature should be deemed forward-looking statements that are in-
herently uncertain. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 40 for a discussion of the factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected.

Overview

Sunoco’s profitability is primarily determined by refined product and chemical margins and
the reliability and efficiency of its operations. The volatility of crude oil, refined product
and chemical prices and the overall supply/demand balance for these commodities have
had, and should continue to have, a significant impact on margins and the financial results
of the Company.

During the first nine months of 2002, refined product margins in Sunoco’s principal refin-
ing centers in the Northeast and Midwest were weak due to high industry inventory levels,
rising crude oil prices, a higher level of gasoline imports from Europe and warmer winter
weather in early 2002. In the latter part of 2002, refining margins began to improve, and
throughout most of 2003 and 2004 were very strong, benefiting from low industry refined
product inventory levels, colder winter weather in early 2003, stringent fuel specifications
in 2004 related to sulfur reductions in gasoline and MTBE-related product changes, and
strong refined product demand as a result of an improving U.S. and global economy.
Chemical margins for most products were weak during most of 2002 as a result of an over-
supplied marketplace. In the latter part of 2002, chemical margins began to strengthen in
response to price increases due to phenol supply disruptions in the United States and an
improvement in product demand. This improvement continued during 2003 and 2004 as
chemical prices continued to rise and product demand strengthened further as a result of
the improving U.S. and global economy.

In 2005, the Company believes refined product margins will be lower than the very high
levels achieved in 2004 but should remain above historical averages, primarily due to
strong global product demand and the more stringent fuel specifications. These factors are
expected to keep the supply/demand balance tight. In addition, the Company believes
chemical margins and volumes will remain strong in 2005 assuming economic strength in
the U.S. and the rest of the world continues to favorably impact global demand. However,
the absolute level of refined product and chemical margins is difficult to predict as they are
influenced by these and other extremely volatile factors in the global marketplace, includ-
ing the effects of weather conditions on product supply and demand.

The Company’s future operating results and capital spending plans will also be impacted by
environmental matters (see “Environmental Matters” below).

Strategic Actions |

Sunoco is committed to improving its performance and enhancing its shareholder value
while, at the same time, maintaining its financial strength and flexibility by continuing to:

® Deliver excellence in health and safety and environmental compliance;

® Increase reliability and realize additional operational improvements from existing assets
in each of the Company’s businesses;

¢ Prudently manage expenses and capital spending;



¢ Diversify, upgrade and grow the Company’s asset base through strategic acquisitions
and investments;

¢ Divest assets that do not meet the Company’s return-on-investment criteria;
¢ Optimize the Company’s capital structure; and

® Return cash to the Company’s shareholders through the payment of cash dividends and
the purchase of Company common stock.

During the 2003-2004 period, Sunoco has undertaken the following initiatives as part of
this strategy:

e Effective March 31, 2003, the Company invested $198 million to secure a favorable
long-term supply of propylene for its Gulf Coast polypropylene business through the
formation of a limited partnership with Equistar Chemicals, L.P. (“Equistar”) and to
increase its polypropylene capacity through the acquisition of Equistar’s polypropylene
facility in Bayport, TX. Equistar’s income contribution amounted to $27 and $14 mil-
lion after tax in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

* During the second quarter of 2003, Sunoco completed the $162 million purchase from
a subsidiary of Marathon Ashland Petroleum LLC (“Marathon”) of 193 Speedway®
retail gasoline sites located primarily in Florida and South Carolina. The income con-
tribution from these sites amounted to $13 and $7 million after tax in 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

¢ In October 2003, Sun Coke entered into an agreement to supply International Steel
Group with 550 thousand tons-per-year of coke from Sun Coke’s new $146 million
cokemaking facility in Haverhill, OH, which is expected to be operational in March
2005.

® During 2003, the Company accelerated its Retail Portfolio Management program to
selectively reduce its invested capital in Company-owned or leased sites, while retain-
ing most of the gasoline sales volumes attributable to the divested sites. Through year-
end 2004, 241 sites have been divested, with most of the sites converted to contract
dealers or distributors, generating $120 million of divestment proceeds. The Company
expects to generate approximately $50 million of additional proceeds in 2005 under
this program through the divestment/conversion of an additional 100 sites.

¢ During the fourth quarter of 2003, Sunoco substantially completed a program to sell its
interest in certain retail sites in Michigan and the southern Ohio markets of Colum-
bus, Dayton and Cincinnati, generating $46 million of cash proceeds.

® In January 2004, Sunoco completed the acquisition from El Paso Corporation of the
150 thousand barrels-per-day Eagle Point refinery and related assets located near the
Company’s existing Northeast Refining operations for $250 million, including in-
ventory. The income contribution from the Eagle Point refinery amounted to $135
million after tax in 2004.

® In January 2004, the Company completed the sale of its plasticizer business to BASF,
generating approximately $90 million of cash proceeds.

¢ In April 2004, Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. (the “Partnership”), the master limited
partnership that is 62.6 percent owned by Sunoco, issued 3.4 million limited partner-
ship units, generating $129 million of net proceeds. Coincident with the offering, the
Partnership redeemed 2.2 million limited partnership units owned by Sunoco for $83
million.




¢ In April 2004, Sunoco completed the $181 million purchase from ConocoPhillips of
340 Mobil® retail outlets located primarily in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia and Wash-

ington, D.C. The income contribution from these sites amounted to $15 million after
tax in 2004.

¢ During the second quarter of 2004, Sunoco sold its private label consumer and commer-
cial credit card business and related accounts receivable to Citibank, generating $100
million of cash proceeds.

* In August 2004, Sun Coke entered into an agreement with two major steel companies
with respect to a 1.6 million metric tons-per-year cokemaking facility and associated
cogeneration power plant in Vitéria, Brazil with an estimated cost of $350-$400 mil-
lion, which is expected to be operational in 2006. Sun Coke will operate the cokemak-
ing facility and will have an initial 1 percent ownership interest in this venture and an
option to purchase, at net book value, an additional 19 percent interest.

¢ In September 2004, Sunoco completed the sale of its one-third interest in the Belvieu
Environmental Fuels (“BEF”) MTBE production facility to Enterprise Products Operat-
ing L.P., generating $15 million of cash proceeds.

* In 2004, Sunoco completed a debt restructuring, which reduced its outstanding debt by
approximately $100 million and lowered its weighted average interest rate. Pretax
interest expense is expected to decline approximately $20 million in 2005 as a result of
the debt restructuring.

® Effective in the second quarter of 2005, Sunoco increased the quarterly dividend paid on
common stock to $.40 per share ($1.60 per year), following increases from $.275 per
share to $.30 per share in the third quarter of 2004 and from $.25 per share to $.275 per
share in the fourth quarter of 2003.

® During 2004 and 2003, the Company repurchased 8.0 and 2.9 million shares of its out-
standing common stock for $568 and $136 million, respectively. In September 2004,
the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved an increase of $500 mil-
lion to the share repurchase authorization. At December 31, 2004, the Company had a
remaining authorization from its Board to purchase up to $227 million of Company
common stock. In March 2005, an additional $500 million authorization was ap-
proved. Sunoco expects to continue to purchase Company common stock in the open
market from time to time depending on prevailing market conditions and available
cash.

For additional information regarding the above actions, see Notes 2,3,11,13 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations
Eamings Profile of Sunoco Businesses (after tax)

(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Refining and Supply $541 $261 $(31)
Retail Marketing 68 91 20
Chemicals 94 53 28
Logistics 31 26 33
Coke 40 43 42
Corporate and Other:
Corporate expenses (67) (40) (26)
Nat financing expenses and other (78) (99) (91)
[ncome tax settlement 18 — —
Midwest marketing divestment program —_ 9 —
Asset write-downs and other matters (8) (32) (22)
Debt restructuring (34) — —
Consolidated net income (loss) $605 $312 $(47)

Analysis of Eamings Profile of Sunoco Businesses

In 2004, Sunoco earned $605 million, or $8.08 per share of common stock on a diluted
basis, compared to net income of $312 million, or $4.03 per share, in 2003 and a net loss of
$47 million, or $.62 per share, in 2002.

The $293 million increase in net income in 2004 was primarily due to an increase in mar-
gins in Sunoco’s Refining and Supply business ($234 million) and the income contribution
from the Eagle Point refinery acquired on January 13, 2004 ($135 million). Also con-
tributing to the improvement were higher production of refined products (315 million),
higher margins from Sunoco’s Chemicals business ($35 million), income attributable to
the Mobil® retail gasoline outlets acquired from ConocoPhillips in April 2004 ($15
million), increased income from the Speedway® sites acquired from Marathon in June
2003 ($6 million), increased earnings related to the March 2003 propylene supply agree-
ment with Equistar ($12 million), lower net financing expenses ($21 million), a gain on an
income tax settlement ($18 million) and lower provisions for asset write-downs and other
matters ($24 million). Partially offsetting these positive factors were higher expenses across
the Company ($104 million), primarily fuel, depreciation and employee-related charges,
including pension and performance-related incentive compensation; lower non-gasoline
income ($9 million); lower margins for retail gasoline ($27 million); an accrual for the
estimated liability attributable to retrospective premiums related to certain insurance poli-
cies ($10 million); the absence of gains from a retail marketing divestment program in the
Midwest ($9 million); a loss on early extinguishment of debt in connection with a debt
restructuring ($34 million); and a higher effective income tax rate ($23 million).

In 2003, the $359 million increase in net income was primarily due to significantly higher
margins in Sunoco’s Refining and Supply ($339 million), Retail Marketing ($78 million)
and Chemicals ($50 million) businesses. Also contributing to the improvement in earnings
were higher production of refined products ($13 million), $7 million of after-tax income
from the retail gasoline sites acquired from Marathon and $14 million of after-tax income
related to the propylene supply agreement with Equistar. Partially offsetting these positive
factors were higher expenses across the Company ($109 million), primarily refinery fuel
and utility costs and employee-related expenses, including pension and performance-
related incentive compensation; lower chemical sales volumes ($15 million); higher net
financing expenses ($8 million), primarily due to higher expenses attributable to the
preferential return of third-party investors in Sunoco’s cokemaking operations; and a
higher effective income tax rate ($7 million).
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Refining and Supply

The Refining and Supply business manufactures petroleum products and commodity pet-
rochemicals at its Marcus Hook, Philadelphia, Eagle Point and Toledo refineries and petro-
leum and lubricant products at its Tulsa refinery and sells these products to other Sunoco
businesses and to wholesale and industrial customers. Refining operations are comprised of

Northeast Refining (the Marcus Hock, Philadelphia and Eagle Point refineries) and Mid-

Continent Refining (the Toledo and Tulsa refineries).

2004 2003 2002
Income (loss) (mitlions of dollars) $541 $261 $(31)
Wholesale margin® (per barrel):
Total Refining and Supply $6.30 $4.76 $2.83
Northeast Refining $6.36 $4.63 $2.47
MidContinent Refining $6.12 $5.05 $3.69
Throughputs™™ (thousands of barrels daily):
Crude oil 805.7 708.1 689.9
QOther feedstocks 58.8 532 58 4
Total throughputs 814.5 761.3 748.3
Products manufactured™ (thousands of barrels daily):
Gasoling 42.0 3756 375.2
Middle distillates 300.3 236.7 231.2
Residual fuel 73.0 59.8 55.9
Petrochemicals 38.1 279 30.5
Lubricants 13.6 13.6 131
Other 82.0 77.6 734
Total production . 949.0 7912 7793
Less: Production used as fuel in refinery operations 46.2 37.1 37.0
Total production available for sale 902.8 754.1 742.3
Crude unit capacity (thousands of barrels daily) at
December 31*** 890.0 7300 730.0
Crude unit capacity utilized 97% 97% 95%
Conversion capacityt (thousands of barrels daily) at
December 31 361.7 306.7 306.7
Conversion capacity utilized 98% 98% 95%

* Wholesale sales revenue less related cost of crude oil, other feedstocks, product purchases and terminalling and transportation divided

by production available for sale.

** Data pertaining to the Eagle Point refinery are based on the amounts attributable to the 354-day ownership period {January 13, 2004 —

December 31, 2004) divided by 366 days.

*** Reflects an increase in January 2004 due to the acquisition of the 150 thousand barrels-per-day Eagle Point refinery and a 10 thousand

barrels-per-day adjustment in MidContinent Refining. In January 2005, crude unit capacity increased again to 900 thousands of
barrels daily due to an additional 10 thousand barrels-per-day adiustment in MidContinent Refining.

t Represents capacity to upgrade lower-value, heavier petroleum products into higher-value, lighter products. Reflects an increase in

January 2004 as a result of the Eagle Point refinery acquisition. in January 2005, conversion capacity increased again to 372

thousands of barrels daily due to a 5.0 thousand barrels-per-day adjusiment in Northeast Refining and a 5.3 thousand barrels-per-day

adjustment in MidContinent Refining.

The Refining and Supply segment results increased $280 million in 2004. In addition to a
$135 million income contribution from the Eagle Point refinery, the improvement was
primarily due to higher realized margins ($234 million) resulting largely from low industry
inventory levels, particularly for distillate products, and stronger product demand. Also
contributing to the increase were higher production volumes ($15 million). Partially off-
setting these positive factors were higher expenses ($76 million), including fuel, deprecia-
tion and employee-related charges and a higher effective income tax rate ($23 million).

Refining and Supply segment results increased $292 million in 2003 primarily due to sig-

nificantly higher realized margins ($339 million) and a 2 percent increase in total pro-
duction volumes ($13 million). The margin improvement resulted largely from low
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industry inventory levels, stronger product demand, the exceptionally cold winter weather
in early 2003 and industry-related operating problems in part due to an electrical power
failure in the Northeast. Partially offsetting these positive factors were higher expenses
($53 million), primarily refinery fuel and utility costs and employee-related expenses.

Effective January 13, 2004, Sunoco completed the purchase of the 150 thousand barrels-
per-day Eagle Point refinery and related assets from El Paso Corporation for $250 million,
including inventory. In connection with this transaction, Sunoco also assumed certain
environmental and other liabilities. The Eagle Point refinery is located in Westville, NJ,
near the Company’s existing Northeast refining operations. Management believes the ac-
quisition of the Eagle Point refinery complements and enhances the Company’s refining
operations in the Northeast and enables the capture of significant synergies in Northeast
Refining. The related assets acquired include certain pipeline and other logistics assets
associated with the refinery which Sunoco subsequently sold in March 2004 to Sunoco
Logistics Partners L.P., the master limited partnership that is 62.6 percent owned by Suno-
co. (See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.)

During 2002, Sunoco recorded a $2 million after-tax charge to write off certain processing
units at its Toledo refinery that were shut down as part of its decision to eliminate less effi-
cient production capacity and established a $3 million after-tax accrual relating to a law-
suit concerning the Puerto Rico refinery, which was divested in December 2001. These
amounts are reported as part of the Asset Write-Downs and Other Matters shown sepa-
rately in Corporate and Other in the Earnings Profile of Sunoco Businesses (see Note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements).

Retail Marketing

The Retail Marketing business sells gasoline and middle distillates at retail and operates
convenience stores in 24 states, primarily on the East Coast and in the Midwest region of
the United States.

2004 2003 2002
Income (millions of dollars) $68 $91 $20
Retail margin™ (per barrel):

Gasoline $4.13 $4.34 $3.14

Middle distillates $4.40 $4.73 $4.14
Sales (thousands of barrels daily):

Gasoline 296.3 276.5 262.3

Middle distillates 217 403 36.4

339.0 316.8 298.7

Retail gasoline outlets 4,804 4528 4,381

*Retail sales price less related wholesale price and terminalling and transportation costs per barrel. The retail sales price is the weighted
average price received through the various branded marketing distribution channels.

Retail Marketing segment income decreased $23 million in 2004. Excluding income from
the Mobil® and Speedway® acquired sites, the decrease in results was primarily due to a
lower average retail gasoline margin ($27 million), which was down 0.5 cents per gallon, or
5 percent, versus 2003. Also contributing to the decline were lower gasoline sales volumes
($4 million), lower distillate margins ($3 million) and lower non-gasoline income ($9
million). Partially offsetting these negative factors were income attributable to the Mobil®
sites (acquired from ConocoPhillips in April 2004) of $15 million and a $6 million in-
crease in income attributable to the Speedway® sites (acquired from Marathon Ashland
Petroleum in June 2003).

Retail marketing segment income increased $71 million in 2003 primarily due to a higher
average retail gasoline margin ($73 million), which was up 2.9 cents per gallon, or 38 per-
cent, versus 2002. Also contributing to the improvement were higher retail distillate mar-
gins ($5 million), higher gasoline and distillate sales volumes ($5 million) and $7 million




of after-tax income from the Speedway® retail sites. Partially offsetting these positive fac-
tors were higher expenses ($18 million), which were largely employee related.

During the second quarter of 2004, Sunoco sold its private label consumer and commercial
credit card business and related accounts receivable to Citibank. In connection with this
divestment, Sunoco received $100 million in cash proceeds, recognized a $2 million after-
tax gain on the divestment and established a $2 million after-tax accrual for employee
terminations and other exit costs. In addition, the two companies signed a seven-year
agreement for the operation and servicing of the Sunoco private label credit card program.

In April 2004, Sunoco completed the purchase of 340 retail outlets operated under the
Mobil® brand from ConocoPhillips for $181 million, including inventory. Of the total sites
acquired, 112 were owned outright or subject to long-term leases, with average throughput
of approximately 175 thousand gallons per month. The remaining network consisted of
contracts to supply 34 dealer-owned and operated locations and 194 branded distributor-
owned locations. These outlets, which included 31 sites that are Company-operated and
have convenience stores, are located primarily in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia and Wash-
ington, D.C. These sites are being re-branded to Sunoco® gasoline and APlus® con-
venience stores over time. In the second quarter of 2003, Sunoco completed the purchase
of 193 Speedway® retail gasoline sites from a subsidiary of Marathon Ashland Petroleum
LLC for $162 million, including inventory. The sites, which are located primarily in
Florida and South Carolina, were all Company-operated locations with convenience
stores. Of the 193 outlets, Sunoco became lessee for 54 of the sites under long-term lease
agreements. The Speedway® sites were re-branded as Sunoco® locations during the 2003-
2004 period. The Company believes these acquisitions fit its long-term strategy of building
a retail and convenience store network designed to provide attractive long-term returns.
(See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.)

A Retail Portfolio Management (“RPM”) program is ongoing, which is selectively reducing
the Company’s invested capital in Company-owned or leased sites. During the 2003-2005
period, selected sites, including some of the recently acquired Speedway® and Mobil® out-
lets, are being divested with most of the sites being converted to contract dealers and dis-
tributors. The Company expects to generate divestment proceeds of approximately $170
million, of which $120 million has been received in 2003 and 2004 related to the sale of
241 sites. Most of the gasoline sales volume attributable to the divested sites has been re-
tained within the Sunoco branded business. During 2004 and 2003, net after-tax gains to-
taling $7 and $8 million, respectively, were recognized in connection with the RPM
program. The Company expects the RPM program will generate additional gains in 2005.

In April 2003, Sunoco announced its intention to sell its interest in 190 retail sites in
Michigan and the southern Ohio markets of Columbus, Dayton and Cincinnati (“Midwest
Marketing Divestment Program”). During 2003, 75 Company-owned or leased properties
and contracts to supply 23 dealer-owned sites were divested under this program. The cash
generated from these divestments totaled $46 million, which represented substantially all
of the proceeds from the program. The remaining 92 sites, which were virtually all dealer-
owned locations, were converted to distributor outlets in 2004. During 2003, a $9 million
after-tax gain was recognized in connection with the Midwest Marketing Divestment Pro-
gram, which is reported separately in Corporate and Other in the Earnings Profile of
Sunoco Businesses. Sunoco continues to supply branded gasoline to substantially all of the
divested outlets.

Chemicals

The Chemicals business manufactures phenol and related products at chemical plants in
Philadelphia, PA and Haverhill, OH; polypropylene at facilities in LaPorte, TX, Neal, WV
and Bayport, TX; and cumene at the Philadelphia, PA refinery and the Eagle Point refin-
ery in Westville, NJ. In addition, propylene and polypropylene are produced at the Marcus
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Hook, PA Epsilon Products Company, LLC joint venture facility (“Epsilon”). This busi-
ness also distributes and markets these products. In September 2004, Sunoco sold its one-
third interest in its Mont Belvieu, TX Belvieu Environmental Fuels (“BEF”) MTBE
production facility to Enterprise Products Operating L.P. (“Enterprise”). In addition, a fa-
cility in Pasadena, TX, which produces plasticizers, was sold to BASF in January 2004,
while a facility in Neville Island, PA continues to produce plasticizers exclusively for BASF
under a three-year tolling agreement.

2004 2003 2002
Income (millions of dollars) $94 $53 $28
Margin** (cents per pound):
All products™* 11.0¢ 9.5¢ 6.3¢
Phenol and related products 9.7¢ 8.2¢ 6.6¢
Polypropylene*** 13.4¢ 11.5¢ 9.0¢
Sales (mitlions of pounds):
Phenol and related products 2,615 2,629 2,831
Polypropylenet 2,239 2,248 1,346
Plasticizerstt 28 591 615
Propylenettt — — 774
Other 187 173 178
5,069 5,641 5744

* Restated to reflect the consolidation of Epsilon, effective January 1, 2003, in connection with the adoption of FASB Interpretation No.
46 in the first quarter of 2004.

** Wholesale sales revenue less the cost of feedstocks, product purchases and related terminalling and transportation divided by sales
volumes.

*** The polypropylene and all products margins include the impact of a fong-term supply contract entered into on March 31, 2003 with
Equistar Chemicals, L.P. (“Equistar”) which is priced on a cost-based formula that includes a fixed discount (see below).

tincludes amounts attributable to the Bayport facility subsequent to its purchase effective March 31, 2003 (see betow) and the Epsilon
joint venture subsequent to its consclidation effective January 1, 2003.

1t The plasticizer business was divested in January 2004 (see below).

1t Effective with the consolidation of Epsilon beginning January 1, 2003, excludes refinery-grade propylene sold to Epsilon which is now
eliminated in consolidation.

Chemicals segment income increased $41 million in 2004 due largely to higher realized
margins for both phenol and polypropylene ($35 million) and an increased income con-
tribution associated with the March 2003 propylene supply agreement with Equistar ($12
million). Also contributing to the improvement were higher operating earnings from the
recently divested BEF joint venture chemical operations ($6 million) (see below). Partially
offsetting these positive factors were higher expenses ($9 million), largely natural gas fuel
Costs.

Chemicals segment income increased $25 million in 2003 due largely to higher margins for
both phenol and polypropylene ($50 million) and $14 million of after-tax income related
to the supply agreement with Equistar. Partially offsetting the positive variances were
higher expenses ($8 million), including natural gas fuel costs; lower sales volumes ($15
million); and lower equity income from BEF ($10 million), due to weakness in MTBE de-
mand. Also included in 2003 results were $4 million of after-tax charges primarily related
to employee terminations in connection with a productivity improvement plan.

In 2004, Sunoco sold its one-third partnership interest in BEF to Enterprise for $15 million
in cash, resulting in an $8 million after-tax loss on divestment. In connection with the
sale, Sunoco has retained one-third of any liabilities and damages exceeding $300 thou-
sand in the aggregate arising from any claims resulting from the ownership of the assets and
liabilities of BEF for the period prior to the divestment date, except for any on-site
environmental claims which are retained by Enterprise. As a result of various gov-
ernmental actions which caused a material adverse impact on MTBE industry demand, in
2003, BEF recorded a write-down of its MTBE production facility to its estimated fair value
at that time. Sunoco’s share of this provision amounted to $15 million after tax. During




2003, Sunoco also announced its decision to sell its plasticizer business and recorded a $17
million after-tax charge to write down the assets held for sale to their estimated fair values
less costs to sell and to establish accruals for employee terminations and other required exit
costs. Sunoco sold this business and related inventory in January 2004 to BASF for approx-
imately $90 million in cash. The sale included the Company’s plasticizer facility in
Pasadena, TX. The Company’s Neville Island, PA site was not part of the transaction and
continues to produce plasticizers exclusively for BASF under a three-year tolling agreement.
Sunoco also agreed to provide terminalling services at this facility to BASF for a 15-year
period. During 2002, Sunoco shut down a 200 million pounds-per-year polypropylene line
at its LaPorte, TX plant and a 170 million pounds-per-year aniline and diphenylamine
production facility in Haverhill, OH. In connection with the 2002 shutdowns, the Com-
pany recorded a $14 million after-tax provision in 2002, primarily related to the write-off
of the affected assets. All of these items are reported as part of the Asset Write-Downs and
Other Matters shown separately in Corporate and Other in the Earnings Profile of Sunoco
Businesses (see Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements).

Effective March 31, 2003, Sunoco formed a limited partnership with Equistar involving
Equistar’s ethylene facility in LaPorte, TX. Equistar is a wholly owned subsidiary of Lyon-
dell Chemical Company. In connection with this transaction, Equistar and the new part-
nership entered into a 700 million pounds-per-year, 15-year propylene supply contract
with Sunoco. Of this amount, 500 million pounds per year is priced on a cost-based for-
mula that includes a fixed discount that declines over the life of the contract, while the
remaining 200 million pounds per year is based on market prices. Sunoco also purchased
Equistar’s polypropylene facility in Bayport, TX. Sunoco paid $194 million in cash and
borrowed $4 million from the seller to form the partnership and acquire the Bayport fa-
cility. Through the new partnership, the Company believes it has secured a favorable long-
term supply of propylene for its Gulf Coast polypropylene business. Realization of these
benefits is largely dependent upon performance by Equistar, which has a credit rating be-
low investment grade. Equistar has not given any indication that it will not perform under
its contracts. In the event of nonperformance, Sunoco has collateral and certain other
contractual rights under the partnership agreement. The acquisition of the Bayport facility
has increased the Company’s polypropylene capacity, complementing and enhancing the
Company’s existing polypropylene business and strengthening its market position (see
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements).

Effective January 1, 2001, Sunoco completed the acquisition of Aristech, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation (“Mitsubishi”), for $506 million in cash and the as-
sumption of $163 million in debt. Contingent payments with a net present value as of the
acquisition date of up to $167 million (the “earn out”) may also be made if realized margins
for polypropylene and phenol exceed certain agreed-upon thresholds through 2006. As of
December 31, 2004, no such payments have been earned. Since the $167 million represents
a present value as of January 1, 2001, the actual amounts that could ultimately be paid un-
der the earn out provisions increase over time by a contract-specified 11 percent per year.
However, these contingent payments are limited to $90 million per year. Any earn out
payments would be treated as adjustments to the purchase price. In addition, Mitsubishi is
responsible for up to $100 million of any potential environmental liabilities of the business
identified through 2026 arising out of or related to the period prior to the acquisition date.

Logistics

The Logistics business operates refined product and crude oil pipelines and terminals and
conducts crude oil acquisition and marketing activities primarily in the Northeast, Mid-
west and South Central regions of the United States. In addition, the Logistics business
has an ownership interest in several refined product and crude oil pipeline joint ventures.
Logistics operations are conducted primarily through Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P., the
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master limited partnership that is 62.6 percent owned by Sunoco (see “Capital Resources
and Liquidity—Other Cash Flow Information” below).

2004 2003 2002

Income (millions of dollars) $31 $26 $33
Pipeline and terminal throughput (thousands of barrels daily)*:

Unaffiliated customers 842 827 768

Affiliated customers 1,525 1,225 1,286

2,367 2,052 2,054

*Consists of 100 percent of the throughput of pipelines and terminals owned and operated by the Partnership.

Logistics segment income increased $5 million in 2004 due to the absence of $12 million of
after-tax charges recognized in 2003 for litigation associated with two pipeline spills that
occurred in prior years. Partially offsetting the positive variance is the reduction in Sunoco’s
ownership interest in the Partnership from 75.3 percent to 62.6 percent as a result of the
April 7, 2004 public offering of 3.4 million limited partnership units and the Partnership’s
related redemption of 2.2 million limited partnership units owned by Sunoco. In 2003,
Logistics segment income decreased $7 million largely due to the litigation accruals recorded
in 2003, partially offset by increased joint-venture income associated with assets acquired in

2002 (see below).

In 2004, the Partnership completed the following acquisitions: in March, certain pipeline
and other logistics assets that had previously been acquired by Sunoco with the Eagle Point
refinery for $20 million; in April, ConocoPhillips’ Baltimore, MD and Manassas, VA re-
fined product terminals for $12 million; in June, an additional one-third interest in the
Harbor Pipeline from El Paso Corporation for $7 million; and in November, a refined
product terminal located in Columbus, OH from a subsidiary of Certified Qil Company for
$8 million. In November 2002, the Partnership completed the acquisition from an affiliate
of Union Oil Company of California (“Unocal”) of interests in three Midwestern and
Western U.S. products pipeline companies, consisting of a 31.5 percent interest in
Wolverine Pipe Line Company, a 9.2 percent interest in West Shore Pipe Line Company
and a 14.0 percent interest in Yellowstone Pipe Line Company, for $54 million. During
September 2003, the Partnership acquired an additional 3.1 percent interest in West Shore
Pipe Line Company for $4 million, increasing its ownership interest in West Shore to 12.3
percent. In November 2002, the Partnership also completed the acquisition of an owner-
ship interest in West Texas Gulf Pipeline for $6 million, which coupled with the 17.3 per-
cent interest it acquired from Sunoco on the same date, gave it a 43.8 percent ownership
interest.

During 2002, Sunoco recorded a $3 million after-tax charge to reflect the Partnership’s
write-off of a pipeline located in Pennsylvania and New York and a related refined prod-
ucts terminal that were idled because they became uneconomic to operate. This amount is
reported as part of the Asset Write-Downs and Other Matters shown separately in Corpo-
rate and Other in the Earnings Profile of Sunoco Businesses (see Note 2 to the con-
solidated financial statements).

Coke

The Coke business, through Sun Coke Company and its affiliates (individually and collec-
tively, “Sun Coke”), currently makes high-quality, blast-furnace coke at its Indiana Harbor
facility in East Chicago, IN and Jewell facility in Vansant, VA and produces metallurgical
coal from mines in Virginia primarily for use at the Jewell cokemaking facility. Additional
cokemaking facilities, which will be operated by Sun Coke, are currently under con-
struction in Haverhill, OH and Vitéria, Brazil. Sunoco will wholly own the facility in
Haverhill and have a minority joint-venture interest in the Vitdria facility.




2004 2003 2002

Income {millions of dollars) $40 $43 $42
Coke sales (thousands of tons) 1,953 2,024 2,158

Coke segment income decreased $3 million in 2004 due largely to lower tax benefits from
cokemaking operations, partially offset by a favorable litigation settlement recognized in
2004. In 2003, Coke segment income increased $1 million primarily due to higher coke
prices at Jewell and the absence of a $4 million after-tax write-off of accounts receivable
from National Steel Corporation (“National”) recognized in 2002 in connection with this
former long-term contract customer’s Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing. As part of its bank-
ruptcy proceedings, National rejected its contract with Jewell. As a result, Jewell’s 2002
coke sales were made into lower-value short-term markets. Partially offsetting these factors
in 2003 were lower tax benefits from Jewell coke operations largely due to the expiration of
tax credits for certain ovens effective January 1, 2003 (see below).

The Coke business has third-party investors in its Jewell and Indiana Harbor cokemaking
operations which are currently entitled to 98 percent of the cash flows and tax benefits
from the respective cokemaking operations during the preferential return periods, which
continue until the investors currently entitled to preferential returns recover their invest-
ments and achieve a cumulative annual after-tax return that averages approximately 10
percent. Expense is recognized to reflect the investors’ preferential returns. Such expense,
which is included in Net Financing Expenses and Other under Corporate and Other in the
Earnings Profile of Sunoco Businesses, totaled $31, $36 and $27 million after tax in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Income is recognized by the Coke business as coke production and sales generate cash
flows and tax benefits, which are allocated to Sunoco and the third-party investors. The
Coke business’ after-tax income attributable to the tax benefits, which primarily consist of
nonconventional fuel credits, was $35, $38 and $50 million after tax in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Under the current tax law, beginning in 2003, a portion of the coke
production at Jewell was no longer entitled to tax credits, which has resulted in a $6 mil-
lion after-tax decline in Coke’s annual income. In addition, under current law, the re-
mainder of the coke production at Jewell, and all of the production at Indiana Harbor, will
no longer be eligible to generate credits after 2007, which is expected to result in an addi-
tional decline in Coke’s annual income of approximately $15 million after tax. Prior to
2008, the tax credits would be phased out, on a ratable basis, if the average annual price of
domestic crude oil at the wellhead increases on an inflation-adjusted basis from $50.14 to
$62.94 per barrel (in 2003 dollars). If the annual crude oil price were to average at or
above the top of this range for any year prior to 2008, then it is estimated the correspond-
ing reduction in Coke’s after-tax income would approximate $15 million for such vyear.
The above estimates incorporate increased coke prices resulting from any such phase out,
as provided for in the coke purchase agreement with Ispat Inland Inc. (“Ispat”) with re-
spect to the Indiana Harbor East Chicago plant. The Company also could be required to
make cash payments to the third-party investors if the tax credit is reduced as a result of
increased domestic crude prices. The domestic wellhead price averaged $36.75 per barrel
for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $38.10 per barrel for the month of December
2004. (See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.)

The preferential return period for the Jewell operation was expected to end in 2011. How-
ever, due to anticipated higher costs associated with coal purchases from the Coke busi-
ness’ coal operation over the next few years, the Company anticipates that the preferential
return period will likely extend indefinitely. The preferential return period for the Indiana
Harbor operation is expected to end in 2007. Due to the difficulty of forecasting operations
and tax benefits into the future, the accuracy of these estimates is subject to considerable
uncertainty. The estimated lengths of these preferential return periods are based upon the
Company's current expectations of future cash flows and tax benefits, which are impacted
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by sales volumes and prices, raw material and operating costs, capital expenditure levels
and the ability to recognize tax benefits under the current tax law. Better-than-expected
cash flows and tax benefits will shorten the investors’ preferential return periods, while
lower-than-expected cash flows and tax benefits will lengthen the periods.

Following any expiration of these preferential return periods, the investor in the Jewell
operation would be entitled to a minority interest in the related cash flows and tax benefits
amounting to 18 percent, while the investors in the Indiana Harbor operation would be
entitled to a minority interest in the related cash flows and tax benefits initially amounting
to 34 percent and thereafter declining to 10 percent by 2038.

Substantially all coke sales are currently made under long-term contracts with Interna-
tional Steel Group (“ISG”) and Ispat. Both ISG and Ispat have credit ratings below invest-
ment grade. Neither ISG nor Ispat have given any indication that they will not perform
under their contracts. However, in the event of nonperformance, the Coke business’ re-
sults of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected. In October 2004, Ispat
International N.V. (the parent of Ispat) announced that it has entered into a merger
agreement with 1SG whereby ISG will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Ispat Interna-
tional N.V. Ispat International N.V. also announced that it has agreed to acquire LNM
Holdings N.V., both of which are under common control. According to the announce-
ment, the merger with ISG is subject to the completion of the acquisition of LNM Hold-
ings N.V., and shareholder and regulatory approvals, and is expected to be completed
during the first quarter of 2005. Standard and Poors Rating Services and Moody’s Investors
Service both have indicated that they have placed the credit ratings of Ispat and ISG under
review for possible upgrade.

In October 2003, Sun Coke entered into a 15-year coke purchase agreement with three af-
filiates of ISG to supply 550 thousand tons per year of coke from a new plant currently un-
der construction near Haverhill, OH. Coke will be supplied to ISG on a take-or-pay basis
for the first seven years, and thereafter based upon ISG’s requirements in excess of [ISG’s
existing coke production and its obligations in respect of the Jewell agreement described
below. Construction of the Haverhill plant commenced in December 2003, and initial
coke production is scheduled to begin during March 2005. The construction costs are
estimated to total $146 million. Expenditures through December 2004 totaled approx-
imately $129 million. The Haverhill plant will utilize the waste flue gas to generate low-
cost steam that will be sold to the adjacent chemical manufacturing complex owned and
operated by Sunoco’s Chemicals business.

Sun Coke has also entered into a 15-year coke purchase agreement with ISG to supply ISG
with 700 thousand tons per year of coke from the Jewell Vansant plant. The term of that
agreement is concurrent with the term of the Haverhill agreement. Coke will be supplied
on a take-or-pay basis for the first seven years of that term, and thereafter will be supplied
based upon ISG’s requirements in excess of [ISG’s existing coke production.

In August 2004, Sun Coke entered into a series of agreements with two major steel compa-
nies (the “Off-takers”) with respect to the development of a 1.6 million metric tons-per-
year cokemaking facility and associated cogeneration power plant in Vitéria, Brazil. Those
agreements generally include: technology license agreements whereby Sun Coke will li-
cense its proprietary technology to a project company (the “Project Company”); an en-
gineering and technical assistance agreement whereby Sun Coke will provide engineering
and construction—related technical services to the Project Company; an operating agree-
ment whereby a local subsidiary of Sun Coke will operate the cokemaking and water
treatment plant facilities for a term of not less than 15 years; and an investment agreement
by and among Sun Coke and the Off-takers whereby Sun Ccke has acquired an initial 1
percent equity interest in the Project Company as well as an option to purchase, at net
book value, an additional 19 percent equity interest. The Off-takers will purchase from the
Project Company all coke production under long-term agreements and one of the steel




companies will purchase all of the electricity produced at the cogeneration power plant.
Those off-take agreements are to be negotiated. The facilities are expected to be opera-
tional in 2006.

Given the rise in demand for steel and the related demand increases for coke, the Com-
pany is currently discussing other opportunities for developing new heat recovery and non-
recovery cokemaking facilities with several domestic and international steel companies. It
is intended that Sun Coke will license its proprietary technology, oversee the construction
of coke production facilities and any associated cogeneration power plants, and operate the
cokemaking facilities. The steel company customers are expected to purchase the coke
production on a take-or-pay or equivalent basis. The ownership of the project companies
would likely be shared by several parties, including the steel company customers, with Sun
Coke generally holding a minority ownership interest.

Corporate and Other

Corporate Expenses—Corporate administrative expenses increased $27 million in 2004 af-
ter increasing $14 million in 2003. These increases were largely due to higher employee-
related expenses, including pension and performance-related incentive compensation. In
2004, an accrual for the estimated liability attributable to retrospective premiums related
to certain insurance policies also contributed to the increase.

Net Financing Expenses and Other—Net financing expenses and other decreased $21 million
in 2004 primarily due to lower after-tax expense attributable to the preferential return of
third-party investors in Sunoco’s cokemaking operations (see “Coke” above) ($5 million),
lower interest expense in part due to debt restructuring activities ($6 million), a higher ef-
fective income tax rate ($6 million) and higher capitalized interest ($5 million). In the
third quarter of 2004, the Company repurchased outstanding debt with a par value of $352
million through a series of tender offers and open market purchases utilizing the net pro-
ceeds from the issuance of $250 million of 4 ¥ percent, 10-year notes under its shelf regis-
tration statement and $154 million of cash. The Company recognized a $34 million after-
tax loss in 2004 due to the early extinguishment of the debt, which is reported separately
in Corporate and Other in the Eamnings Profile of Sunoco Businesses. (See “Financial
Condition—Financial Capacity” below and Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.) In 2003, net financing expenses and other increased $8 million primarily due
to a $9 million increase in after-tax expense attributable to the preferential return of third-
party investors in Sunoco’s cokemaking operations.

Income Tax Settlements—During 2004, Sunoco settled a dispute concerning the computa-
tion of interest on numerous federal income tax issues which increased net income by $18
million.

Midwest Marketing Divestment Pragram—During 2003, Sunoco recognized a $9 million
after-tax gain from Retail Marketing’s divestment of certain sites in connection with its
Midwest Marketing Divestment program. (See Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.)

Asset Write-Downs and Other Matters—During 2004, Sunoco sold Chemicals’ one-third
interest in BEF and, in connection therewith, recorded an $8 million after-tax loss on
divestment.

During 2003, as a result of various governmental actions which caused a material adverse
impact on MTBE industry demand, the BEF joint venture recorded a provision to write
down its MTBE production facility to its estimated fair value at that time. Sunoco’s share of
this provision amounted to $15 million after tax. In 2003, Sunoco also recorded a $17 mil-
lion after-tax charge to write down Chemicals’ plasticizer assets that were held for sale at
December 31, 2003 to their estimated fair values less costs to sell and to establish accruals
for employee terminations and other required exit costs.
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During 2002, Sunoco recorded a $14 million after-tax provision to write off a 200 million
pounds-per-year polypropylene line at Chemicals’ LaPorte, TX plant and a 170 million
pounds-per-year aniline and diphenylamine production facility at Chemicals’ Haverhill,
OH plant and to recognize related shutdown costs; recorded a $2 million after-tax provi-
sion in connection with the shutdown of certain processing units at Refining and Supply’s
Toledo refinery; recorded a $3 million after-tax provision to write off an idled Logistics
business refined products pipeline and terminal; and established a $3 million after-tax ac-
crual relating to a lawsuit concerning the Puerto Rico refinery, which was divested in

2001.

For a further discussion of the provisions for asset write-downs and other matters, see Notes
2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debt Restructuring—In 2004, as discussed above, Sunoco recognized a $34 million after-tax
loss from the early extinguishment of outstanding debt with a par value of $352 million in
connection with a debt restructuring. (See “Financial Condition—Financial Capacity”
below and Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.)

Analysis of Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues—Total revenues were $25.51 billion in 2004, $18.02 billion in 2003 and $14.38
billion in 2002. The 42 percent increase in 2004 was primarily due to significantly higher
refined product and chemical prices and to significantly higher refined product sales vol-
umes, largely attributable to the acquisitions of the Eagle Point refinery from El Paso
Corporation in January 2004, the Mobil® retail sites from ConocoPhillips in April 2004
and the Speedway® retail sites from Marathon Ashland Petroleum in June 2003. Also con-
tributing to the increase were higher consumer excise taxes and higher crude oil sales in
connection with the crude oil gathering and marketing activities of the Company’s Logis-
tics operations. In 2003, the 25 percent increase was primarily due to significantly higher
refined product prices. Also contributing to the increase in 2003 were higher crude oil sales
in connection with the crude oil gathering and marketing activities of the Company’s Lo-
gistics operations, higher refined product and convenience store merchandise sales volumes
largely due to the acquisition of the Speedway® retail sites and higher consumer excise
taxes.

Costs and Expenses—Total pretax costs and expenses were $24.51 billion in 2004, $17.52
billion in 2003 and $14.46 billion in 2002. The 40 percent increase in 2004 was primarily
due to significantly higher crude oil and refined product acquisition costs. The higher
crude oil acquisition costs reflect crude oil price increases and the Company’s higher crude
oil throughputs resulting from the acquisition of the Eagle Point refinery, while the higher
refined product acquisition costs reflect refined product price increases and purchases to
supply the recently acquired Mobil® retail sites located primarily in Delaware, Maryland,
Virginia and Washington, D.C. and the Speedway® retail sites located primarily in Florida
and South Carolina. Also contributing to the increase were higher consumer excise taxes,
higher selling, general and administrative expenses, higher refinery operating costs and
higher crude oil costs in connection with the crude oil gathering and marketing activities
of the Company’s Logistics operations. In 2003, the 21 percent increase was primarily due
to significantly higher crude oil and refined product acquisition costs, largely as a result of
crude oil price increases. Also contributing to the increase were higher crude oil costs in
connection with the crude oil gathering and marketing activities of the Company’s Logis-
tics operations, higher consumer excise taxes, higher selling, general and administrative
expenses and the cost of higher merchandise sales at the Company’s convenience store
outlets.




Financial Condition
Capital Resources and Liguidity

Cash and Working Capital—At December 31, 2004, Sunoco had cash and cash equivalents
of $405 million compared to $431 million at December 31, 2003 and $390 million at De-
cember 31, 2002 and had a working capital deficit of $471 million compared to a working
capital deficit of $73 million at December 31, 2003 and working capital of $122 million at
December 31, 2002. The $26 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2004 was
due to a $1,060 million net use of cash in investing activities and a $713 million net use of
cash in financing activities, partially offset by $1,747 million of net cash provided by oper-
ating activities (“cash generation”). The $41 million increase in cash and cash equivalents
in 2003 was due to $1,000 million of net cash provided by operating activities, partially
offset by a $721 million net use of cash in investing activities and a $238 million net use of
cash in financing activities. Sunoco’s working capital position is considerably stronger than
indicated because of the relatively low historical costs assigned under the LIFO method of
accounting for most of the inventories reflected in the consolidated balance sheets. The
current replacement cost of all such inventories exceeded their carrying value at December
31, 2004 by $1,550 million. Inventories valued at LIFO, which consist of crude oil, and pe-
troleum and chemical products, are readily marketable at their current replacement values.
Management believes that the current levels of cash and working capital are adequate to
support Sunoco’s ongoing operations.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities—In 2004, Sunoco’s cash generation was $1,747 million
compared to $1,000 million in 2003 and $547 million in 2002. The $747 million increase
in cash generation in 2004 was primarily due to an increase in net income and an increase
in working capital sources pertaining to operating activities. The working capital changes
in 2004 include $100 million of proceeds attributable to the sale of the Company’s private
label credit card program. Working capital sources in 2003 include a $73 million income
tax refund for the 2002 tax year. The $453 million increase in cash generation in 2003 was
largely due to an increase in net income, higher deferred income tax expense, higher
depreciation, depletion and amortization and the income tax refund received in 2003,
partially offset by a decrease in other working capital sources pertaining to operating activ-
ities. Increases in crude oil prices in both 2004 and 2003 increased cash generation as the
payment terms on Sunoco’s crude oil purchases are generally longer than the terms on -
product sales.

Other Cash Flow Information—Divestment activities also have been a source of cash. During
the 2002-2004 period, proceeds from divestments totaled $304 million and related primar-
ily to the divestment of retail gasoline outlets as well as to sales of the Company’s plasti-
cizer business and its one-third partnership interest in BEF.

In 2002, Sunoco transferred an additional interest in its Indiana Harbor cokemaking oper-
"ation to a third-party investor for $215 million in cash. Sunoco did not recognize any gain or
loss at the date of this transaction. (See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.)

On February 8, 2002, the Company contributed a substantial portion of its Logistics busi-
ness to Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. in exchange for a 73.2 percent limited partner inter-
est, a 2 percent general partnership interest, incentive distribution rights and a $245
million special distribution, representing the net proceeds from the Partnership’s sale of
$250 million 7.25 percent senior notes due 2012. The Partnership concurrently issued 5.75
million limited partnership units, representing a 24.8 percent interest in the Partnership,
in an initial public offering at a price of $20.25 per unit. Proceeds from the offering totaled
approximately $96 million, net of underwriting discounts and offering expenses. On April
7, 2004, the Partnership issued 3.4 million limited partnership units under its shelf
registration statement (see below) at a price of $39.75 per unit. Proceeds from the offering,
net of underwriting discounts and offering expenses, totaled approximately $129 million.
Coincident with the offering, the Partnership redeemed 2.2 million limited partnership
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units owned by Sunoco for $83 million. Upon completion of the offering and related re-
demption of Sunoco’s limited partnership units, Sunoco now has a 62.6 percent interest in
the Partnership, including its 2 percent general partnership interest.

The Partnership, which is included in Sunoco’s consolidated financial statements, distrib-
utes to its general and limited partners all available cash (generally cash on hand at the
end of each quarter less the amount of cash the general partner determines in its reason-
able discretion is necessary or appropriate to: provide for the proper conduct of the
Partnership’s business; comply with applicable law, any of the Partnership’s debt instru-
ments or other agreements; pay fees and expenses, including payments to the general part-
ner; or provide funds for distribution to unitholders and to the general partner for any one
or more of the next four quarters). The minimum quarterly distribution is $.45 per limited
partnership unit. As of December 31, 2004, Sunoco owned 14.84 million limited partner-
ship units consisting of 3.46 million common units and 11.38 million subordinated units.
Distributions on Sunoco’s subordinated units are payable only after the minimum quartetly
distributions for the common units held by the public and Sunoco, including any arrea-
rages, have been made. The subordinated units convert to common units if cetain financial
tests related to earning and paying the minimum quarterly distribution for the preceding
three consecutive one-year periods have been met. In February 2005, when the quarterly
cash distribution pertaining to the fourth quarter of 2004 was paid, the first three-year re-
quirement was satisfied. As a result, on February 16, 2005, 2.85 million, or 25 percent, of
Sunoco’s subordinated units were converted to common units. If the Partnership continues
to make at least the minimum quarterly distributions through the fourth quarter of 2006,
all of Sunoco’s remaining subordinated units would be converted to common units by Feb-
ruary 2007. The Partnership increased its quarterly distribution per unit from the minimum
of $.45 to $.4875 for the fourth quarter of 2002 and then to $.50 for the second quarter of
2003, $.5125 for the third quarter of 2003, $.55 for the fourth quarter of 2003, $.57 for the
first quarter of 2004, $.5875 for the second quarter of 2004, $.6125 for the third quarter of
2004 and $.625 for the fourth quarter of 2004.

The Partnership acquired interests in various pipelines and other logistics assets during the
2002-2004 period, which were financed with long-term borrowings or from the proceeds
from the April 2004 equity offering (see “Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions” below).
The Partnership intends to implement additional growth opportunities in the future, both
within its current system and with third-party acquisitions. The Partnership expects to fi-
nance these capital outlays with a combination of long-term borrowings and the issuance
of additional limited partnership units to the public to maintain a balanced capital struc-
ture. Any issuance of limited partnership units to the public would dilute Sunoco’s owner-
ship interest in the Partnership.

Sunoco has entered into various agreements with the Partnership which require Sunoco to
pay for minimum storage and throughput usage of certain Partnership assets. These
commitments represent approximately 85 to 90 percent of Sunoco’s usage of the various
assets during 2004 and generated approximately $140 million of revenue for the Partner-
ship in 2004. If, other than as a result of force majeure, Sunoco fails to meet its minimum
obligations under these agreements, it would be required to pay the amount of any shortfall
to the Partnership. Any such payments would be available as a credit in the following year
after Sunoco’s minimum obligation for the year had been met. Sunoco’s obligations under
these agreements may be reduced or suspended under certain circumstances. Sunoco also
has agreements with the Partnership which establish fees for administrative services pro-
vided by Sunoco to the Partnership and provide indemnifications by Sunoco to the Part-
nership for certain environmental, toxic tort and other liabilities.

Financial Capacity—Management currently believes that future cash generation will be
sufficient to satisfy Sunoco’s ongoing capital requirements, to fund its pension obligations
(see “Pension Plan Funded Status” below) and to pay the current level of cash dividends
on Sunoco’s common stock. However, from time to time, the Company’s short-term cash




requirements may exceed its cash generation due to various factors including reductions in
margins for products sold and increases in the levels of capital spending {including acquis-
itions) and working capital. During those periods, the Company may supplement its cash
generation with proceeds from financing activities.

In June 2004, the Company entered into a new revolving credit facility (the “New
Facility”) totaling $900 million, which matures in June 2009. The New Facility replaces a
prior $785 million facility. The New Facility provides the Company with access to short-
term financing and is intended to support the issuance of commercial paper and letters of
credit. The Company also can borrow directly from the participating banks under the New
Facility. The New Facility is subject to commitment fees, which are not material. Under
the terms of the New Facility, Sunoco is required to maintain tangible net worth (as de-
fined in the New Facility) in an amount greater than or equal to targeted tangible net
worth (targeted tangible net worth being determined by adding $1.125 billion and 50 per-
cent of the excess of net income over share repurchases (as defined in the New Facility) for
each quarter ended after March 31, 2004). At December 31, 2004, the Company’s tangible
net worth was $1.7 billion and its targeted tangible net worth was $1.2 billion. The New
Facility also requires that Sunoco’s ratio of consolidated net indebtedness, including bor-
rowings of Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P., to consolidated capitalization (as those terms are
defined in the New Facility) not exceed .60 to 1. At December 31, 2004, this ratio was .37
to 1. At December 31, 2004, the New Facility is being used to support $100 million of
commercial paper and $103 million of floating-rate notes due 2034.

In November 2004, Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. replaced its three-year $250 million re-
volving credit facility with a new $250 million revolving credit facility, which matures in
November 2009. This facility is available to fund the Partnership’s working capital require-
ments, to finance acquisitions, and for general partnership purposes. It includes a $20 million
distribution sublimit that is available for distributions to third-party unitholders and Sunoco.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $65 million was outstanding under these facilities. The
current credit facility contains covenants requiring the Partnership to maintain a ratio of up
to 4.5 to 1 of its consolidated total debt to its consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the
current credit facility) and an interest coverage ratio (as defined in the current credit fa-
cility) of at least 3 to 1. At December 31, 2004, the Partnership’s ratio of its consolidated
debt to its consolidated EBITDA was 2.8 to 1 and the interest coverage ratio was 5.4 to 1.

Epsilon, the Company’s consolidated joint venture, has a $40 million revolving credit fa-
cility that matures in September 2006. The credit facility contains restrictive covenants
which, among other things, limit the incurrence of additional debt and the sale of assets by
Epsilon. At December 31, 2004, $6 million was outstanding under this credit facility,
which is guaranteed by Sunoco, Inc. Sunoco, Inc. also guarantees Epsilon’s $120 million
term loan due in September 2006.

The following table sets forth Sunoco’s outstanding debt:

December 31
(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Short-term borrowings $ 100 $ —
Current portion of long-term debt 3 103
Long-term debt 1,379 1,498
Total debt $1,482 $1,601

In September 2004, the Company repurchased outstanding long-term debt with a par
value of $352 million through a series of tender offers and open market purchases utilizing
the net proceeds from the issuance of $250 million of 478 percent, 10-year notes under its
shelf registration statement (see below) and $154 million of cash. The Company recog-
nized a $34 million after-tax loss in 2004 due to the early extinguishment of this debt,
which is reported separately in Corporate and Other in the Earnings Profile of Sunoco
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Businesses. In November 2004, the Company issued $103 million of 30-year floating-rate
notes and used the proceeds to redeem its 7.60 percent environmental industrial revenue
bonds that were due in 2024. As a result of the above debt restructuring activities, pretax
interest expense is expected to decline approximately $20 million in 2005. In March 2004,
the Company issued $100 million of commercial paper and used the proceeds to repay its
maturing 7 Y8 percent notes. Management believes there is sufficient borrowing capacity
available to pursue strategic investment opportunities as they arise. In addition, the Com-
pany has the option of issuing additional common or preference stock or selling an addi-
tional portion of its Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. common units, and Sunoco Logistics
Partners L.P. has the option of issuing additional common units.

The Company has a shelf registration statement which provides the Company with financ-
ing flexibility to offer senior and subordinated debt, common and preferred stock, warrants
and trust preferred securities. Subsequent to the 2004 debt offering discussed above, $1,050
million remains available under this shelf registration statement. Sunoco Logistics Partners
L.P. also has a shelf registration statement, under which the Partnership may issue debt or
common units representing limited partnership interests. Subsequent to the Partnership’s
April 2004 equity offering, $365 million remains available under the Partnership’s shelf
registration statement. The amount, type and timing of any additional financings under
these registration statements will depend upon, among other things, the Company’s and
Partnership’s funding requirements, market conditions and compliance with covenants
contained in the Company’s and Partnership’s respective debt obligations and revolving
credit facilities.

Contractual Obligations—The following table summarizes the Company’s significant con-
tractual obligations:

Payment Due Dates
(Millions of Dollars) Total 2005 2006-2007 2008-2009 Thereatter
Total debt:
Principal $ 1482 $ 103 $ 192 $ 321 $ 866
Interest 658 83 154 146 275
Operating leases™ 1,155 158 274 207 516
Purchase obligations:
Crude oil, other feedstocks and
refined products™* 10,509 6,492 1,354 561 2,102
Convenience store items™** 1,341 315 622 404 —
Transportation and distribution 661 198 109 88 266
Fuel and utilities 158 104 54 — —
Obligations supporting financing
arrangementst 89 9 18 16 46
Properties, plants and equipment 53 53 - — —
Other 177 56 66 35 20

$16283  $7,571 $2,843 $1,778 $4,091

* Includes $277 million pertaining to lease extension options which are assumed to be exercised.
** Includes feedstocks for chemical manufacturing and coal purchases for cokemaking operations.
*** Actual amounts will vary based upon the number of Company-operated convenience stores and the level of purchases.

1 Represents fixed and determinable obligations to secure wastewater treatment services at the Toledo refinery and coal handiing
services at the Indiana Harbaor cokemaking facility.

Sunoco’s operating leases include leases for marine transportation vessels, service stations,

office space and other property and equipment. Operating leases include all operating leases
that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year. Approximately 36
percent of the $1,155 million of future minimum annual rentals relates to time charters for
marine transportation vessels. Most of these time charters contain terms of up to seven years
with renewal and sublease options. The lease payments consist of a fixed-price minimum
and a variable component based on spot-market rates. In the table above, the variable com-




ponent of the lease payments has been estimated utilizing the average spot-market prices for
the year 2004. The actual variable component of the lease payments attributable to these
time charters could vary significantly from the estimates included in the table.

A purchase obligation is an enforceable and legally binding agreement to purchase goods
or services that specifies significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be
purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the
transaction. Sunoco has various obligations to purchase in the ordinary course of business:
crude oil, other feedstocks and refined products; convenience store items; transportation
and distribution services, including pipeline and terminal throughput and railroad services;
and fuel and utilities. Approximately one quarter of the contractual obligations to purchase
crude oil and other feedstocks and refined products reflected in the above table for 2005
relates to spot-market purchases to be satisfied within the first 60-90 days of the year.
Sunoco also has contractual obligations supporting financing arrangements of third parties,
contracts to acquire or construct properties, plants and equipment, and other contractual
obligations, primarily related to services and materials, including commitments to purchase
supplies and various other maintenance, systems and communications services. Most of
Sunoco’s purchase obligations are based on market prices or formulas based on market
prices. These purchase obligations generally include fixed or minimum volume require-
ments. The purchase obligation amounts in the table above are based on the minimum
quantities to be purchased at estimated prices to be paid based on current market con-
ditions. Accordingly, the actual amounts may vary significantly from the estimates in-

cluded in the table.

Sunoco also has obligations with respect to its defined benefit pension plans and postretire-
ment health care plans (see “Pension Plan Funded Status” below and Note 9 to the con-
solidated financial statements).

0Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements—Sunoco is contingently liable under various arrangements
that guarantee debt of third parties aggregating to approximately $11 million at December
31, 2004. At this time, management does not believe that it is likely that the Company
will have to perform under any of these guarantees.

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Sunoco Receivables Corporation, Inc., is a
party to an accounts receivable securitization facility that terminates in 2006 under which
the subsidiary may sell on a revolving basis up to a $200 million undivided interest in a
designated pool of certain accounts receivable. No receivables have been sold to third par-
ties under this facility.
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Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions

The following table sets forth Sunoco’s planned and actual capital expenditures for addi-
tions to properties, plants and equipment. Actual capital expenditures are consistent with
the presentation of the 2005 plan amounts in the table as well as with amounts presented
in Sunoco’s consolidated financial statements. The Company’s significant acquisitions are
included as footnotes to the table so that total capital outlays for each business unit can be
determined.

(Miltions of Dollars) 2005 Plan 2004 2003 2002
Refining and Supply $587 $463* $245 $179
Retail Marketing 130 103** 107+ 124
Chemicals 14 56* 311 36
Logistics 30 75* 39 41t
Coke 25 135 5 5
Consolidated capital expenditures $846 $832 $427 $385

* Excludes $250 million acquisition from E! Paso Corporation of the Eagle Point refinery and related chemical and Iogistics assets,
which includes inventory. The $250 million purchase price is comprised of $190, $40 and $20 million attributable to Refining and
Supply, Chemicals and Logistics, respectively.

** Excludes $181 million acquisition from ConocoPhillips of 340 retail outlets located primarily in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia and
Washington, D.C., which includes inventory.

*** Excludes $162 million purchase from a subsidiary of Marathon Ashland Petroleum LLC of 193 retail gasoline sites located primarily in
Florida and South Carolina, which includes inventory.

1 Excludes $198 million associated with the formation of a propylene partnership with Equistar Chemicals, L.P. and a related supply
contract and the acquisition of Equistar's Bayport polypropylene facility, which includes inventory.

1t Excludes $54 million purchase from an affiliate of Union Qil Company of California (“Unocal”) of interests in three Midwestern and
Western U.S. products pipsline companies and a $6 million purchase that increased the Partnership's ownership interest in the West
Texas Gulf Pipeline from 17.3 percent to 43.8 percent.

The 2005 planned capital outlays include $383 million for base spending, $45 million for
turnarounds at the Company’s refineries, $294 million for spending associated with meet-
ing Tier II clean fuels specifications (see “Environmental Matters” below), $17 million to
complete the construction of a $146 million 550 thousand tons-per-year cokemaking fa-
cility in Haverhill, OH and $107 million for various other income improvement projects.
In addition to normal infrastructure and maintenance capital requirements, the $383 mil-
lion for base spending includes several projects to upgrade Sunoco’s existing asset base.
These projects include $24 million to complete the $33 million expansion of the sulfur
recovery unit at the Eagle Point refinery, $36 million for new processing equipment, boilers
and reinstrumentation projects at the Company’s refineries and $67 million for additional
investments to upgrade Sunoco’s existing retail network and enhance its APlus® con-
venience store presence. Base spending also includes $5 million for conversion of the Mo-
bil® sites acquired from ConocoPhillips in 2004 to Sunoco® branded outlets. With respect
to the clean fuels spending, the Company estimates that total capital outlays to comply
with Tier II gasoline and on-road diesel specifications will be approximately $550 million.
The Company expects that most of this spending will occur through 2006. Through year-
end 2004, the Company’s Tier I spending totaled $233 million. The $107 million for in-
come improvement projects includes capital for refinery projects, including expenditures to
increase hydrotreater capacity at the Toledo refinery, to restart an alkylation unit at the
Philadelphia refinery and to upgrade various catalytic cracker units. Planned spending also
includes capital for production upgrades in certain chemical facilities.

In addition to the purchase of the Eagle Point refinery and related chemical and logistics
assets and the 340 service stations from ConocoPhillips, the 2004 capital outlays included
$298 million for base infrastructure and maintenance, $122 million for refinery turn-
arounds, $208 million for spending to comply with the Tier II low-sulfur gasoline and on-
road diesel fuel requirements and $204 million for income improvement projects. Base
infrastructure spending included $9 million related to the expansion of the sulfur recovery
unit at the Eagle Point refinery. The income improvement spending consisted of $128 mil-
lion towards the construction of the Haverhill, OH cokemaking facility, $45 million for




various growth opportunities in the Logistics business, including the acquisition of refined

. product terminals in Baltimore, MD, Manassas, VA and Columbus, OH and the purchase
of an additional one-third interest in the Harbor Pipeline, as well as $31 million for various
other income improvement projects across the Company.

In addition to the purchase of the 193 service stations in the Southeast and the transaction
with Equistar, the 2003 capital outlays included $286 million for base infrastructure and
maintenance, $88 million for refinery turnarounds, $23 million for spending to comply
with the Tier Il low-sulfur gasoline and diesel fuel requirements and $30 million for various
income improvement projects. Base infrastructure spending included $50 million related to
the construction of a sulfur plant at the Marcus Hook refinery. '

In addition to the purchase of interests in three Midwestern and Western U.S. products
pipeline companies from Unocal and the increased interest in the West Texas Gulf Pipe-
line, the 2002 capital outlays included $248 million for base infrastructure, maintenance
and regulatory spending, $82 million for refinery turnarounds and $55 million for various
income improvement projects.

Pension Plan Funded Status

The following table sets forth the components of the change in market value of the invest-
ments in Sunoco’s defined benefit pension plans:

December 31

(Millions of Doliars) 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of year $1.0M $ 930
Increase (reduction) in market value of investments resulting from:

Net investment income 123 211

Company contributions 95 89

Plan benefit payments (131) (159)
Balance at end of year $1,158 $1.071

The increase in the market value of investments during 2004 more than offset an increase
in the accumulated benefit obligations that resulted from a decline in the discount rate
from 6.00 percent at December 31, 2003 to 5.75 percent at December 31, 2004. As a re-
sult, the accumulated other comprehensive loss component of shareholders’ equity related
to pensions declined by $24 million at December 31, 2004.

- Management currently anticipates making $50 million of voluntary contributions to its
funded benefit plans in 2005. In March 2002, a temporary interest-tate-relief bill was
enacted by Congress that mitigated the impact of a decline in interest rates used in pension
funding calculations. In April 2004, Congress enacted additional legislation that continues
the use of more favorable interest rates for determining funding requirements through
2005. The new bill replaces the interest rate on 30-year Treasury bonds with a rate based
on corporate bonds.

Management believes any additional contributions to the pension plans can be funded
without a significant impact on liquidity. Future changes in the financial markets and/or
interest rates could result in additional significant increases or decreases to the accumu-
lated other comprehensive loss component of shareholders’ equity and to future pension
expense and funding requirements.

Environmental Matters
General

Sunoco is subject to extensive and frequently changing federal, state and local laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to, those relating to the discharge of materials into
the environment or that otherwise deal with the protection of the environment, waste
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management and the characteristics and composition of fuels. As with the industry gen-
erally, compliance with existing and anticipated laws and regulations increases the overall
cost of operating Sunoco’s businesses, including capital costs to construct, maintain and
upgrade equipment and facilities. Existing laws and regulations have required, and are ex-
pected to continue to require, Sunoco to make significant expenditures of both a capital
and an expense nature. The following table summarizes Sunoco’s expenditures for
environmental projects and compliance activities:

(Millions of Doltars) 2004 2003 2002
Pollution abatement capital* $258 $114 $ 47
Remediation 38 44 49
Operations, maintenance and administration 135 127 147

$431 $285 $243

*Capital expenditures for pollution abatement are expected to approximate $380 and $160 million in 2005 and 2008, respectively.

Remediation Activities

These laws and regulations also result in liabilities and loss contingencies for remediation at
Sunoco’s facilities and at third-party or formerly owned sites. Sunoco acerues environmental
remediation costs for work at identified sites where an assessment has indicated that cleanup
costs are probable and reasonably estimable. Such accruals are undiscounted and are based on
currently available information, estimated timing of remedial actions and related inflation
assumptions, existing technology and presently enacted laws and regulations. If a range of
probable environmental cleanup costs exists for an identified site, FASB Interpretation No.
14, “Reasonable Estimation of the Amount of a Loss,” requires that the minimum of the
range be accrued unless some other point in the range is more likely in which case the most
likely amount in the range is accrued. Engineering studies, historical experience and other
factors are used to identify and evaluate remediation altematives and their related costs in
determining the estimated accruals for environmental remediation activities. Losses attribut-
able to unasserted claims are also reflected in the accruals to the extent they are probable of
occurrence and reasonably estimable. The accrued liability for environmental remediation is
classified in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

December 31
(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Accrued liahilities $ 39 $ 44
Other deferred credits and liabilities 109 102
$148 $146

The following table summarizes the changes in the accrued liability for environmental
remediation activities by category:

Marketing  Chemicals Pipelines ~ Hazardous
(Miltions of Dollars) Refineries Sites  Facilities  and Terminals ~ Waste Sites  Other  Total
At December 31, 2001 $ 61 $ 45 $10 $18 $8 $3 3145
Accruals ) 36 1 7 - — 42
Payments 7 (24) 3 {(12) 3 — {49)
Other* — 15 — 6 - — 21
At December 31, 2002 $ 52 $ 72 $8 $19 $5 $3 $159
Accruals — 23 1 6 1 (N 30
Payments 9 {22) 2 (10) n — (44)
Other* — 1 — — _ - 1
At December 31, 2003 $ 43 $74 $7 $15 $5 §2 $146
Accruals 2 20 — 3 2 - 27
Payments (10) (21) (1) 3) 3) — (38)
Acquisitions and divestments 11 — (1) —_ - - 10
Other* 2 1 —_ —_ _ = 3
At December 31, 2004 $48 $74 $5 $15 $4 $2 $148

*Consists principally of increases in the accrued liability for which recovery from third parties is probable.




Total future costs for the environmental remediation activities identified above will de-
pend upon, among other things, the identification of any additional sites, the determi-
nation of the extent of the contamination at each site, the timing and nature of required
remedial actions, the technology available and needed to meet the various existing legal
requirements, the nature and terms of cost-sharing arrangements with other potentially
responsible parties, the availability of insurance coverage, the nature and extent of future
environmental laws, inflation rates and the determination of Sunoco’s liability at the sites,
if any, in light of the number, participation level and financial viability of the other par-
ties. Management believes it is reasonably possible (i.e., less than probable but greater than
remote) that additional environmental remediation losses will be incurred. At December
31, 2004, the aggregate of the estimated maximum additional reasonably possible losses,
which relate to numerous individual sites, totaled approximately $90 million. However,
the Company believes it is very unlikely that it will realize the maximum loss at every site.
Furthermore, the recognition of additional losses, if and when they might occur, would
likely extend over many years and, therefore, likely would not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position.

Under various environmental laws, including the Resource Conservation and Recovery

Act (“RCRA”) (which relates to solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal),

Sunoco has initiated corrective remedial action at its facilities, formerly owned facilities
and third-party sites. At the Company’s major manufacturing facilities, Sunoco has con-
sistently assumed continued industrial use and a containment/remediation strategy focused
on eliminating unacceptable risks to human health or the environment. The remediation
accruals for these sites reflect that strategy. Accruals include amounts to prevent off-site
migration and to contain the impact on the facility property, as well as to address known,
discrete areas requiting remediation within the plants. Activities include closure of RCRA
solid waste management units, recovery of hydrocarbons, handling of impacted soil, miti-
gation of surface water impacts and prevention of off-site migration.

Many of Sunoco’s current terminals are being addressed with the above containment/
remediation strategy. At some smaller or less impacted facilities and some previously di-
vested terminals, the focus is on remediating discrete interior areas to attain regulatory
closure.

Sunoco owns or operates certain retail gasoline outlets where releases of petroleum prod-
ucts have occurred. Federal and state laws and regulations require that contamination
caused by such releases at these sites and at formerly owned sites be assessed and re-
mediated to meet the applicable standards. The obligation for Sunoco to remediate this
type of contamination varies, depending on the extent of the release and the applicable
laws and regulations. A portion of the remediation costs may be recoverable from the re-
imbursement fund of the applicable state, after any deductible has been met.

Future costs for environmental remediation activities at the Company’s marketing sites
also will be influenced by the extent of MTBE contamination of groundwater, the cleanup
of which will be driven by thresholds based on drinking water protection. Though not all
groundwater is used for drinking, several states have initiated or proposed more stringent
MTBE cleanup requirements. Cost increases result directly from extended remedial oper-
ations and maintenance on sites that, under prior standards, could otherwise have been
completed. Cost increases will also result from installation of additional remedial or mon-
itoring wells and purchase of more expensive equipment because of the presence of MTRE.
While actual cleanup costs for specific sites are variable and depend on many of the factors
discussed above, expansion of similar MTBE remediation thresholds to additional states or
adoption of even more stringent requirements for MTBE remediation would result in fur-
ther cost increases.
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The accrued liability for hazardous waste sites is attributable to potential obligations to
remove or mitigate the environmental effects of the disposal or release of certain pollutants
at third-party sites pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensa-
tion and Liability Act (“CERCLA”) (which relates to releases and remediation of hazardous
substances) and similar state laws. Under CERCLA, Sunoco is potentially subject to joint
and several liability for the costs of remediation at sites at which it has been identified as a
“potentially responsible party” (“PRP”). As of December 31, 2004, Sunoco had been named
as a PRP at 46 sites identified or potentially identifiable as “Superfund” sites under federal
and state law. The Company is usually one of a number of companies identified as a PRP at
a site. Sunoco has reviewed the nature and extent of its involvement at each site and other
relevant circumstances and, based upon the other parties involved or Sunoco’s negligible
participation therein, believes that its potential liability associated with such sites will not
be significant.

Management believes that none of the current remediation locations, which are in various
stages of ongoing remediation, is individually material to Sunoco as its largest accrual for
any one Superfund site, operable unit or remediation area was less than $7 million at De-
cember 31, 2004. As a result, Sunoco’s exposure to adverse developments with respect to
any individual site is not expected to be material. However, if changes in environmental
regulations occur, such changes could impact multiple Sunoco facilities and formerly
owned and third-party sites at the same time. As a result, from time to time, significant
charges against income for environmental remediation may occur.

The Company maintains insurance programs that cover certain of its existing or potential
environmental liabilities, which programs vary by year, type and extent of coverage. For
underground storage tank remediations, the Company can also seek reimbursement

through various state funds of certain remediation costs above a deductible amount. For cer-
tain acquired properties, the Company has entered into arrangements with the sellers or
others that allocate environmental liabilities and provide indemnities to the Company for
remediating contamination that occurred prior to the acquisition dates. Some of these envi-
ronmental indemnifications are subject to caps and limits. No accruals have been recorded
for any potential contingent liabilities that will be funded by the prior owners as manage-
ment does not believe, based on current information, that it is likely that any of the former
owners will not perform under any of these agreements. Other than the preceding arrange-
ments, the Company has not entered into any arrangements with third parties to mitigate
its exposure to loss from environmental contamination. Claims for recovery of environ-
mental liabilities that are probable of realization totaled $21 million at December 31, 2004
and are included in deferred charges and other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Regulatory Matters

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) adopted rules under the Clean Air
Act (which relates to emissions of materials into the air) that phase in limitations on the
sulfur content of gasoline beginning in 2004 and the sulfur content of on-road diesel fuel
beginning in 2006 (“Tier II”). The rules include banking and trading credit systems, which
could provide refiners flexibility until 2006 for the low-sulfur gasoline and until 2010 for
the on-road low-sulfur diesel. These rules are expected to have a significant impact on
Sunoco and its operations, primarily with respect to the capital and operating expenditures
at its five current refineries. Most of the capital spending is likely to occur in the 2004-
2006 period, while the higher operating costs will be incurred when the low-sulfur fuels are
produced. The Company estimates that the total capital outlays to comply with the new -
Tier II gasoline and on-road diesel requirements will be approximately $550 million. Capi-
tal spending to meet these requirements totaled $233 million through December 31, 2004.
In May 2004, the EPA adopted a third rule which will phase in limitations on the allowable
sulfur content in off-road diesel fuel beginning in mid-2007. The off-road diesel rule is cur-



rently being analyzed but is not expected to have a significant impact on Sunoco’s capital
expenditures. The ultimate impact of the rules may be affected by such factors as technol-
ogy selection, the effectiveness of the systems pertaining to banking and trading credits,
timing uncertainties created by permitting requirements and construction schedules and
any effect on prices created by changes in the level of gasoline and diesel fuel production.

In July 1997, the EPA promulgated new, more stringent National Ambient Air Quality
Standards (“NAAQS”) for ozone and fine particles, which is resulting in identification of
non-attainment areas throughout the country, including Texas, Pennsylvania, Ohio and
West Virginia, where Sunoco operates facilities. The EPA issued final ozone non-
attainment area designations in April 2004, which became effective June 15, 2004. Fine
particle non-attainment areas are not expected to be designated until early 2005. These
standards will result in further controls of both nitrogen oxide and volatile organic com-
pound emissions. The EPA has designated certain areas, including Philadelphia and Hous-
ton, as “moderate” non-attainment areas, which would require them to meet the ozone
requirements by 2010, which is before existing federally mandated control programs would
take effect. However, EPA’s designation of non-attainment areas and the EPA’s rule on
state implementation are currently being challenged by the state of Ohio, trade associa-
tions and health and environmental groups. In September 2004, the EPA granted
reconsideration of certain issues relating to the 8-hour ozone NAAQS standard and, in Feb-
ruary 2005, issued a proposed rule requesting comments on two issues raised in connection
with the implementation of the 8-hour standard and revocation of the 1-hour standard.
Regulatory programs, when established to implement the EPA’s standards, could have an
impact on Sunoco and its operations. However, the potential financial impact cannot be
reasonably estimated until the EPA completes the non-attainment area designation process
and promulgates regulatory programs to attain the standards, and the states, as necessary,
develop and implement revised State Implementation Plans to respond to the new regu-
lations.

Since the late 1990s, the EPA has undertaken significant enforcement initiatives under
authority of the Clean Air Act, targeting industries with large manufacturing facilities that
are significant sources of emissions, including the refining industry. The EPA has asserted
that many of these facilities have modified or expanded their operations over time without
complying with New Source Review regulations that require permits and new emission
controls in connection with any significant facility modifications or expansions that could
increase emissions above certain thresholds, and have violated various other provisions of
the Clean Air Act, including New Source Review and Prevention of Significant Deterio-
ration (“NSR/PSD”) Programs, Benzene Waste Operations National Emissions Standards
for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAP”), Leak Detection and Repair (“LDAR”) and flar-
ing requirements. As part of this enforcement initiative, the EPA has entered into Consent
Agreements with several refiners that require them to pay civil fines and penalties and
make significant capital expenditures to install emissions-control equipment at selected
facilities. For some of these refineries, the cost of the required emissions-control equipment
is significant, depending on the size, age and configuration of the refinery. Sunoco received
information requests in 2000, 2001 and 2002 in connection with the enforcement ini-
tiative pertaining to its Marcus Hook, Philadelphia, Toledo and Tulsa refineries, the
Puerto Rico refinery divested in 2001 and its phenol facility in Philadelphia. Sunoco has
completed its responses to the EPA. In 2003, Sunoco received an additional information
request at its phenol plant in Philadelphia.

Sunoco has received Notices of Violation and Findings of Violation from the EPA relating
to its Marcus Hook, Philadelphia and Toledo refineries. The Notices and Findings of
Violation allege failure to comply with certain requirements relating to benzene waste-
water emissions at the Company’s Marcus Hook, Toledo and Philadelphia refineries and
failure to comply with certain requirements relating to leak detection and repair at the
Toledo refinery. In addition, the EPA has alleged that: at the Company’s Philadelphia
refinery, certain modifications were made to one of the fluid catalytic cracking units in
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1992 and 1998 without obtaining requisite permits; at the Company’s Marcus Hook refin-
ery, certain modifications were made to the fluid catalytic cracking unit in 1990 and 1996
without obtaining requisite permits; and at the Company’s Toledo refinery, certain phys-
ical and operational changes were made to the fluid catalytic cracking unit in 1985 with-
out obtaining requisite permits. The EPA has also alleged that at the Company’s Toledo
refinery, certain physical and operational changes were made to the sulfur plant in 1995,
1998 and 1999 without obtaining requisite permits; certain physical and operational
changes were made to a flare system without obtaining requisite permits; and that the flare
system was not being operated in compliance with the Clean Air Act. Sunoco has met
with representatives of the EPA on these Notices and Findings of Violation with the aim of
trying to resolve these matters. Although Sunoco does not believe that it has violated any
Clean Air Act requirements, as part of this initiative, Sunoco could be required to make
significant capital expenditures, incur higher operating costs, operate these refineries at
reduced levels and/or pay significant penalties. There are no liabilities accrued at De-
cember 31, 2004 in connection with this initiative. With respect to the Company’s Eagle
Point refinery acquired effective January 13, 2004, El Paso Corporation, its prior owner,
has entered into a consent decree with the EPA and the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection as part of EPA’s enforcement initiative. Sunoco does not antici- |
pate substantial capital expenditures on its part as a result of El Paso’s consent decree.

Energy policy legislation continues to be debated in the U.S. Congress. The Bush Admin-
istration and the U.S. Senate and U.S. House have been unable to reach agreement on
final legislation. There are numerous issues being debated, including an MTBE phase-out,
ethanol and MTBE “safe harbor” liability provisions, ethanol and renewable fuels mandates
and other issues that could impact gasoline production. Sunoco uses MTBE and ethanol as
oxygenates in different geographic areas of its refining and marketing system. While federal
action is uncertain, California, New York and Connecticut began enforcing state-imposed
MTBE bans on January 1, 2004. Sunoco does not market in California but is complying
with the bans in New York and Connecticut. These bans have resulted in unique gasoline.
blends, which could have a significant impact on market conditions depending on the de- i
tails of future regulations, the impact on gasoline supplies, the cost and availability of ‘
ethanol and alternate oxygenates if the minimum oxygenate requirements remain in effect,
and the ability of Sunoco and the industry in general to recover their costs in the market-
place. A number of additional states, including some in the northeastern United States,
are considering or have approved bans of MTBE, with legislative and administrative actions
underway that could lead to additional MTBE bans by 2007.

MTBE Litigation

Sunoco, along with other refiners, manufacturers and sellers of gasoline, owners and opet-
ators of retail gasoline sites, and manufacturers of MTRE, are defendants in over 60 cases in
17 states involving the manufacture and use of MTBE in gasoline and MTBE contamination
in groundwater. Plaintiffs, which include private well owners, water providers and certain
governmental authorities, allege that refiners and suppliers of gasoline containing MTBE
are responsible for manufacturing and distributing a defective product. Plaintiffs also gen-
erally are alleging groundwater contamination, nuisance, trespass, negligence, failure to
warn, violation of environmental laws and deceptive business practices. Plaintiffs are seek-
ing compensatory damages, and in some cases injunctive relief and punitive damages. Most
of the public water provider cases have been removed to federal court by motion of the
defendants and consolidated for pretrial purposes in the U.S. District Court for the South-
ern District of New York. Motions to remand these cases to their respective state courts
have been denied. Up to this point, for the group of MTBE cases currently pending, there
has been little information developed about the plaintiffs’ legal theories or the facts that
would be relevant to an analysis of potential exposure. Based on the current law and facts
available at this time, Sunoco believes that these cases will not have a material adverse ef-
fect on its consolidated financial position.




Conclusion

Management believes that the environmental matters discussed above are potentially sig-
nificant with respect to results of operations or cash flows for any one year. However, man-
agement does not believe that such matters will have a material impact on Sunoco’s
consolidated financial position or, over an extended period of time, on Sunoco’s cash flows
or liquidity.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures ahout Market Risk
Commodity and Foreign Exchange Price Risks

Sunoco uses swaps, options, futures, forwards and other derivative instruments to hedge a
variety of commodity price risks. Derivative instruments are used from time to time to
achieve ratable pricing of crude oil purchases, to convert certain refined product sales to
fixed or floating prices, to lock in what Sunoco considers to be acceptable margins for
various refined products and to lock in a portion of the Company’s electricity and natural
gas costs. In addition, Sunoco uses derivative contracts from time to time to reduce foreign
exchange risk relating to certain export sales denominated in foreign currencies. Sunoco
does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes.

Sunoco is at risk for possible changes in the market value of all of its derivative contracts;
however, such risk would be mitigated by price changes in the underlying hedged items. At
December 31, 2004, Sunoco had accumulated net derivative deferred gains, before income
taxes, of $3 million on its open derivative contracts. Open contracts as of December 31,
2004 vary in duration but do not extend beyond 2005. The potential loss on these de-
rivatives from a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change in the year-end market prices of
the underlying commodities that were being hedged by derivative contracts at December
31, 2004 was estimated to be $10 million. This hypothetical loss was estimated by multi-
plying the difference between the hypothetical and the actual year-end market prices of
the underlying commodities by the contract volume amounts. The Company also had
accumulated net derivative deferred gains, before income taxes, of $3 million at December
31, 2004 on closed options and futures contracts, which relate to hedged transactions oc-
curring in 2005.

Sunoco also is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by derivative counter-
parties. Management believes this risk is negligible as its counterparties are either regulated
by exchanges or are major international financial institutions or corporations with
investment-grade credit ratings. (See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.)

Interest Rate Risk

Sunoco has market risk exposure for changes in interest rates relating to its outstanding
borrowings. Sunoco manages this exposure to changing interest rates through the use of a
combination of fixed and floating rate debt. Sunoco also has market risk exposure relating
to its cash and cash equivalents. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $1,088 million
of fixed-rate debt, $394 million of floating-rate debt and $405 million of cash and cash
equivalents. The unfavorable impact of a hypothetical 1 percent increase in interest rates
on the floating-rate debt would be essentially offset by the favorable impact of such an in-
crease on its cash and cash equivalents. Sunoco also has market risk exposure for changes
in interest rates relating to its retirement benefit plans (see “Critical Accounting
Policies—Retirement Benefit Liabilities” below). Sunoco generally does not use de-
rivatives to manage its market risk exposure to changing interest rates.

Cash Dividends and Share Repurchases

The Company has paid cash dividends on a regular quarterly basis since 1904. The Com-
pany increased the quarterly dividend paid on common stock from $.25 per share ($1.00
per year) to $.275 per share ($1.10 per year) for the fourth quarter of 2003 and then to
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$.30 per share ($1.20 per year) for the third quarter of 2004 and to $.40 per share ($1.60
per year) for the second quarter of 2005.

In 2004 and 2003, the Company repurchased 8.0 and 2.9 million shares, respectively, of its
common stock for $568 and $136 million, respectively. The Company did not repurchase
any of its common stock during 2002. In September 2004, the Company announced that
its Board of Directors approved an increase of $500 million to the share repurchase author-
ization. At December 31, 2004, the Company had a remaining authorization from its
Board to purchase up to $227 million of Company common stock in the open market from
time to time depending on prevailing market conditions and available cash. In March
2005, an additional $500 million authorization was approved.

Critical Accounting Policies

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is included in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Management believes that the application of these poli-
cies on a consistent basis enables the Company to provide the users of the financial state-
ments with useful and reliable information about the Company’s operating results and
financial condition. The preparation of Sunoco’s consolidated financial statements re-
quires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclosures of contingent assets and li-
abilities. Significant items that are subject to such estimates and assumptions consist of re-
tirement benefit liabilities, long-lived assets and environmental remediation activities.
Although management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other as-
sumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may
differ to some extent from the estimates on which the Company’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared at any point in time. Despite these inherent limitations, manage-
ment believes the Company’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Con-
dition and Results of Operations and consolidated financial statements provide a
meaningful and fair perspective of the Company. Management has reviewed the assump-
tions underlying its critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of Sunoco’s
Board of Directors.

Retirement Benefit Liahilities

Sunoco has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans which provide retirement bene-
fits for approximately one-half of its employees. Sunoco also has postretirement benefit
plans which provide health care benefits for substantially all of its retirees. The postretire-
ment benefit plans are unfunded and the costs are shared by Sunoco and its retirees. The
levels of required retiree contributions to these plans are adjusted periodically, and the
plans contain other cost-sharing features, such as deductibles and coinsurance. In addition,
in 1993, Sunoco implemented a dollar cap on its future contributions for its principal
retirement health care benefits plan, which significantly reduces the impact of future cost
increases on the estimated postretirement benefit expense and benefit obligation.

The principal assumptions that impact the determination of both expense and benefit obli-
gations for Sunoco’s pension plans are the discount rate, the long-term expected rate of
return on plan assets and the rate of compensation increase. The discount rate and the
health care cost trend are the principal assumptions that impact the determination of ex-
pense and benefit obligations for Sunoco’s postretirement health care plans.

The discount rates used to determine the present value of future pension payments and
medical costs are based on a portfolio of high-quality (AA rated) corporate bonds with
maturities that reflect the duration of Sunoco’s pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations. The present values of Sunoco’s future pension and other postretirement
obligations were determined using discount rates of 5.75 and 5.50 percent, respectively, at




December 31, 2004 and 6.00 and 6.00 percent, respectively, at December 31, 2003. Suno-
co'’s expense under these plans is determined using the discount rate as of the beginning of
the year, which was 6.00 percent for 2004, 6.75 percent for 2003, 7.25 percent for 2002,
and for 2005 is 5.75 percent for pension plans and 5.50 percent for postretirement benefit
plans.

The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets was assumed to be 8.75 percent for
2004 and 2003 and 9.00 percent for 2002, while the rate of compensation increase was as-
sumed to be 4.00 percent for each of the last three years. A long-term expected rate of re-
turn of 8.50 percent on plan assets and a rate of compensation increase of 4.00 percent will
be used to determine Sunoco’s pension expense for 2005. The expected rate of return on
plan assets is estimated utilizing a variety of factors including the historical investment re-
turn achieved over a long-term period, the targeted allocation of plan assets and expect-
ations concerning future returns in the marketplace for both equity and debt securities. In
determining pension expense, the Company applies the expected rate of return to the
market-related value of plan assets at the beginning of the year, which is determined using
a quarterly average of plan assets from the preceding year. The expected rate of return on
plan assets is designed to be a long-term assumption. It generally will differ from the actual
annual return which is subject to considerable year-to-year variability. As permitted by ex-
isting accounting rules, the Company does not recognize currently in pension expense the
difference between the expected and actual return on assets. Rather, the difference is de-
ferred along with other actuarial gains or losses resulting from changes in actuarial assump-
tions used in accounting for the plans (primarily the discount rate) and differences
between actuarial assumptions and actual experience. If such unrecognized gains and losses
on a cumulative basis exceed 10 percent of the projected benefit obligation, the excess is
amortized into income as a component of pension or postretirement benefits expense over
the remaining service period of plan participants still employed with the Company, which
currently is approximately 12 years. At December 31, 2004, the unrecognized net loss for
defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans was $431 and $84 million, respectively.
For 2004, the pension plan assets generated a positive return of 12.2 percent, compared to
a positive return of 24.1 percent in 2003 and a negative return of 8.2 percent in 2002. For
the fifteen-year period ended December 31, 2004, the compounded annual investment re-
turn on Sunoco’s pension plan assets was 9.5 percent.

The asset allocation for Sunoco’s pension plans at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the
target allocation of plan assets for 2005, by asset category, are as follows:

December 31
(In Percentages) 2005 Target* 2004 2003
Asset category:
Equity securities 60% 64% 62%
Debt securities 35 32 33
Other 5 4 5
Total 100% 100% 100%

*The target allocation has been in effect since 1998,

The rate of compensation increase assumption has been indicative of actual increases dur-

ing the 2002-2004 period.

The initial health care cost trend assumptions used to compute the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation were increases of 10.3 percent, 11.4 percent and 12.2 percent at
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These trend rates were assumed to de-
cline gradually to 5.5 percent in 2008 and to remain at that level thereafter.
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Set forth below are the estimated increases in pension and postretirement benefits expense
and benefit obligations that would occur in 2005 from a change in the indicated assumptions:

Change Benefit

(Dollars in Millions) in Rate Expense Obligations™
Pension benefits:

Decrease in the discount rate 25% $4 $41

Decrease in the long-term expected rate of return on plan

assets .25% $3 $—

Increase in rate of compensation .25% $2 $10
Postretirement benefits:

Decrease in the discount rate .25% $1 $9

Increase in the annual health care cost trend rates 1.00% $1 $10

*Represents the projected benefit obligations for defined benefit plans and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations for
postretirement benefit plans.

Long-Lived Assets

The cost of plants and equipment is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Useful lives are based on historical experience and are
adjusted when changes in planned use, technological advances or other factors show that a
different life would be more appropriate. Changes in useful lives that do not result in the
impairment of an asset are recognized prospectively. There have been no significant
changes in the useful lives of the Company’s plants and equipment during the 2002-2004
period.

A decision to dispose of an asset may necessitate an impairment review. In this situation,
an impairment would be recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the long-lived
asset over its fair value less cost to sell.

Long-lived assets, other than those held for sale, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such events and circumstances include, among other factors: operating losses;
unused capacity; market value declines; technological developments resulting in obso-
lescence; changes in demand for the Company’s products or in end-use goods manufac-
tured by others utilizing the Company’s products as raw materials; changes in the
Company's business plans or those of its major customers or suppliers; changes in competi-
tion and competitive practices; uncertainties associated with the United States and world
economies; changes in the expected level of environmental capital, operating or re-
mediation expenditures; and changes in governmental regulations or actions. Additional
factors impacting the economic viability of long-lived assets are described under “Forward-
Looking Statements” below.

A long-lived asset that is not held for sale is considered to be impaired when the undis-
counted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are less than its carrying
amount. Such estimated future cash flows are highly subjective and are based on numerous
assumptions about future operations and market conditions. The impairment recognized is
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair market value of the impaired
asset. It is also difficult to precisely estimate fair market value because quoted market prices
for the Company’s long-lived assets may not be readily available. Therefore, fair market
value is generally based on the present values of estimated future cash flows using discount
rates commensurate with the risks associated with the assets being reviewed for impairment.

There were no asset impairments during 2004. Sunoco had asset impairments totaling $30
and $18 million after tax during 2003 and 2002, respectively. The impairments in 2003
related to the write-down of the Company’s plasticizer assets held for sale to their esti-
mated fair values less costs to sell and the write-down by the Company’s previously one-
third-owned BEF joint venture of its MTBE production facility to its estimated fair value.




The estimated fair value of this facility declined in 2003 as a result of the expected reduc-
tion in MTBE demand due to enacted and anticipated federal and state bans of this gasoline
additive. The impairments in 2002 related to the shutdown of a polypropylene line at the
Company’s LaPorte, TX plant, an aniline and diphenylamine production facility in
Haverhill, OH, certain processing units at the Toledo refinery and a refined products pipe-
line and terminal owned by Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. The chemical facilities and the
Toledo refinery processing units were shut down to eliminate less efficient production ca-
pacity, while the pipeline and terminal were idled because they became uneconomic to
operate. For a further discussion of these asset impairments, see Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental Remediation Activities

Sunoco is subject to extensive and frequently changing federal, state and local laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to, those relating to the discharge of materials into
the environment or that otherwise relate to the protection of the environment, waste
management and the characteristics and composition of fuels. These laws and regulations
require environmental assessment and/or remediation efforts at many of Sunoco's facilities
and at formerly owned or third-party sites.

Sunoco’s accrual for environmental remediation activities amounted to $148 million at
December 31, 2004. This accrual is for work at identified sites where an assessment has
indicated that cleanup costs are probable and reasonably estimable. The accrual is undis-
counted and is based on currently available information, estimated timing of remedial ac-
tions and related inflation assumptions, existing technology and presently enacted laws
and regulations. It is often extremely difficult to develop reasonable estimates of future site
remediation costs due to changing regulations, changing technologies and their associated
costs, and changes in the economic environment. In the above instances, if a range of
probable environmental cleanup costs exists for an identified site, FASB Interpretation No.
14, “Reasonable Estimation of the Amount of a Loss,” requires that the minimum of the
range be accrued unless some other point in the range is more likely, in which case the
most likely amount in the range is accrued. Engineering studies, historical experience and
other factors are used to identify and evaluate remediation alternatives and their related
costs in determining the estimated accruals for environmental remediation activities.
Losses attributable to unasserted claims are also reflected in the accruals to the extent they
are probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable.

Management believes it is reasonably possible (i.e., less than probable but greater than
remote) that additional environmental remediation losses will be incurred. At December
31, 2004, the aggregate of the estimated maximum additional reasonably possible losses,
which relate to numerous individual sites, totaled approximately $90 million. However,
the Company believes it is very unlikely that it will realize the maximum loss at every site.
Furthermore, the recognition of additional losses, if and when they might occur, would
likely extend over many vears and, therefore, likely would not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position.

Management believes that none of the current remediation locations, which are in various
stages of ongoing remediation, is individually material to Sunoco as its largest accrual for
any one Superfund site, operable unit or remediation area was less than $7 million at De-
cember 31, 2004. As a result, Sunoco’s exposure to adverse developments with respect to
any individual site is not expected to be material. However, if changes in environmental
regulations occur, such changes could impact several of Sunoco’s facilities and formerly
owned and third-party sites at the same time. As a result, from time to time, significant
charges against income for environmental remediation may occur.

Under various environmental laws, including the Resource Conservation and Recove
g [ ry
Act (“RCRA”), Sunoco has initiated corrective remedial action at its facilities, formerly
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owned facilities and third-party sites. At the Company’s major manufacturing facilities,
Sunoco has consistently assumed continued industrial use and a containment/remediation
strategy focused on eliminating unacceptable risks to human health or the environment.
The remediation accruals for these sites reflect that strategy. Accruals include amounts to
prevent off-site migration and to contain the impact on the facility property, as well as to
address known, discrete areas requiring remediation within the plants. Activities include
closure of RCRA solid waste management units, recovery of hydrocarbons, handling of
impacted soil, mitigation of surface water impacts and prevention of off-site migration.

Many of Sunoco’s current terminals are being addressed with the above containment/
remediation strategy. At some smaller or less impacted facilities and some previously di-
vested terminals, the focus is on remediating discrete interior areas to attain regulatory
closure.

Sunoco owns or operates certain retail gasoline outlets where releases of petroleum prod-
ucts have occurred. Federal and state laws and regulations require that contamination
caused by such releases at these sites and at formerly owned sites be assessed and re-
mediated to meet the applicable standards. The obligation for Sunoco to remediate this
type of contamination varies, depending on the extent of the release and the applicable
laws and regulations. A portion of the remediation costs may be recoverable from the re-
imbursement fund of the applicable state, after any deductible has been met.

Future costs for environmental remediation activities at the Company’s marketing sites
will also be influenced by the extent of MTBE contamination of groundwater, the cleanup
of which will be driven by thresholds based on drinking water protection. Though not all
groundwater is used for drinking, several states have initiated or proposed more stringent
MTBE cleanup requirements. Cost increases result directly from extended remedial oper-
ations and maintenance on sites that, under prior standards, could otherwise have been
completed. Cost increases will also result from installation of additional remedial or mon- \
itoring wells and purchase of more expensive equipment because of the presence of MTBE.
While actual cleanup costs for specific sites are variable and depend on many of the factors
discussed above, expansion of similar MTBE remediation thresholds to additional states or
adoption of even more stringent requirements for MTBE remediation would result in fur-
ther cost increases.

In summary, total future costs for environmental remediation activities will depend upon,
among other things, the identification of any additional sites, the determination of the
extent of the contamination at each site, the timing and nature of required remedial ac-
tions, the technology available and needed to meet the various existing legal requirements,
the nature and terms of cost-sharing arrangements with other potentially responsible par-
ties, the availability of insurance coverage, the nature and extent of future environmental
laws, inflation rates and the determination of Sunoco’s liability at the sites, if any, in light
of the number, participation level and financial viability of other parties.

New Accounting Pronouncements
For a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements requiring adoption sub-
sequent to December 31, 2004, see Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information contained in this Annual Report to Shareholders contains
“forward-looking statements” {as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). These forward-looking statements
discuss estimates, goals, intentions and expectations as to future trends, plans, events, re-
sults of operations or financial condition, or state other information relating to the Com-
pany, based on current beliefs of management as well as assumptions made by, and
information currently available to, Sunoco. Forward-looking statements generally will be




accompanied by words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “budget,” “could,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “forecast,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,”
“scheduled,” “should,” or other similar words, phrases or expressions that convey the un-
certainty of future events or outcomes. Although management believes these forward-
looking statements are reasonable, they are based upon a number of assumptions
concerning future conditions, any or all of which may ultimately prove to be inaccurate.
Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements in-
clude, without limitation:

® Changes in refining, marketing and chemical margins;

* Variation in petroleum-based commodity prices and availability of crude oil and feed-
stock supply or transportation;

e Effects of transportation disruptions;
® Changes in the price differentials between light sweet and heavy sour crude oils;

¢ Changes in the marketplace which may affect supply and demand for Sunoco’s
products;

* Changes in competition and competitive practices, including the impact of foreign
imports;

* Effects of weather conditions and natural disasters on the Company’s operating facili-
ties and on product supply and demand;

¢ Age of, and changes in, the reliability and efficiency of the Company’s operating facili-
ties or those of third parties;

® Changes in the level of operating expenses;

e Effects of adverse events relating to the operation of the Company’s facilities and to the
transportation and storage of hazardous materials (including equipment malfunction,
explosions, fires, spills, and the effects of severe weather conditions);

® Changes in the expected level of environmental capital, operating or remediation
expenditures;

¢ Delays related to construction of or work on facilities and the issuance of applicable
permits;

e Changes in product specifications;
® Availability and pricing of oxygenates such as MTBE and ethanol;
® Phase-outs or restrictions on the use of MTBE;

* Political and economic conditions in the markets in which the Company, its suppliers
or customers cperate, including the impact of potential terrorist acts and international
hostilities;

* Military conflicts between, or internal instability in, one or more oil producing coun-
tries, governmental actions and other disruptions in the ability to obtain crude oil;

¢ Ability to conduct business effectively in the event of an information systems failure;

* Ability to identify acquisitions, execute them under favorable terms and integrate them
into the Company’s existing businesses;

® Ability to enter into joint ventures and other similar arrangements with favorable
terms;

¢ Changes in the availability and cost of debt and equity financing;

e Changes in the credit ratings assigned to the Company’s debt securities or credit facili-
ties;

¢ Changes in insurance markets impacting costs and the level and types of coverage
available;
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® Changes in tax laws or their interpretations;
¢ Changes in financial markets impacting pension expense and funding requirements;
® Risks related to labor relations and workplace safety;

¢ Nonperformance by major customers, suppliers, dealers, distributors or other business
partners;

¢ General economic, financial and business conditions which could affect Sunoco’s finan-
cial condition and results of operations;

¢ Changes in applicable statutes and government regulations or their interpretations, in-
cluding those relating to the environment and global warming;

¢ Claims of the Company’s noncompliance with statutory and regulatory requirements;
and

® Changes in the status of, or initiation of new, litigation to which the Company is a
party or liability resulting from litigation or administrative proceedings, including
natural resource damage claims.

The factors identified above are believed to be important factors (but not necessarily all of
the important factors) that could cause actual results to differ materially from those ex-
pressed in any forward-looking statement made by Sunoco. Unpredictable or unknown fac-
tors not discussed herein could also have material adverse effects on the Company. All
forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report to Shareholders are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements. The Company under-
takes no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statement (or its associated
cautionary language) whether as a result of new information or future events.




Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over finan-
cial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, the Company’s management used the criteria set forth in Internal

Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{the “COSO criteria”).

Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on the COSO criteria. Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent regis-
tered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of the Company's internal con-
trol over financial reporting, which appears on page 44.

&/MW

John G. Drosdick
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

%WC‘/

Thomas W. Hofmann
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Indepfendent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

To the Shareholders:and Board of Directors,

Sunoco, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Con-
trol over Financial Reporting, that Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria”). Sunoco, Inc. and
subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that trans-
actions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding pre-
vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSQO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the 2004 consolidated financial statements of Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated

March 3, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
é/vwea‘: ¥ MLLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 3, 2005




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors,

Sunoco, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Sunoco, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of De-
cember 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 3, 2005 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.
é/\mt MLLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 3, 2005
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Millions of Daltars and Shares, Except Per Share Amounts)

Sunaco, Inc. and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December 31 2004 2003" 2002
Revenues
Sales and other operating revenue (including consumer excise taxes) $25,468 $17,969 $14,299
Interest income 10 7 7
Other income, net (Notes 2, 3 and 4) 30 40 78
25,508 18,016 14,384
Costs and Expenses
Cost of products sold and operating expenses 20,734 14,154 11,430
Consumer excise taxes 2,282 1,999 1,834
Selling, general and administrative expenses 873 752 622
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 409 369 329
Payroll, property and other taxes 118 105 100
Provision for write-down of assets and other matters (Note 2) — 28 34
Interest cost and debt expense 108 117 111
Interest capitalized (11) (3) (3)
24,513 17,521 14,457

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 995 495 (73)
Income tax expense (benefit) (Note 4) 390 183 (26)
Net Income (Loss) $ 605 $ 312 $ (47)
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:

Basic $8.16 $4.07 $(.62)

Diluted $8.08 $4.03 $(.62)
Weighted-Average Number of Shares Outstanding (Note 5):

Basic 741 76.7 76.2

Diluted ‘ 749 775 76.2
Cash Dividends Paid Per Share of Common Stock (Note 14) $1.15 $1.025 $1.00

*Restated to reflect the consalidation of the Epsilon Products Company, LLC (“Epsilon”) palypropylene joint venture, effective January 1, 2003, in cannection with the adoption of

FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” in the first quarter of 2004 (Note 1).

(See Accompanying Notes)




Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Millions of Dollars)

Sunoco, Inc. and Subsidiaries

At December 31 2004 2003*
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 405 $ 431
Accounts and notes receivable, net 1,211 1,056
Inventories (Note 6) 765 494
Deferred income taxes (Note 4) 110 91
Total Current Assets 2,551 2,072
Investments and long-term receivables (Note 7) 115 143
Properties, plants and equipment, net (Note 8) 4,966 4,405
Prepaid retirement costs (Note 9) 11 1
Deferred charges and other assets (Note 2) 436 422

Total Assets

$ 8,079 $ 7,053

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable

$2,109 $ 1,365

Accrued liabilities 451 435
Short-term borrowings (Note 10) . 100 —
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 11) 3 103
Taxes payable 349 242
Total Current Liabilities 3,022 2,145
Long-term debt (Note 11) 1,379 1,498
Retirement benefit Hiabilities (Note 9) 539 604
Deferred income taxes (Note 4) 755 602
Other deferred credits and liabilities (Note 12) 247 208
Commitments and contingent liabitities (Note 12)

Minority interests (Note 13) 530 440
Shareholders’ Equity (Notes 14 and 15)

Common stock, par value $1 per share

Authorized—200,000,000 shares;

Issued, 2004-—139,124,438 shares;

Issued, 2003—136,801,064 shares 139 137
Capital in excess of par value 1,656 1,552
Earnings employed in the business 2,895 2,376
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss (164) {(187)

Common stock held in treasury, at cost
2004—69,796,598 shares;
2003—=61,420,158 shares

(2,919) (2,322)

Total Shareholders’ Equity

1,607 1,566

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

$ 8,079 $ 7,063

*Restated to reflect the consolidation of the Epsilon joint venture, effective January 1, 2003, in cornection with the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities,” in the first quarter of 2004 (Note 1).

(See Accompanying Notes)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{Millions of Dollars)

Sunoco, Inc. and Subsidiaries

For the Years Ended December 31 2004 2003* 2002
Increases (Decreases) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 605 $ 312 $ (47)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Gains on MidwestMarketing program asset divestments —_— (14) —
Provision for asset write-downs and other matters 13 51 34
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 53 — —
Noncash reduction in minority interest in cokemaking operations {(Note 13) (5) (3) (35)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 409 369 329
Deferred income tax expense 123 M 19
Payments in excess of expense for retirement plans (28) (45) (42)
Changes in working capital pertaining to operating activities, net of effect of acquisitions:
Accounts and notes receivable (214) (139) {230)
inventories (136) 51 161
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities m 132 319
Taxes payable 138 131 10
Other 18 44 29
Net cash provided by opérating activities 1,747 1,000 547
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (832) (427) (385)
Acquisitions, net of seller financing of $4 in 2003 (Note 2) (431) (356) (54)
Proceeds from divestments 200 82 22
Other 3 {20) (15)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,060) (721) (432)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net proceeds from (repayments of) short-term borrowings 100 — {299)
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 416 — 3N
Repayments of long-term debt (642) (12) (3)
Premiums paid on early extinguishment of debt (50) — —
Net proceeds from issuance of Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. limited partnership units
{Note 13) 129 — 96
Proceeds from transferred interests in cokemaking operations — —_ 215
Cash distributions to investors in cokemaking operations (36) (48) (24)
Cash distributions to investors in Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. (20) (11 %
Cash dividend payments (86) (79) (76)
Purchases of common stock for treasury (568) (136) —
Proceeds from issuange of common stock under management incentive and employee
option plans 52 52 23
QOther (8) (4) (3)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (713) (238) 233
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (26) 41 348
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 431 390 42
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 405 $ 431 $ 390

*Restated to reflect the consolidation of the Epsilon joint venture, effective January 1, 2003, in connection with the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities,” in the first quarter of 2004 (Note 1).

(See Accompanying Notes)




Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and Shareholders’ Equity

(Doltars in Millions, Shares in Thousands)

Sunoco, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock

Comprehensive  Number of
Income (Loss) Shares

Par
Value

Capital in
Excess of
Par Value

Earnings
Employed
inthe
Business

Accumulated

Other  Common Stack
Comprenensive __Held in Treasury

Loss  Shares

Cost

At December 31, 2001
Net l0ss
Other comprehensive loss:
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of related
tax benefit of $94)
Net hedging gains (net of related tax expense of $2)
Reclassifications of net hedging losses to earnings
(net of related tax expense of $2)
Cash dividend payments
Issued under management incentive and employee
option plans
Net increase in equity related to unissued shares under
management incentive plans
Other

133,796
s@n —

(176) —
5 —
4 —

$134

$1,446

$2,266
(47)

$ (28) 58,267

— 54

$2,176

™o

Totai

At December 31, 2002
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Minimum pension liabitity adjustment (net of related
tax expense of $4)
Net hedging gains (net of related tax expense of $4)
Reclassifications of net hedging gains to earnings
(net of refated tax benefit of $3)
Cash dividend payments
Purchases for treasury
[ssued under management incentive and employee
option plans
Net decrease in equity related to unissued shares under
management incentive plans (Note 15)
QOther

$14)

134,760
$312 —

$2,143
312

$(195) 58,321

— 19

$2,178

Total

At December 31, 2003
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of related
tax expense of $12)
Net hedging gains (net of related tax expense of $5)
Reclassifications of net hedging gains to earnings
{net of related tax benefit of $6)
Cash dividend payments
Purchases for treasury
Issued under management incentive and employee
option plans
Net increase in equity related to unissued shares under
management incentive plans
Other

136,801
$ 605 —

am -

— 2,203

30

$(187) 61,420

$2,322

Total
At December 31, 2004

139,124

$139

$2,895

$(164) 69,797

$2,919

(See Accompanying Notes)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Sunoco, Inc.
and subsidiaries (collectively, “Sunoco” or the
“Company”) contain the accounts of all entities that are
controlled (generally more than 50 percent owned) and
variable interest entities for which the Company is the
primary beneficiary (see below). Corporate joint ventures
and other investees over which the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence but that are not
consolidated are accounted for by the equity method.

FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Enrities,” as revised (“FASB Interpretation No.
46”), defines a variable interest entity (“VIE”) as an entity
that either has investor voting rights that are not propor-
tional to their economic interests or has equity investors
that do not provide sufficient financial resources for the
entity to support its activities. FASB Interpretation No. 46
requires a VIE to be ¢onsolidated by a company if that
company is the primary beneficiary. The primary benefi-
ciary is the company that is subject to a majority of the
risk of loss from the VIE's activities or, if no company is
subject to a majority of such risk, the company that is
entitled to receive aimajority of the VIE’s residual returns.

In connection with the adoption of FASB Interpretation
No. 46 in the first quarter of 2004, Sunoco consolidated
Epsilon Products Company, LLC (“Epsilon”) and restated
its 2003 financial statements to conform to the 2004 pre-
sentation. Epsilon is:a joint venture that consists of
polymer-grade propylene operations at Sunoco’s Marcus
Hook, PA refinery and an adjacent polypropylene plant.
The following is a summary of the impact of consolidat-
ing Epsilon on Sunoco’s consolidated financial position at
January 1, 2003:

(Miltians of Dollars)
Increase (decrease) in:

Current assets $ 11

Investments and long-term receivables - (50)
Properties, plants and-equipment, net 132

Deferred charges and other assets 49
Current liabilities 21
Long-term debt 155
Minority interests 8

Epsilon’s long-term debt at January 1, 2003 was com-
prised of $120 million of floating-rate notes due 2006 and
$35 million outstanding under Epsilon’s $40 million re-
volving credit facility that matures in 2006. The floating-
rate notes are collateralized by the joint venture’s

- Sunoco, Inc. and Subsidiaries

polypropylene facility, which has a carrying value of $84
million at December 31, 2004. Sunoco, Inc. guarantees
100 percent of Epsilon’s long-term debt. The con-
solidation of Epsilon did not impact Sunoco’s net income
or have a significant effect on any other amounts in its
consolidated statements of operations for 2004 and 2003.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles re-

quires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial state-
ments and accompanying notes. Actual amounts could
differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition _

The Company sells various refined products (including
gasoline, middle distillates, residual fuel, petrochemicals
and lubricants), coke and coal and also sells crude oil in
connection with the crude oil gathering and marketing
activities of its logistics operations. In addition, the
Company sells a broad mix of merchandise such as gro-
ceries, fast foods and beverages at its convenience stores
and provides a variety of car care services at its retail
gasoline outlets. Revenues related to the sale of products
are recognized when title passes, while service revenues
are recognized when services are provided. Title passage
generally occurs when products are shipped or delivered
in accordance with the terms of the respective sales
agreements. In addition, revenues are not recognized un-
til sales prices are fixed or determinable and collectability
is reasonably assured.

Crude oil and refined product exchange transactions,
which are entered into primarily to acquire crude oil and
refined products of a desired quality or at a desired loca-
tion, are netted in cost of products sold and operating ex-
penses in the consolidated statements of operations based
upon the concepts set forth in APB Opinion No. 29,
“Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions.” The Emerg-
ing Issues Task Force (the “EITF”) is currently considering
the appropriate reporting for exchange transactions in Is-
sue 04-13, “Accounting for Purchases and Sales of In-
ventory with the Same Counterparty.” In the event the
EITF requires reporting on a gross basis, Sunoco’s sales and
other operating revenue and cost of products sold and
operating expenses would reflect corresponding increases.

Consumer excise taxes on sales of refined products and
merchandise are included in both revenues and costs and
expenses, with no effect on net income.




Cash Equivalents

Sunoco considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchase to be cash equivalents. These cash equivalents
consist principally of time deposits and money market
investments.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The
cost of crude oil and petroleum and chemical product
inventories is determined using the last-in, first-out
method (“LIFO”). The cost of materials, supplies and
other inventories is determined using principally the
average cost method.

Depreciation and Retirements

Plants and equipment are generally depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Gains
and losses on the disposals of fixed assets are generally re-
flected in net income.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of
their carrying amount or fair market value less cost to sell.
Long-lived assets, other than those held for sale, are re-
viewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable. An asset is considered to
be impaired when the undiscounted estimated net cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset are less than
its carrying amount. The impairment recognized is the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair
market value of the impaired asset.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase
price over the fair value of net assets acquired, and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impair-
ment at least annually rather than being amortized.
Sunoco determined during the 2002-2004 period that no
such assets were impaired. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortized over their useful lives in a man-
ner that reflects the pattern in which the economic bene-
fit of the intangible assets is consumed.

Environmental Remediation

Sunoco accrues environmental remediation costs for work
at identified sites where an assessment has indicated that
cleanup costs are probable and reasonably estimable. Such
accruals are undiscounted and are based on currently
available information, estimated timing of remedial ac-
tions and related inflation assumptions, existing technol-
ogy and presently enacted laws and regulations. If a range
of probable environmental cleanup costs exists for an
identified site, the minimum of the range is accrued unless
some other point in the range is more likely in which case
the most likely amount in the range is accrued.

Maintenance Shutdowns

Maintenance and repair costs in excess of $500 thousand
incurred in connection with major maintenance shut-
downs are capitalized when incurred and amortized over
the period benefited by the maintenance activities.

Derivative Instruments

From time to time, Sunoco uses swaps, options, futures,
forwards and other derivative instruments to hedge its
exposure to crude oil, petroleum product, electricity and
natural gas price volatility and to reduce foreign exchange
risk relating to certain export sales denominated in for-
eign currencies. Such contracts are recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets at their fair value. Changes
in fair value of derivative contracts that are not hedges
are recognized in income as they occur. If the derivative
contracts are designated as hedges, depending on their
nature, the effective portions of changes in their fair val-
ues are either offset in income against the changes in the
fair values of the items being hedged or reflected initially
as a separate component of shareholders’ equity and sub-
sequently recognized in income when the hedged items
are recognized in income. The ineffective portions of
changes in the fair values of derivative contracts des-
ignated as hedges are immediately recognized in income.
Sunoco does not hold or issue derivative instruments for
trading purposes.

Minority Interests in Cokemaking Operations

Cash investments by third parties are recorded as an in-
crease in minority interests in the consolidated balance
sheets. There is no recognition of any gain at the dates
cash investments are made as the third-party investors are
entitled to a preferential return on their investments.

Nonconventional fuel credit and other net tax benefits
generated by the Company’s cokemaking operations and
allocated to third-party investors are recorded as a reduc-
tion in minority interests and are included as income in
the Coke segment. The investors’ preferential return is
recorded as an increase in minority interests and is re-
corded as expense in the Corporate and Other segment.
The net of these two amounts represents a noncash
change in minority interests in cokemaking operations,
which is recognized in other income, net, in the con-
solidated statements of operations.

Cash payments, representing the distributions of the in-
vestors’ share of cash generated by the cokemaking oper-
ations, also are recorded as a reduction in minority
interests.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Pay-
ment” (“SFAS No. 123R”) was issued, which revised
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS
No. 123”). Among other things, SFAS No. 123R requires
a fair-value-based method of accounting for share-based
payment transactions, effective for interim periods begin-
ning after June 15, 2005. As Sunoco currently follows the
fair value method of ‘accounting prescribed by SFAS No.
123, adoption of SFAS No. 123R is not expected to have
a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 1, 2003, Sunoco adopted the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS
No. 143"). This statement significantly changed the
method of accruing costs that an entity is legally obli-
gated to incur associated with the retirement of fixed as-
sets. Under SFAS No. 143, the fair value of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period
in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimarte of fair
value can be made. The associated asset retirement costs
are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the fixed
asset and depreciated over its estimated useful life. Prior
to January 1, 2003, a liability for an asset retirement obli-
gation was recognized using a cost-accumulation
measurement approach.

In conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 143 in
January 2003, Sunoco recorded an increase in asset
retirement obligations of $5 million and a related increase
in net properties, plants and equipment of $3 million re-
lated to certain of its'branded marketing retail sites, coal
and cokemaking facilities and chemical assets. The $2
million cumulative effect of this accounting change ($1
million after tax) has been included in cost of products
sold and operating expenses in the 2003 consolidated
statement of operations. Sunoco did not reflect the $1
million after-tax charge as a cumulative effect of account-
ing change as it was not material. Other than the cumu-
lative effect, this change did not have a significant impact
on Sunoco’s results of operations during 2003. Ar De-
cember 31, 2004, Sunoco’s liability for asset retirement
obligations amounted to $9 million. Sunoco has legal as-
set retirement obligations for several other assets, includ-
ing its refineries, pipelines and terminals, for which it is
not possible to estimate when the obligations will be set-
tled. Consequently, the retirement obligations for these
assets cannot be measured at this time.

Guarantees

The accounting recognition provisions of FASB Inter-
pretation No. 43, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Dis-
closure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (“FASB Inter-
pretation No. 45”), became effective January 1, 2003 on a

prospective basis. FASB Interpretation No. 45 requires
that a guarantor recognize, at the inception or subsequent
modification of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of
the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. Un-
der prior accounting principles, a guarantee would not
result in recognition of a liability until a loss was probable
and reasonably estimable. Adoption of the accounting
recognition provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 did
not materially impact Sunoco’s consolidated financial

statements during 2004 and 2003.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior years’ financial statements
have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

2. Changes in Business

Acquisitions

Eagle Point Refinery and Related Assets—Effective
January 13, 2004, Sunoco completed the purchase of the
Eagle Point refinery and related assets from El Paso
Corporation (“El Paso”) for $250 million, including in-
ventory. In connection with this transaction, Sunoco also
assumed certain environmental and other liabilities. The
Eagle Point refinery is located in Westville, NJ, near the
Company'’s existing Northeast refining operations. Man-
agement believes the acquisition of the Eagle Point refin-
ery complements and enhances the Company’s refining
operations in the Northeast and enables the capture of
significant synergies in Northeast Refining. The related
assets acquired include certain pipeline and other logistics
assets associated with the refinery which Sunoco sub-
sequently sold in March 2004 for $20 million to Sunoco
Logistics Partners L.P. (the “Partnership”), a master lim-
ited partnership which is 62.6 percent owned by Sunoco
and conducts a substantial portion of the Company’s
logistics operations. No gain or loss was recognized on
this transaction.

The purchase price has been allocated to the assets ac-
quired and liabilities assumed based on their relative fair
market values at the acquisition date. The following is a
summary of the effects of the transaction on Sunoco’s
consolidated financial position:

(Millions of Dollars)

Increase in:
Inventories $159
Properties, plants and equipment, net 108
Accrued liabilities 3)
Other deferred credits and liabilities (14)
Cash paid for acquisition $250

Service Stations—In the second quarter of 2004, Sunoco

completed the purchase of 340 retail outlets operated
under the Mobil® brand from ConocoPhillips for $181




million, including inventory. Of the total sites acquired,
112 were owned outright or subject to long-term leases.
The remaining network consisted of contracts to supply
34 dealer-owned and operated locations and 194 branded
distributor-owned sites. These outlets, which included 31
sites that are Company-operated and have convenience
stores, are located primarily in Delaware, Maryland, Vir-
ginia and Washington, D.C. These sites are being re-
branded to Sunoco® gasoline and APlus® convenience
stores over time. In the second quarter of 2003, Sunoco
completed the purchase of 193 Speedway® retail gasoline
sites from a subsidiary of Marathon Ashland Petroleum
LLC for $162 million, including inventory. The sites,
which are located primarily in Florida and South Caro-
lina, were all Company-operated locations with con-
venience stores. Of the 193 outlets, Sunoco became the
lessee for 54 sites under long-term lease agreements. The
Speedway® sites were re-branded as Sunoco® locations
during the 2003-2004 period. The Company believes
these acquisitions fit its long-term strategy of building a
retail and convenience store network designed to provide
attractive long-term returns.

The purchase prices for the service stations acquired have
been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities as-
sumed based on their relative estimated fair market values
at the acquisition dates. The following is a summary of
the effects of these transactions on Sunoco’s consolidated
financial position:

Mobil® Speedway®
{Millions of Dollars) Sites Sites
Increase in;
Inventories $ 1 $ 21
Properties, plants and equipment, net 136 143
Deferred charges and other assets 45* —
Accrued liabilities 1) —
Other deferred credits and liabilities — (2)
Cash paid for acquisitions $181 $162

* Consists of $6 million allocated to goodwill and $39 million allocated to contracts with
dealers and distributors. The value of the dealer and distributor contracts is being
amortized primarily on a straight-line basis over a 10-15 year period, which represents
the expected iives of the Company's affiliation with these dealers and distributors.
During the eight-month period since the acquisition, this amortization expense
amounted to $1 million.

Transaction with Equistar Chemicals, L.P.—Effective
March 31, 2003, Sunoco formed a limited partnership
with Equistar Chemicals, L.P. (“Equistar”) involving
Equistar’s ethylene facility in LaPorte, TX. Equistar is a
wholly owned subsidiaty of Lyondell Chemical Company.
In connection with this transaction, Equistar and the new
partnership entered into a 700 million pounds-per-year,
15-year propylene supply contract with Sunoco. Cf this
amount, 500 million pounds per year is priced on a cost-
based formula that includes a fixed discount that declines
over the life of the contract, while the remaining 200
million pounds per year is based on market prices. Sunoco

also purchased Equistar’s polypropylene facility in Bay-
port, TX. Sunoco paid $194 million in cash and borrowed
$4 million from the seller to form the partnership and
acquire the Bayport facility.

Through the new partnership, the Company believes it
has secured a favorable long-term supply of propylene for
its Gulf Coast polypropylene business, while the acquis-
ition of the Bayport facility has increased the Company’s
polypropylene capacity. This transaction complements
and enhances the Company’s polypropylene business and
strengthens its market position.

The purchase price has been allocated to the assets ac-
quired and liabilities assumed based on their relative fair
market values at the acquisition date. The following is a
summary of the effects of the transaction on Sunoco’s
consolidated financial position:

{Millions of Dollars)

Increase in:
Inventories $ 1N
Properties, plants and equipment, net 30
Deferred charges and other assets 160*
Accrued liabilities 2
Retirement benefit liabilities M
198
Seller financing:
Current portion of long-term debt M
Long-term debt 3)
@
Cash paid for acquisition $1%4

*Represents the amounts allocated to the propylene supply contract and the related
partnership. The Company is amortizing this deferred cost over the 15-year life of the
supply contract in a manner that reflects the future decline in the fixed discount over
the contract period. This amortization expense amounted to $15 and $11 million in
2004 and 2003, respectively, and is expected to approximate $14 million in 2005, $13
miflion in 2008, $11 million in 2007, $11 million in 2008 and $11 million in 2009.
The unamortized cost related to the supply contract and related partnership amounted
to $134 million at December 31, 2004,

Pro Forma Data for Acquisitions—The unaudited pro
forma sales and other operating revenue, net income and
net income per share of common stock of Sunoco, as if
the acquisition of the Eagle Point refinery and related
assets, the Mobil® and Speedway® retail outlets and the
Bayport polypropylene facility had occurred on January 1,
2003, are as follows:

(Mitlions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts) 2004 2003
Sales and other operating revenue $25,741 $20,809
Net income $610 $355
Net income per share of common

stock—diluted $8.14 $4.58

The pro forma amounts above do not include any effects
attributable to the propylene supply contract or the re-
lated partnership with Equistar since the supply contract
did not exist prior to the transaction date.
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The pro forma data does not purport to be indicative of
the results that actually would have been obtained if the
Eagle Point refinery and related assets, the retail outlets
and the Bayport facility had been part of Sunoco’s busi-
nesses for the periods presented and is not intended to be
a projection of future results. Accordingly, the pro forma
results do not reflect any restructuring costs, changes in
operating levels, or potential cost savings and other
synergies prior to the acquisition dates.

Logistics Assets—In 2004, Sunoco Logistics Partners
L.P. completed the following acquisitions: in March, cer-
tain pipeline and other logistics assets previously pur-
chased by Sunoco with the Eagle Point refinery for $20
million; in April, two ConocoPhillips refined product
terminals located in Baltimore, MD and Manassas, VA
for $12 million; in June, an additional one-third interest
in the Harbor Pipeline from El Paso Corporation for $7
million; and in November, a refined product terminal
located in Columbus, OH from a subsidiary of Certified
Oil Company for $8 million. In November 2002, the
Partnership completed the acquisition from an affiliate of
Union Qil Company of California (“Unocal”} of interests
in three Midwestern and Western U.S. products pipeline
companies. This acquisition consisted of a 31.5 percent
interest in Wolverine Pipe Line Company, a 9.2 percent
interest in West Shore Pipe Line Company and a 14.0
percent interest in Yellowstone Pipe Line Company, for
$54 million. During September 2003, the Partnership
acquired an additional 3.1 percent interest in West Shore
Pipe Line Company for $4 million, increasing its overall
ownership interest in West Shore to 12.3 percent. In
November 2002, the Partnership also completed the ac-
quisition of an ownership interest in West Texas Gulf
Pipeline for $6 million, which coupled with the 17.3 per-
cent interest it acquired from Sunoco on the same date,
gave it a 43.8 percent ownership interest. The purchase
price of the 2004 acquisitions has been included in
properties, plants and equipment, while the purchase
price of the 2003 and 2002 acquisitions has been included
in investments and long-term receivables in the con-
solidated balance sheets. No pro forma information has
been presented since the acquisitions were not material
in relation to Sunoco's consolidated results of operations.

Divestments

Belvieu Environmental Fuels—In 2004, Sunoco sold its
one-third partnership interest in Belvieu Environmental
Fuels (“BEF”), a joint venture that owns and operates an
MTBE production facility in Mont Belvieu, TX, to Enter-
prise Products Operating L.P. (“Enterprise”) for $15 mil-
lion in cash, resulting in a $13 million loss on divestment
($8 million after tax). This charge is included as a loss on
divestment in other income, net, in the 2004 con-

solidated statement of operations. In connection with the
sale, Sunoco has retained one-third of any liabilities and
damages exceeding $300 thousand in the aggregate aris-
ing from any claims resulting from the ownership of the
assets and liabilities of BEF for the period prior to the di-
vestment date, except for any on-site environmental
claims which are retained by Enterprise. Due to the na-
ture of this indemnification, the Company cannot esti-
mate the fair value, nor determine the total amount of
the indemnification, if any. During 2003, as a result of
various governmental actions which caused a material
adverse impact on MTBE industry demand, BEF evaluated
its various alternative uses for its MTBE production fa-
cility, including the conversion to the production of iso-
octane or alkylate. In connection therewith, in 2003, BEF
recorded a write-down of its MTBE production facility to
its estimated fair value at that time. The estimated fair
value was determined by an independent appraiser using
present value techniques which reflect various alternative
operating assumptions. Sunoco’s share of this provision,
which is included as an equity loss in other income, net,
in the 2003 consolidated statement of operations,
amounted to $23 million ($15 million after tax).

Under an off-take agreement with BEF, which expired in
2004, Sunoco had agreed to purchase all of the MTBE
production from the facility. Sunoco’s total MTBE pur-
chases from BEF, which are included in costs of products
sold and operating expenses in the consolidated state-
ments of operations, were $149, $183 and $234 million
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Retail Portfolio Management Program—A Retail
Portfolio Management (“RPM”) program is ongoing,
which is selectively reducing the Company’s invested
capital in Company-owned or leased sites. During the
2003-2005 period, selected sites, including some of the
recently acquired Speedway® and Mobil® outlets, are
being divested with most of the sites being converted to
contract dealers and distributors. The Company expects
to generate divestment proceeds of approximately $170

. million, of which $120 million has been received in 2003

and 2004 related to the sale of 241 sites. Most of the
gasoline sales volume attributable to the divested sites has
been retained within the Sunoco branded business. Dur-
ing 2004 and 2003, net gains of $11 and $12 million, re-
spectively ($7 and $8 million after tax, respectively) were
recognized as gains on divestments in other income, net,
in the consolidated statements of operations in con-
nection with the RPM program. The Company expects
the RPM program to generate additional gains in 2005.

Midwest Marketing Divestment Program-—In 2003,

Sunoco announced its intention to sell its interest in 190
retail sites in Michigan and the southern Ohio markets of
Columbus, Dayton and Cincinnati (“Midwest Marketing




Divestment Program”). During 2003, 75 Company-owned
or leased properties and contracts to supply 23 dealer-
owned sites were divested under this program. The cash
generated from these divestments totaled $46 million,
which represented substantially all of the proceeds from
the program. The remaining 92 sites, which were vir-
tually all dealer-owned locations, were converted to dis-
tributor outlets in 2004. During 2003, a $14 million gain
($9 million after tax) was recognized as a gain on divest-
ments in other income, net, in the 2003 consolidated
statement of operations in connection with this program.

Private Label Credit Card Program—During 2004,
Sunoco seld its private label consumer and commercial
credit card business and related accounts receivable to
Citibank. In connection with this divestment, Sunoco
received $100 million in cash proceeds, recognized a $3
million gain on the divestment ($2 million after tax) and
established a $3 million accrual (32 million after tax) for
employee terminations under a postemployment plan and
for other exit costs. In addition, the two companies
signed a seven-year agreement for the operation and serv-
_icing of the Sunoco private label credit card program.

Plasticizer Business—During 2003, Sunoco anncunced
its decision to sell its plasticizer business and recorded a
$23 million provision ($15 million after tax) to write
down the assets held for sale to their estimated fair values
less costs to sell and established a $5 million accrual ($2
million after tax) for employee terminations under a
postemployment plan and for other exit costs. These
charges were recognized in the provision for write-down
of assets and other matters in the 2003 consolidated
statement of operations. Sunoco sold this business and
related inventory in January 2004 to BASF for approx-
imately $90 million in cash. The sale included the Com-
pany’s plasticizer facility in Pasadena, TX. The
‘Company’s Neville Island, PA site was not part of the
transaction and continues to produce plasticizers ex-
clusively for BASF under a three-year tolling agreement.
Sunoco also agreed to provide terminalling services at
this facility to BASF for a 15-year period. '

Write-Down of Assets and Other Matters

The following table summarizes information regarding the
provisions for write-down of assets and other matters:

) Pretax After-Tax
(Millions of Dollars) Provisions Provisions
2003 . |
Plasticizer business (see above) $28 $17
2002
Chemical facilities $21 $14
Toledo refinery processing units 4 2
Pipeline and refated terminal 5 3
Litigation accrual 4 3

$34 $22

During 2002, Sunoco shut down a polypropylene line at
its LaPorte, TX plant, an aniline and diphenylamine
production facility in Haverhill, OH, certain processing
units at its Toledo refinery and a pipeline located in
Pennsylvania and New York and a related refined prod-
ucts terminal. The chemical facilities and the Toledo te-
finery processing units were shut down to eliminate less
efficient production capacity, while the pipeline and
terminal were idled because they became uneconomic to
operate. In connection with these shutdowns, Sunoco
recorded provisions to write off the affected units and
established accruals for related exit costs. During 2002,
the Company also established an accrual relating to a
lawsuit concerning the Puerto Rico refinery, which was

divested in December 2001.

The following table summarizes the changes in the ac-
crual for exit costs and terminations:

{Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of year $17 $10 $24
Additional accruals 6 15 1
Payments charged against the
accruals (12) (8) (15)
Balance at end of year N $17 $10
3. Other Income, Net
(Millions of Dallars) 2004 2003 2002
(ain on income tax settlements
(Note 4) $28 $— $—
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
{Note 11) (83) — —
Equity income (10ss):
Pipeling joint ventures
{(Notes 2 and 7) 19 20 14
Belvieu Environmental Fuels
(Notes 2 and 7) 2 (29) 9
Epsilon Products Company, LLC
{Note 1) — — 3
QOther 5 2 3
Noncash reduction in minority
interests in cokemaking operations
(Note 13) 5 3 35
Gain on divestments (Note 2) 5 32 6
Other 19 12 14
$30 $40 $78

*In connection with the Company's adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46, effective
January 1, 2003, no equity income or loss has been reported for Epsilon as Sunoco is
consalidating this joint venture,
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4. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as
follows:

(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Income taxes currently payable:
U.S. federal $212  § 61 $(47)
State and other 55 11 2
267 72 (45)
Deferred taxes:
U.S. federal 100 101 18
State and other 23 10 1
123 1M1 19
$390 $183 $(26)

The reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) at the
U.S. statutory rate to the income tax expense (benefit) is
as follows:

(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Income tax expense (benefit) at U.S.
statutory rate of 35 percent $348 $173 $(26)
Increase (reduction) in income taxes
resulting from:
income tax settlements {5) — —
State income taxes net of Federal
income tax effects 51 14 2
Dividend exclusion for affiliated
companies 3) (4) 3)
Nonconventional fuel credit 0] (1) —
Other —_ 1 1
$390 $183 $(26)

The tax effects of temporary differences which comprise
the net deferred income tax liability are as follows:

The net deferred income tax liability is classified in the
consolidated balance sheets as follows:

December 31
(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Current asset $110 $ 9
Noncurrent liability (795) (602)
$(645) $(511)

Net cash payments for (refunds of) income taxes were
$152, $(42) and $(49) million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.

During 2004, Sunoco received a $2 million refund related
to the computation of interest on numerous federal in-
come tax issues. In connection with this settlement, a
$28 million pretax gain ($18 million after tax) was
recognized in other income, net, in the 2004 consolidated
statement of operations. Also in 2004, Sunoco settled
certain federal income tax issues that had been in dispute,
which increased net income by $5 million. In connection
with this settlement, Sunoco received $9 million of cash
proceeds.

5. Earnings Per Share Data

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the
weighted-average number of common shares used to
compute basic earnings per share (“EPS”) to those used to
compute diluted EPS:

(In Millions) 2004 2003 2002*
Weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding—basic 741 76.7 76.2
Add effect of dilutive stock incentive

awards 8 8 —
Weighted-average number of shares—

dituted 74.9 775 76.2

December 31
(Millions of Dollars} 2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Retirement benefit liabilities $ 196 $ 205
Environmental remediation liabilities 49 52
Other liabilities not yet deductible 200 209
Alternative minimum tax credit
carryforward — 63
Other 113 87
Valuation allowance™ 3) (8)
555 608
Deferred tax liabilities:
Properties, plants and eguipment (1,150) (1,043)
Other (50) (76)
{1,200) (1,119)
Net deferred income tax liability $ (645) $ (511)

*The valuation allowance reduces the benefit of certain state net operating loss
carryforwards to the amaunt that will mare likely than not be realized.

*Since the assumed issuance of common stock under stock incentive awards would not
have been dilutive, the weighted-average number of shares used to compute diluted
EPS is equal to the weighted-average number of shares used in the basic EPS
computation.

6. Inventories

December 31
{Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Crude oil $319 3150
Petroleum and chemical products 315 223
Materials, supplies and other 131 121
$765 $494

The current replacement cost of all inventories valued at
LIFO exceeded their carrying value by $1,550 and $1,029
million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
During 2002, Sunoco reduced certain inventory quanti-
ties which were valued at lower LIFO costs prevailing in
prior years. The effect of this reduction was to increase
2002 results of operations by $5 million after tax.




7. Investments and Long-Term Receivables

December 31
(Miflions of Dollars) 204 2003
Investments in and advances to affiliated
companies:
Pipefine joint ventures (Notss 2 and 3) sy $ 85
Belvieu Environmental Fuels (Notes 2 and 3) —_ 25
Other 1 12
95 122
Accounts and notes receivable 20 21

$115 $143

(Millions of Dollars)

Dividends received from affiliated companies amounted
to $23, $19 and $27 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, re-
spectively. Earnings employed in the business at De-
cember 31, 2004 include $31 million of undistributed
earnings of affiliated companies.

Summarized financial information for all entities ac-
counted for using the equity method is set forth below. -
Amounts attributable to acquired interests (Note 2) have
been included in the table since the acquisition dates.

100 Percent Sunoco Proportionate Share
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Balance Sheet Information, at December 31:
Current assets
QOther assets
Current liabilities
QOther liabilities
[ncome Statement Information, for the years ended December 31:
Revenues
Income before income tax expense
Net income (l0ss)

$243 $232 $297 $66 $62 $94
$544 $590 $762 $96 $118 $211
$135 $149 $166 $40 $36 $49
$468 $450 $596 $75 $75 $159

$1147  $971  $992  $304  $316  $358
$204  §91  $166  $39 $5  $31
$132  $2%6  $115  $26 $7)  $3

8. Properties, Plants and Equipment

Accumuiated
Depreciation,
Gross Depletion
(Millions of Doilars) Investments, and Net
December 31 at Cost Amortization Investment
2004
Refining and supply $4,176 $2,129 $2,047
Retai! marketing™ 1,582 658 924
Chemicals 1,217 270 1,007
Logistics 1,129 472 657
Coke 524 193 3
$8,688 $3,722 $4,966
2003
Refining and supply $ 3,891 $2,187 $1,704
Retail marketing* 1,512 650 862
Chemicals 1,282 263 1,019
Logistics 1,039 447 592
Coke 408 180 228
$8132 $3,727 $4,405

*Includes retail sites leased to third parties with a gross investment totaling $611 and
$543 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Related accumulated
depreciation totaled $298 and $303 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Annual future minimum rentals due Sunoco, as lessor, on
noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2004 for
retail sites are as follows (in millions of dollars):

Year ending December 31:

2005 _ $ 37
2006 26
2007 14
2008 7
2009 5
Thereafter 18

$107
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9. Retirement Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Postretirement Health Care Plans

Sunoco has noncontributory defined benefit pension plans (“defined benefit plans”) which provide retirement benefits
for approximately one-half of its employees. Sunoco also has plans which provide health care benefits for substantially
all of its retirees (“postretirement benefit plans”). The postretirement benefit plans are unfunded and the costs are
shared by Sunoco and its retirees. The levels of required retiree contributions to postretirement benefit plans are ad-
justed periodically, and the plans contain other cost-sharing features, such as deductibles and coinsurance. In addition,
in 1993, Sunoce implemented a dollar cap on its future contributions for its principal postretirement health care bene-
fits plan.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Congress passed the Medicare Prescription Drug Act of 2003, which authorized Medi-
care to provide prescription drug benefits to retirees. To encourage employers to retain or provide postretirement drug
benefits for their Medicare-eligible employees, beginning in 2006, the federal government will begin to make subsidy
payments to employers who sponsor postretirement benefit plans under which retirees receive prescription drug bene-
fits that are “actuarially equivalent” to the prescription drug benefits provided under Medicare. In May 2004, FASB
Staff Position No. 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Im-
provement and Modernization Act of 2003” (“FSP No. 106-2"), was issued which provides guidance on accounting for
the effects of the new Medicare legislation. Adoption of FSP No. 106-2, which became effective in the third quarter of
2004, did not materially impact Sunoco’s consolidated financial statements.

Defined benefit plans and postretirement benefit plans expense consisted of the following components:

Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plans

(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Service cost (cost of benefits earned during the year) $ 46 $38 $ 33 $8 $6 $ 7
Interest cost on benefit obligations 86 89 89 24 25 28
Expected return on plan assets (84) (85) {100) - — —
Amartization of:

Prior service cost (benefit) 3 3 2 @ (12) (10)

Unrecognized losses 3 21 2 3 3 2

Net curtailment gains — — — (1) —
$84 $66 $ 26 $28 $21 $27

Defined benefit plans and postretirement benefit plans expense is determined using actuarial assumptions as of the
beginning of the year. The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine defined benefit plans and
postretirement benefit plans expense:

Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plans
(In Percentages) 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.00% 6.75% 7.25% 6.00% 6.75% 7.25%
Long-term expected rate of return on plan assets 8.7%% 8.75% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

The expected rate of return on plan assets was estimated based on a variety of factors including the historical
investment return achieved over a long-term period, the targeted allocation of plan assets and expectations
concerning future returns in the marketplace for both equity and debt securities.




The following tables set forth the components of the changes in benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets during
2004 and 2003 as well as the funded status and amounts both recognized and not recognized in the consolidated bal-
ance sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Defined Benefit Plans
2004 2003

Postretirement

Funded  Uniunded Funded  Uniundeg ~ _ BenefitPlans
(Miflions of Dollars) Plans Plans Plans Plans 2004 2003
Benefit obligations at beginning of year* $1,313 $ 128 $1,235 $ 118 $ 409 $ 398
Service cost 43 3 36 2 8 6
Interest cost 78 8 81 8 24 25
Actuarial losses 60 10 120 1 4** 34
Plan amendments (14) —_ — 4 16 (26)
Bengfits paid (131) (12) (159) (15) 41) (36)
Premiums paid by participants — — — — 9 8
Benefit obligations at end of year* $1,349 $137 $1,313 $128 $429 $ 409
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year*** $1,071 ‘ $ 930
Actual return on plan assets 123 211
Employer contributions 95 89
Benefits paid from plan assets (131) (159)
Fair valug of plan assets at end of year™* $1,158 $1,071
Unfunded accumulated obligation $ (40) $(122) $ (12) $(120)
Provision for future salary increases (151) {15) {(121) {8)
Benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at end of year (191) (137) (242) (128) $(429) $(409)
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) 17 (1) 18 (1) (27) (34)
Unrecognized net 10ss 374 57 382 bl 84** 83
Net amount recognized in balance sheet at end of year $ 200 $ (81) $ 158 $(78)  $(372)  $(360)

* Represents the projected benefit obligations for defined benefit plans and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations (“APBQ”) for postretirement benefit plans. The
accumulated benefit obligations for funded and unfunded defined benefit plans amounted to $1,198 and $122 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004, and $1,192 and $120
million, respectively, at December 31, 2003.

** Inctudes a $10 mittion actuartal gain attributable to the prescription drug subsidy provided by the Medicare Prescription Drug Act of 2003.
*** There are no pfan assets invested in Company stack.

The net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 is classified as follows:

Defined Postretirement

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
{Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2004 2003
Prepaid retirement costs $ 1 $ 1 $— ¢ —
Retirement benefit liabilities (167) (244) (372) (360)
Deferred charges and other assets™ 19 21 — —
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss (before refated tax benefit)** 256 292 —_ —

$119 $ 80 $(372)  $(360)

* Represents an intangible asset for which an equivaient additional minimum liability is included in retirement benefit liabililies.
** Represents a separate component of shareholders’ equity for which an equivalent additional minimum liability is included in retirement benefit liabilities.

The asset allocations attributable to the funded defined benefit plans at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the target
allocation of plan assets for 2005, by asset category, are as follows:

{In Percentages) 2005 Target* 2004 2003
Asset category:
Equity securities 60% 64% 62%
Debt securities 35 32 33
Other 5 4 5
Total 100% 100% 100%

*The target allocation has been in effect since 1999.
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The investment strategy of the Company’s funded defined benefit plans is to achieve consistent positive returns, after
adjusting for inflation, and ro maximize long-term total return within prudent levels of risk through a combination of
income and capital appreciation. Risk to capital is minimized through the diversification of investments across and
within various asset categories.

Management currently anticipates making $50 million of voluntary contributions to the Company’s funded defined
benefit plans in 2005. In March 2002, a temporary interest-rate-relief bill was enacted by Congress that mitigated the
impact of a decline in interest rates used in pension funding calculations. In April 2004, Congress enacted additional
legislation that continues the use of more favorable interest rates for determining funding requirements through
2005. The new billreplaces the interest rate on 30-year Treasury bonds with a rate based on corporate bonds.

The expected benefit payments through 2014 for the defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans are as follows:
Defined Benefit Plans

Funded Unfunded Postretirement
{Millions of Dollars) Plans Plans Banefit Plans*
Year ending December 31:
2005 $104 $12 $48
2006 $108 $12 $51
2007 $114 $15 $54
2008 $118 $18 $56
2009 $121 $17 $57
2010 through 2014 $653 $62 $308

* Betore premiums paid by participants.

The measurement date for the Company’s defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans is December 31. The follow-
ing weighted-average assumptions were used at December 31, 2004 and 2003 to determine benefit obligations for the
plans:

Defined Postretirement
Benefit Plans Bengfit Plans
(In Percentages) 2004 2003 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.75% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

The health care cost trend assumption used at December
31, 2004 to compute the APBO for the postretirement
benefit plans was an increase of 10.3 percent (11.4 per-
cent at December 31, 2003), which is assumed to decline
gradually to 5.5 percent in 2008 and to remain at that
level thereafter. A one-percentage point change each
year in assumed health care cost trend rates would have
the following effects at December 31, 2004:

1-Percentage
Point Increase

1-Percentage

(Millions of Dollars) Point Decrease

Effect on total of service and
interest cost components of
postretirement benefits iexpense

Effect on APBO

$1
$10

$(1)
$(12)

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Sunoco has defined contribution pension plans which
provide retirement benefits for most of its employees.
Sunoco’s contributions, which are principally based on a
percentage of employees’ annual base compensation and

are charged against income as incurred, amounted to $21,
$20 and $19 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively.

‘Sunoco’s principal defined contribution plan is SunCAP.

Sunoco matches 100 percent of employee contributions

to this plan up to 5 percent of an employee’s base
compensation. SunCAP is a combined profit sharing and
employee stock ownership plan which contains a provision
designed to permit SunCAP, only upon approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”), to borrow in or-
der to purchase shares of Company common stock. As

of December 31, 2004, no such borrowings had been
approved.




10. Short-Term Borrowings and Credit Facilities

In June 2004, the Company entered into a new revolving
credit facility (the “New Facility”) totaling $900 million,
which matures in June 2009. The New Facility replaces a
prior $785 million facility. The New Facility provides the
Company with access to short-term financing and is in-
tended to support the issuance of commercial paper and
letters of credit. The Company also can borrow directly
from the participating banks under the New Facility. The
New Facility is subject to commitment fees, which are
not material. Under the terms of the New Facility,
Sunoco is required to maintain tangible net worth (as de-
fined in the New Facility) in an amount greater than or
equal to targeted tangible net worth (targeted tangible
net worth being determined by adding $1.125 billion and
50 percent of the excess of net income over share re-
purchases {as defined in the New Facility) for each quat-
ter ended after March 31, 2004). At December 31, 2004,
the Company’s tangible net worth was $1.7 billion and its
targeted tangible net worth was $1.2 billion. The New
Facility also requires that Sunoco’s ratio of consolidated
net indebtedness, including borrowings of Sunoco Logis-
tics Partners L.P., to consolidated capitalization (as those
terms are defined in the New Facility) not exceed .60 to
1. At December 31, 2004, this ratio was .37 to 1. At De-
cember 31, 2004, the New Facility is being used to sup-
port $100 million of commercial paper (with a weighted-
average interest rate of 2.13 percent) and $103 million of
floating-rate notes due in 2034 (Note 11).

In November 2004, Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. re-
placed its three-year $250 million revolving credit facility
with a new $250 million revolving credit facility, which
matures in November 2009. This facility is available to
fund the Partnership’s working capital requirements, to
finance acquisitions, and for general partnership purposes.
It includes a $20 million distribution sublimit that is avail-
able for distributions to third-party unitholders and Suno-
co. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $65 million was
outstanding under these facilities (Note 11). The current
credit facility contains covenants requiring the Partnership
to maintain a ratio of up to 4.5 to 1 of its consolidated total
debt to its consolidated EBITDA (each as defined in the
current credit facility) and an interest coverage ratio (as
defined in the current credit facility) of at least 3 to 1. At
December 31, 2004, the Partnership’s ratio of its con-
solidated debt to its consolidated EBITDA was 2.8 to 1 and
the interest coverage ratio was 5.4 to 1.

The Company’s Epsilon joint venture has a $40 million
revolving credit facility that matures in September 2006.
The credit facility contains restrictive covenants which,
among other things, limit the incurrence of additional
debt and the sale of assets by Epsilon. At December 31,

2004, $6 million was outstanding under this credit fa-
cility, which is guaranteed by Sunoco, Inc. Sunoco, Inc.
also guarantees Epsilon’s $120 million term loan due in

September 2006 (Note 11).

11. Long-Term Debt

{Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
933 % debentures, payable $16 in 2014 and

$20in 2015 and 2016 $ 56 $ 200
9% debentures due 2024 65 100
7%% notes due 2009 146 200
7.60% environmental industrial revenue

bonds paid in 2004 — 100
7% notes due 2012 (Note 13) 250 250
7 V8% notes paid in 2004 — 100
678% notes due 2006 54 150
6%4% notes due 2011 177 200
634% convertible subordinated debentures due

2012 (Note 14) 9 10
4%3% notes due 2014 250 —
Floating-rate notes (interest of 2.17% at

December 31, 2004) due 2034 (Note 10) 103 —

Revolving credit loan, floating interest rate

(2.94% at December 31, 2004) due 2009

(Note 10) 65 65
Floating-rate notes (interest of 2.72% at

December 31, 2004) due 2006 (Note 10) 120 120
Revolving credit loans, floating interest rate
(3.42% at December 31, 2004) due 2006

(Note 10) 6 28

Other 85 85

1,386 1,608

Less; unamortized discount 4 7

current portion 3 103

$1,379 1,498

The aggregate amount of long-term debt maturing and
sinking fund requirements in the years 2005 through
2009 is as follows (in millions of dollars):

2005 $3 2008 $5
2006 $184 2009 $316
2007 $8

In 2004, the Company repurchased outstanding long-
term debt with a par value of $352 million utilizing the
net proceeds from the issuance under its shelf registration
statement of the 475 percent notes due 2014 and $154
million of cash. Of the debt repurchased, $240 million
was attributable to tender offer purchases of the 9¥5 per-
cent debentures and the 6 78 percent notes and $112 mil-
lion was attributable to open market purchases of the 9
percent debentures, 7 %4 percent notes and 64 percent
notes. Sunoco recognized a $53 million loss ($34 million
after tax) on the early extinguishment of this debt, which
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is reflected in other income, net, in the 2004 con-
solidated statement of operations {Note 3).

In 2004, the Company issued $103 million of floating-
rate notes due in 2034 and used the proceeds to redeem
the 7.60 percent environmental industrial revenue bonds
that were due in 2024. These floating-rate notes, which
are remarketed weekly, have been classified as long-term
debt as the Company intends to remarket the notes. In
the event the notes are not remarketed, the Company
can refinance them on a long-term basis utilizing the
New Facility (Note 10). In 2004, the Company also is-
sued $100 million of commercial paper and used the pro-
ceeds to repay its maturing 7 ¥8 percent notes.

Cash payments for interest related to short-term borrow-
ings and long-term debt (net of amounts capitalized) were

$98, $111 and $100 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, re-
spectively.

The following table summarizes Sunoco’s long-term debt
(including current pottion) by issuer:

December 31
{Miltions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Sunoco, Inc. $ 702 $ 807
Sunoco Logistics PartnersiL.P. 313 313
Epsilon Products Company, LLC 126 148
Other 241 333

$1,382  $1,601

12. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Leases and Other Commitments

Sunoco, as lessee, has noncancelable operating leases for
marine transportation vessels, service stations, office
space and other property and equipment. Total rental
expense for such leases for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002
amounted to $197, $144 and $136 million, respectively,
which include contingent rentals totaling $15, $17 and
$16 million, respectively. Approximately 5 percent of
total rental expense was recovered through related sub-
lease rental income during 2004.

The aggregate amount of future minimum annual rentals
applicable to noncancelable operating leases, including
amounts pertaining to lease extension options which are
assumed to be exercised, are as follows (in millions of
dollars):

Current Lease

Lease  Extension
Term Options Total

Year ending December 31:

2005 $157 $ 1 § 158
2006 141 4 145
2007 122 7 129
2008 101 9 110
2009 87 10 97
Thereafter 270 246 516
Future minimurn lease payments $878  $277 1,155
Less: Sub-Iease rental income (25)
Net minimum lease payments $1,130

Approximately 36 percent of the aggregate amount of
future minimum annual rentals applicable to non-
cancelable operating leases relates to time charters for
marine transportation vessels. Most of these time charters
contain terms of up to seven years with renewal and sub-
lease options. The lease payments consist of a fixed-price
minimum and a variable component based on spot-
market rates. In the table above, the variable component
of the lease payments has been estimated utilizing the
average spot-market prices for the year 2004. The actual
variable component of the lease payments attributable to
these time charters could vary significantly from the
estimates included in the table.

Sunoco is contingently liable under various arrangements
which guarantee debt of third parties aggregating to ap-
proximately $11 million at December 31, 2004. At this
time, management does not believe that it is likely that
the Company will have to perform under any of these
guarantees,

Over the years, Sunoco has sold thousands of retail gaso-
line outlets as well as refineries, terminals, coal mines, oil
and gas properties and various other assets. In connection
with these sales, the Company has indemnified the pur-
chasers for potential environmental and other contingent
liabilities related to the period prior to the transaction
dates. In most cases, the effect of these arrangements was
to afford protection for the purchasers with respect to
obligations for which the Company was already primarily
liable. While some of these indemnities have spending
thresholds which must be exceeded before they become
operative, ot limits on Sunoco’s maximum exposure, they
generally are not limited. The Company recognizes the
fair value of the obligations undertaken for all guarantees
entered into or modified after January 1, 2003. In addi-




tion, the Company accrues for any obligations under
these agreements when a loss is probable and reasonably
estimable. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the
maximum potential amount of future payments under
these agreements.

Sunoco is a party under agreements which provide for
future payments to secure wastewater treatment services
at its Toledo refinery and coal handling services at its
Indiana Harbor cokemaking facility. The fixed and
determinable amounts of the obligations under these
agreements are as follows (in millions of doliars):

Year ending December 31:

2005 $ 9
2006 9
2007 9
2008 8
2009 8
2010 through 2018 46
Total 89
Less: Amount representing interest (28)
Total at present value $ 61

Payments under these agreements, including variable
components, totaled $19, $18 and $18 million for the
years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2001, Sunoco completed the acquis-
ition of Aristech Chemical Corporation (“Aristech”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation
(“Mitsubishi”), for $506 million in cash and the assump-
tion of $163 million of debt. Contingent payments with a
net present value as of the acquisition date of up to $167
million (the “earn out”) may also be made if realized mar-
gins for polypropylene and phenol exceed certain agreed-
upon thresholds through 2006. As of December 31, 2004,
no such payments have been earned. Since the $167 mil-

lion represents a present value as of January 1, 2001, the
actual amounts that could ultimately be paid under the
earn out provisions increase over time by a contract-
specified 11 percent per year. However, the contingent
payments are limited to $90 million per year. Any earn
out payments would be treated as adjustments to the pur-
chase price. In addition, Mitsubishi is responsible for up to
$100 million of any potential environmental liabilities of
the business identified through 2026 arising out of or re-
lated to the period prior to the acquisition date.

Environmental Remediation Activities

Sunoco is subject to extensive and frequently changing
federal, state and local laws and regulations, including,
but not limited to, those relating to the discharge of
materials into the environment or that otherwise deal
with the protection of the environment, waste manage-
ment and the characteristics and composition of fuels. As
with the industry generally, compliance with existing and
anticipated laws and regulations increases the overall cost
of operating Sunoco’s businesses, including capital costs
to construct, maintain and upgrade equipment and facili-
ties. Existing laws and regulations result in liabilities and
loss contingencies for remediation at Sunoco’s facilities
and at third-party or formerly owned sites. The accrued
liability for environmental remediation is classified in the
consolidated balance sheets as follows:

__Decamter31

(Millions of Doliars) 2004 2003
Accrued liabilities $39 $ 44
Other deferred credits and liabilities 109 102
$148 $146

The following table summarizes the changes in the ac-
crued liability for environmental remediation activities
by category:

Marketing Chemicals Pipelines Hazardous
(Millions of Dollars) Refineries Sites Facilities and Terminals Waste Sites Other Total
At December 31, 2001 $ 61 $ 45 $10 $ 18 $ 8 $3 $145
Accruals (2) 36 1 7 — — 42
Payments (7) (24) (3) (12) 3) — (49)
Other — 15 — 6 — — 21
At December 31, 2002 $ 52 $ 72 $8 $19 $5 $3 $159
Accruals — 23 1 6 1 1 30
Payments (9) (22) (2) (10) 1 — (44)
Other” — — — — — 1
At December 31, 2003 $ 43 $ 74 $7 $15 $5 $ 2 $146
Accruals 2 20 —_ 3 2 — 27
Payments (10) (21) (M 3) 3) — (38)
Acquisitions and divestments 1" —_— (1) — — — 10
Other* - 2 — — — — 3
At December 31, 2004 $ 48 $74 $5 $15 $4 §$2 $148

* Consists principally of increases in the accrued liability for which recovery from third parties is probable.
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Sunoco’s accruals for environmental remediation activ-
ities reflect its estimates of the most likely costs that will
be incurred over an extended period to remediate identi-
fied conditions for which the costs are both probable and
reasonably estimable. Engineering studies, historical
experience and other factors are used to identify and
evaluate remediation jalternatives and their related costs
in determining the estimated accruals for environmental
remediation activities. Losses attributable to unasserted
claims are also reflected in the accruals to the extent they
are probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable.

Total future costs for the environmental remediation ac-
tivities identified above will depend upon, among other
things, the identification of any additional sites, the
determination of the extent of the contamination at each
site, the timing and nature of required remedial actions,
the technology available and needed to meet the various
existing legal requirements, the nature and terms of cost-
sharing arrangements with other potentially responsible
parties, the availability of insurance coverage, the nature
and extent of future environmental laws, inflation rates
and the determination of Sunoco’s liability at the sites, if
any, in light of the number, participation level and
financial viability of the other parties. Management be-
lieves it is reasonably possible (i.e., less than probable but
greater than remote) that additional environmental re-
mediation losses will be incurred. At December 31, 2004,
the aggregate of the estimated maximum additional rea-
sonably possible losses, which relate to numerous in-
dividual sites, totaled approximately $90 million.
However, the Company believes it is very unlikely that it
will realize the maximum loss at every site. Furthermore,
the recognition of additional losses, if and when they
were to occur, would likely extend over many years and,
therefore, likely would not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position.

Under various environmental laws, including the Re-
source Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) (which
relates to solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage
and disposal), Sunoco has initiated corrective remedial
action at its facilities, formerly owned facilities and third-
party sites. At the Company’s major manufacturing facili-
ties, Sunoco has consistently assumed continued
industrial use and a containment/remediation strategy
focused on eliminating unacceptable risks to human
health or the environment. The remediation accruals for
these sites reflect that strategy. Accruals include amounts
to prevent off-site migration and to contain the impact
on the facility property, as well as to address known, dis-
crete areas requiring remediation within the plants.
Activities include closure of RCRA solid waste manage-
ment units, recovery of hydrocarbons, handling of im-

pacted soil, mitigation of surface water impacts and pre-
vention of off-site migration.

Many of Sunoco’s current terminals are being addressed
with the above containment/remediation strategy. At
some smaller or less impacted facilities and some pre-
viously divested terminals, the focus is on remediating
discrete interior areas to attain regulatory closure.

Sunoco owns or operates certain retail gasoline outlets
where releases of petroleum products have occurred. Fed-
eral and state laws and regulations require that con-
tamination caused by such releases at these sites and at
formerly owned sites be assessed and remediated to meet
the applicable standards. The obligation for Sunoco to
remediate this type of contamination varies, depending
on the extent of the release and the applicable laws and
regulations. A portion of the remediation costs may be
recoverable from the reimbursement fund of the appli-
cable state, after any deductible has been met.

Future costs for environmental remediation activities at
the Company's marketing sites also will be influenced by
the extent of MTBE contamination of groundwater, the
cleanup of which will be driven by thresholds based on
drinking water protection. Though not all groundwater is
used for drinking, several states have initiated or proposed
more stringent MTBE cleanup requirements. Cost in-
creases result directly from extended remedial operations
and maintenance on sites that, under prior standards,
could otherwise have been completed. Cost increases will
also result from installation of additional remedial or
monitoring wells and purchase of more expensive equip-
ment because of the presence of MTBE. While actual
cleanup costs for specific sites are variable and depend on
many of the factors discussed above, expansion of similar
MTBE remediation thresholds to additional states or
adoption of even more stringent requirements for MTBE
remediation would result in further cost increases.

The accrued liability for hazardous waste sites is attribut-
able to potential obligations to remove or mitigate the
environmental effects of the disposal or release of certain
pollutants at third-party sites pursuant to the Compre-
hensive Environmental Response Compensation and
Liability Act (“CERCLA”) (which relates to releases and
remediation of hazardous substances) and similar state
laws. Under CERCLA, Sunoco is potentially subject to
joint and several liability for the costs of remediation at
sites at which it has been identified as a “potentially re-
sponsible party” (“PRP”). As of December 31, 2004,
Sunoco had been named as a PRP at 46 sites identified or
potentially identifiable as “Superfund” sites under federal
and state law. The Company is usually one of a number of
companies identified as a PRP at a site. Sunoco has re-




viewed the nature and extent of its involvement at each
site and other relevant circumstances and, based upon the
other parties involved or Sunoco’s negligible partic-
ipation therein, believes that its potential liability asso-
ciated with such sites will not be significant.

Management believes that none of the current re-
mediation locations, which are in various stages of on-
going remediation, is individually material to Sunoco as
its largest accrual for any one Superfund site, operable
unit or remediation area was less than $7 million at De-
cember 31, 2004. As a result, Sunoco’s exposure to ad-
verse developments with respect to any individual site is
not expected to be material. However, if changes in envi-
ronmental regulations occur, such changes could impact
multiple Sunoco facilities and formerly owned and third-
party sites at the same time. As a result, from time to
time, significant charges against income for environ-
mental remediation may occur.

The Company maintains insurance programs that cover
certain of its existing or potential environmental li-
abilities, which programs vary by year, type and extent of
coverage. For underground storage tank remediations, the
Company can also seek reimbursement through various
state funds of certain remediation costs above a deduc-
tible amount. For certain acquired properties, the Com-
pany has entered into arrangements with the sellers or
others that allocate environmental liabilities and provide
indemnities to the Company for remediating con-
tamination that occurred prior to the acquisition dates.
Some of these environmental indemnifications are sub-
ject to caps and limits. No accruals have been recorded
for any potential contingent liabilities that will be funded
by the prior owners as management does not believe,
based on current information, that it is likely that any of
the former owners will not perform under any of these
agreements. Other than the preceding arrangements, the
Company has not entered into any arrangements with
third parties to mitigate its exposure to loss from
environmental contamination. Claims for recovery of
environmental liabilities that are probable of realization
totaled $21 million at December 31, 2004 and are in-
cluded in deferred charges and other assets in the con-
solidated balance sheets.

Environmental Regulatory Matters

Since the late 1990s, the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA”) has undertaken significant enforcement
initiatives under authority of the Clean Air Act, targeting
industries with large manufacturing facilities that are sig-
nificant sources of emissions, including the refining in-
dustry. The EPA has asserted that many of these facilities
have modified or expanded their operations over time
without complying with New Source Review regulations
that require permits and new emission controls in con-

nection with any significant facility modifications or ex-
pansions that could increase emissions above certain
thresholds, and have violated various other provisions of
the Clean Air Act, including New Source Review and
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (“NSR/PSD”) Pro-
gram, Benzene Waste Operations National Emissions
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAP”), Leak
Detection and Repair (“LDAR”) and flaring requirements.
As part of this enforcement initiative, the EPA has entered
into Consent Agreements with several refiners that re-
quire them to pay civil fines and penalties and make sig-
nificant capital expenditures to install emissions-control
equipment at selected facilities, For some of these refin-
eries, the cost of the required emissions-control equipment
is significant, depending on the size, age and configuration
of the refinery. Sunoco received information requests in
2000, 2001 and 2002 in connection with the enforcement
initiative pertaining to its Marcus Hook, Philadelphia,
Toledo and Tulsa refineries, the Puerto Rico refinery di-
vested in 2001 and its phenol facility in Philadelphia.
Sunoco has completed its responses to the EPA. In 2003,
Sunoco received an additional information request at its
phenol plant in Philadelphia.

Sunoco has received Notices of Violation and Findings of
Violation from the EPA relating to its Marcus Hook,
Philadelphia and Toledo refineries. The Notices and
Findings of Violation allege failure to comply with certain
requirements relating to benzene wastewater emissions at
the Company’s Marcus Hock, Toledo and Philadelphia
refineries and failure to comply with certain requirements
relating to leak detection and repair at the Toledo refin-
ery. In addition, the EPA has alleged that: at the Compa-
ny’s Philadelphia refinery, certain modifications were
made to one of the fluid catalytic cracking units in 1992
and 1998 without obtaining requisite permits; at the
Company’s Marcus Hook refinery, certain modifications
were made to the fluid catalytic cracking unit in 1990
and 1996 without obtaining requisite permits; and at the
Company’s Toledo refinery, certain physical and opera-
tional changes were made to the fluid catalytic cracking
unit in 1985 without obtaining requisite permits. The
EPA has also alleged that at the Company’s Toledo refin-
ery, certain physical and operational changes were made
to the sulfur plant in 1995, 1998 and 1999 without
obtaining requisite permits; certain physical and opera-
tional changes were made to a flare system without
obtaining requisite permits; and that the flare system was
not being operated in compliance with the Clean Air
Act. Sunoco has met with representatives of the EPA on
these Notices and Findings of Violation with the aim of
trying to resolve these matters. Although Sunoco does
not believe that it has violated any Clean Air Act
requirements, as part of this initiative, Sunoco could be
required to make significant capital expenditures, incur
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higher operating costs, operate these refineries at reduced
levels and/or pay significant penalties. There are no li-
abilities accrued at December 31, 2004 in connection
with this initiative. With respect to the Company’s Eagle
Point refinery acquired effective January 13, 2004 (Note
2}, El Paso Corporation, its prior owner, has entered into
a consent decree withithe EPA and the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection as part of EPA’s
enforcement initiative. Sunoco does not anticipate sub-
stantial capital expenditures on its part as a result of El
Paso’s consent decree.

Energy policy legislation continues to be debated in the
U.S. Congress. The Bush Administration and the U.S.
Senate and U.S. House have been unable to reach
agreement on final legislation. There are numerous issues
being debated, including an MTBE phase-out, ethanol and
MTBE “safe harbor” liability provisions, ethanol and re-
newable fuels mandates and other issues that could im-
pact gasoline production. Sunoco uses MTBE and ethanol
as oxygenates in different geographic areas of its refining
and marketing system. While federal action is uncertain,
California, New York and Connecticut began enforcing
state-imposed MTBE bans on January 1, 2004. Sunoco
does not market in Cadlifornia but is complying with the
bans in New York and Connecticut. These bans have
resulted in unique gasoline blends, which could have a
significant impact on market conditions depending on
the details of future regulations, the impact on gasoline
supplies, the cost and availability of ethanol and alternate
oxygenates if the minimum oxygenate requirements re-
main in effect, and the ability of Sunoco and the industry
in general to recover their costs in the marketplace. A
number of additional states, including some in the north-
eastern United States, are considering or have appréved
bans of MTBE, with legislative and administrative actions
underway that could lead to additional MTBE bans by
2007.

MTBE Litigation

Sunoco, along with other refiners, manufacturers and sell-
ers of gasoline, owners and operators of retail gasoline
sites, and manufacturers of MTBE, are defendants in over
60 cases in 17 states involving the manufacture and use of
MTBE in gasoline and MTBE contamination in ground-
water. Plaintiffs, which include private well owners, water
providers and certain governmental authorities, allege-
that refiners and suppliers of gasoline containing MTBE
are responsible for manufacturing and distributing a de-
fective product. Plaintiffs also generally are alleging
groundwater contamination, nuisance, trespass, negli-
gence, failure to warn, violation of environmental laws
and deceptive business practices. Plaintiffs are seeking
compensatory damages, and in some cases injunctive re-
lief and punitive damages. Most of the public water pro-

vider cases have been removed to federal court by motion
of the defendants and consolidated for pretrial purposes
in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
New York. Motions to remand these cases to their re-
spective state courts have been denied. Up to this point,
for the group of MTBE cases currently pending, there has
been little information developed about the plaintiffs’
legal theories or the facts that would be relevant to an
analysis of potential exposure. Based on the current law
and facts available at this time, Sunoco believes that
these cases will not have a material adverse effect on its
consolidated financial position.

Conclusion

Many other legal and administrative proceedings are
pending or possible against Sunoco from its current and
past operations, including proceedings related to
commercial and tax disputes, product liability, antitrust,
employment claims, leaks from pipelines and under-
ground storage tanks, natural resource damage claims,
premises-liability claims, allegations of exposures of third
parties to toxic substances (such: as benzene or asbestos)
and general environmental claims. The ultimate outcome
of these proceedings and the matters discussed above
cannot be ascertained at this time; however, it is reason-
ably possible that some of them could be resolved un-
favorably to Sunoco. Management believes that these
matters could have a significant impact on results of
operations for any one year. However, management does
not believe that any additional liabilities which may arise
pertaining to such matters would be material in relation
to the consolidated financial position of Sunoco at

December 31, 2004.

13. Minority Interests
Cokemaking Operations

In July 2002, Sunoco transferred an additional interest in
its Indiana Harbor cokemaking operation to a third-party
investor for $215 million in cash. Since 1995, Sunoco has
received, in four separate transactions, a total of $724
million in exchange for interests in its Indiana Harbor
and Jewell cokemaking operations. Sunoco did not
recognize any gain at the dates of these transactions be-
cause the third-party investors were entitled to a prefer-
ential return on their investments. The preferential
returns are currently equal to 98 percent of the cash flows
and tax benefits from the respective cokemaking oper-
ations during the preferential return periods, which con-
tinue until the investors currently entitled to preferential
returns recover their investments and achieve a cumu-
lative annual after-tax return that averages approximately
10 percent. Income is recognized as coke production and




sales generate cash flows and tax benefits which are allo-
cated to Sunoco and the third-party investors, while ex-
pense is recognized to reflect the investors’ preferential
returns.

The preferential return period for the Jewell operation
was expected to end in 2011. However, due to antici-
pated higher costs associated with coal purchases from
the Coke business’ coal operation over the next few years,
the Company anticipates that the preferential return
period will likely extend indefinitely. The preferential
return period for the Indiana Harbor operation is ex-
pected to end in 2007. Due to the difficulty of forecasting
operations and tax benefits into the future, the accuracy
of these estimates is subject to considerable uncertainty.
The estimated lengths of these preferential return periods
are based upon the Company’s current expectations of
future cash flows and tax benefits, which are impacted by
sales volumes and prices, raw material and operating
costs, capital expenditure levels and the ability to recog-
nize tax benefits under the current tax law (see below).
Better-than-expected cash flows and tax benefits will
shorten the investors’ preferential return periods, while
lower-than-expected cash flows and tax benefits will
lengthen the periods.

Following any expiration of these preferential return peri-
ods, the investor in the Jewell operation would be enti-
tled to a minority interest in the related cash flows and
tax benefits amounting to 18 percent, while the investors
in the Indiana Harbor operation would be entitled to a
minority interest in the related cash flows and tax bene-
fits initially amounting to 34 percent and thereafter de-
clining to 10 percent by 2038.

Under the current tax law, the coke production at Jewell
and Indiana Harbor will no longer be eligible to generate
nonconventional fuel tax credits after 2007. Prior to 2008,
the tax credits would be phased out, on a ratable basis, if
the average annual price of domestic crude oil at the well-
head increases on an inflation-adjusted basis from $50.14
to $62.94 per barrel (in 2003 dollars). If this were to occur,
the Company could be required to make cash payments to
the third-party investors. Payments for the Jewell or In-
diana Harbor operation would be required only if the ex-
pected end of the respective preferential return period is
extended by two years or more and if the respective third-
party investor is expected to achieve a cumulative after-tax
return of less than approximately 6.5 percent. The Com-
pany currently does not believe that any payments to the
investors would be required under this provision of the tax
indemnity agreement, even if the average annual wellhead
crude oil price exceeds the $62.94 per barrel threshold at
which the credits are completely phased out. The domestic
wellhead price averaged $36.75 per barrel for the year

ended December 31, 2004 and $38.10 per barrel for the
month of December 2004.

The Company also indemnifies the third-party investors
in the event the Internal Revenue Service disallows the
tax deductions and benefits allocated to the third parties
or if there is a change in the tax laws that reduces the
amount of nonconventional fuel tax credits which would
be available to them. These tax indemnifications are in
effect until the applicable tax returns are no longer sub-
ject to Internal Revenue Service review. In certain of
these cases, if performance under the indemnification is
required, the Company also has the option to purchase
the third-party investors’ interests. Although the Com-
pany believes it is remote that it will be required to make
any payments under these indemnifications, at December
31, 2004, the maximum potential payment under these
tax indemnifications and the options to purchase the
third-party investors’ interests, if exercised, would have
been approximately $635 million. If this were to occur,
the minority interest balance would be reduced by
approximately $250 million.

An agreement at the Indiana Harbor cokemaking oper-
ation requires the Company to supply the hot exhaust gas
produced at the facility to a contiguous cogeneration
plant operated by an independent power producer for use
in the generation of electricity. In exchange, the in-
dependent power producer is obligated to reduce the sul-
fur and particulate content of that hot exhaust gas to
acceptable emission levels. Under the provisions of a per-
formance guarantee, Sunoco would be required to make
cash payments to the independent power producer until
2013 in the event that the Company failed to supply
sufficient hot exhaust gas pursuant to the supply agree-
ment. Although the Company believes that it is remote
that it would be required to make any payment under this
performance guarantee, the maximum potential payment,
if required, would be approximately $150 million.

The following table sets forth the minority interest balan-
ces and the changes in these balances attributable to the
third-party investors’ interests in cokemaking operations:

(Millions of Doliars) 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of year $328 $379 $223
Nonconventional fuel credit and

other tax benefits* (52) (58) (77)
Preferential return™ 47 55 42
Additiona! cash investments by

third-party investors — —_ 215
Cash distributions to third-party

investors (36) (48) (24)
Balance at end of year $287 $328 $379

*The nonconventional fuel credit and other tax benefits and the preferential return,
which comprise the noncash reduction in the minority interest in cokemaking
operations, are included in other income, net, in the consolidated statements of
operations (Note 3).
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Logistics Operations

On February 8, 2002, the Company contributed a sub-
stantial portion of its Logistics business to a master lim-
ited partnership, Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P., in
exchange for a 73.2 percent limited partnership interest,
a 2 percent general partnership interest, incentive dis-
tribution rights and a special distribution, representing
the net proceeds from the Partnership’s issuance of $250
million of 74 percenit senior notes due 2012 (Note 11).
The Partnership concurrently issued 5.75 million limited
partnership units, representing a 24.8 percent interest in
the Partnership, in an initial public offering at a price of
$20.25 per unit. No gain or loss was recognized on these
transactions.

Concurrent with the offering, Sunoco entered into various
agreements with the Partnership which require Sunoco to
pay for minimum storage and throughput usage of certain
Partnership assets. These agreements also establish fees for
administrative services provided by Sunoco to the
Partnership and provide indemnifications by Sunoco for
certain environmental, toxic tort and other liabilities.

On April 7, 2004, the Partnership issued 3.4 million lim-
ited partnership units under its shelf registration state-
ment at a price of $39.75 per unit. Proceeds from the
offering, net of underwriting discounts and offering ex-
penses, totaled approximately $129 million. Coincident
with the offering, the Partnership redeemed 2.2 million
limited partnership units owned by Sunoco for $83 mil-
lion. With the completion of the offering and related
redemption of Sunoco’s limited partnership units, Sunoco
now has a 62.6 percent interest in the Partnership,
including its 2 percent general partnership interest. The
accounts of the Partnership continue to be included in
Sunoco’s consolidated financial statements. No gain or
loss was recognized on these transactions.

The following table sets forth the minority interest balance
and the changes to this balance attributable to the third-
party investors’ interésts in Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P.:

(Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of year $104 $100 $—
Net proceeds from public offerings 129 — 96
Minority interest share ofincome™ 19 15 i
Cash distributions to third-party

investors™* (20) {(11) (7
Balance at end of year $232 $104 $100

* Included in selling, general jand administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations.

** The Partnership increased its quarterly cash distribution per unit from $.45 to
$.4875 for the fourth quarter of 2002 and then to $.50 for the second quarter of
2003, $.5125 for the third quarter of 2003, $.55 for the fourth quarter of 2003, $.57
for the first quarter of 2004,.$.5875 for the second quarter of 2004, $.6125 for the
third quarter of 2004 and $.625 for the fourth quarter of 2004.

14. Shareholders’ Equity

Each share of Company common stock is entitled to one
full vote. The $9 million of outstanding 6 ¥4 percent sub-
ordinated debentures are convertible into shares of
Sunoco common stock at any time prior to maturity at a
conversion price of $40.81 per share and are redeemable
at the option of the Company. At December 31, 2004,
there were 216,785 shares of common stock reserved for
this potential conversion (Note 11).

The Company increased the quarterly dividend paid on
common stock from $.25 per share ($1.00 per year) to
$.275 per share ($1.10 per year) for the fourth quarter of
2003 and then to $.30 per share ($1.20 per year) for the
third quarter of 2004 and to $.40 per share ($1.60 per
year) for the second quarter of 2005.

In 2004 and 2003, the Company repurchased 8.0 and 2.9
million shares, respectively, of its common stock for $568
and $136 million, respectively. The Company did not
repurchase any of its common stock during 2002. In Sep-
tember 2004, the Company announced that its Board
approved an increase of $500 million to the share re-
purchase authorization. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had a remaining authorization from its Board
to purchase up to $227 million of Company common
stock in the open market from time to time depending on
prevailing market conditions and available cash. In
March 2005, an additional $500 million authorization

was approved.

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation authorize the
issuance of up to 15 million shares of preference stock
without par value, subject to approval by the Board. The
Board also has authority to fix the number, designation,
rights, preferences and limitations of these shares, subject
to applicable laws and the provisions of the Articles of
Incorporation. At December 31, 2004, no such shares had
been issued.

On February 1, 1996, the Company adopted a share-
holder rights plan and designated 1,743,019 shares of its
preference stock as Series B participating cumulative
preference stock. Pursuant to the plan, the Company de-
clared a dividend of one stock purchase right (“Right”)
for each share of common stock outstanding on February
12, 1996. A Right will be granted for each share of com-
mon stock issued after such date and prior to the expira-
tion date of the rights plan. The Rights are attached to
the common stock until they become exercisable. Gen-
erally, the Rights become exercisable a specified period
after a party acquires 15 percent or more of the aggregate
outstanding common stock or announces a tender offer
for 15 percent or more of the common stock. Each Right
initially entitles a holder to purchase one one-hundredth
of a share of the Series B participating cumulative prefer-




ence stock for $100. After a party has acquired 15 percent
or more of the common stock, each Right will entitle a
holder to pay $100 for the number of shares of Company
common stock (or in certain situations, common stock of
the acquiring party) having a then current market value
of $200. Alternatively, the Company has the option to
exchange one share of Company common stock for each
Right at any time after a party has acquired at least 15
percent but less than 50 percent of the common stock.
The Company may redeem each Right for $.01 per Right
at any time until a party has acquired 15 percent or more
of the common stock. In general, none of the benefits of
the Rights will be available to a holder of 15 percent or
more of the common stock. The Rights will expire on
February 12, 2006, unless earlier exchanged or redeemed.

The following table sets forth the components (net of re-
lated income taxes) of the accumulated other compre-
hensive loss balances in shareholders’ equity:

December 31
{Millions of Dollars) 2004 2003
Minimum pension liability adjustment $(166)  3$(190)
Hedging activities 2 3
$(164)  3(187)

15. Management Incentive Plans

Sunoco's principal management incentive plans are the
Executive Incentive Plan (“EIP”) and the Long-Term Per-
formance Enhancement Plan II (“LTPEP I1I"). The EIP
provides for the payment of annual cash incentive awards
while the LTPEP Il provides for the award of stock op-
tions, common stock units and relared rights to directors,
officers and other key employees of Sunoco. The options
granted undet LTPEP 11 have a 10-year term, are not ex-
ercisable until two years after the date of grant and permit
optionees to purchase Company common stock at its fair
market value on the date of grant. LTPEP II authorizes the
use of four million shares of common stock for awards, No
awards may be granted under LTPEP 11 after December 31,
2008, unless the Board extends this date to a date no later
than December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes information with respect
to common stock option awards under Sunoco’s
management incentive plans as well as the Employee
Option Plan:

Management incentive Plans Employee Option Plan*

Weighted-
Shares Average Shares QOption
Under Option Price Under Price
Option Per Share Option Per Share
Outstanding, December 31, 2001 4,497,694 $31.02 378,899 $28.00
Granted 733,360 $30.27 —
Exercised (604,264) $27.34 (213,470) $28.00
Canceled (95,480) $35.60 (6,225) $28.00
Outstanding, December 31, 2002 4,531,310 $31.29 159,204 $28.00
Granted 504,800 $48.80 —
Exercised (1,803,310 $30.31 (93,695) $28.00
Canceled (32,760) $37.95 (41,619) $28.00
Outstanding, December 31, 2003 3,200,040 $34.53 23,890 $28.00
Granted 410,600 $82.56 —
Exercised (2,227,096) $32.01 (23,890) $28.00
Canceled — —
Outstanding, December 31, 2004 1,383,544 $52.84 —
Exercisable, December 31
2002 3111490 $30.13 153,204 $28.00
2003 1,964,380 $32.46 23,890 $28.00
2004 468,144 $31.11 —
Available for Grant, December 31
2002 2,526,780 —
2003 2,385,580 —
2004 1,940,760 —

*Options were granted to employees (other than sxecutives) during 1993 and 1994,
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The following table provides additional information concerning all options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average - Shares Average
Shares Under Contractual Exercise Under Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Option Life {Years) Price Option Price
$25.25—$30.15 346,100 7 $29.22 346,100  $29.22
$32.86—%$39.88 132,044 6 $36.61 122,044  $36.50
$49.02 494,800 9 $49.02 —_
$82.56 410,600 10 $82.56 —_
$25.25—$82.56 1,383,544 9 $52.84 468,144  $31.11

Common stock unit awards mature upon completion of a
restriction period or upon attainment of predetermined
performance targets. At December 31, 2002, all out-
standing common stock units were payable in Company
common stock. In December 2003, the Company
changed the method of payment for certain outstanding
common stock unit awards to cash. As a result, the Com-
pany recorded a $12 million charge to the capital in ex-
cess of par value component of shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004, 416,735 of
the outstanding common stock unit awards were payable
in cash and 83,640 were payable in Company common
stock. The following table summarizes information with
respect to all common stock unit awards under Sunoco’s
management incentive plans:

2004 2003 2002
Outstanding at beginning of year 495,434 462,212 519,230
Granted* 122,460 144,565 151,650
Performance factor adjustment** 52,593 33,931 (53,372
Matured™** (170,112) (143,674) (147,061)
Canceled —  (1600) (8,295)

Qutstanding at end of year 500,375 495434 462212

* The weighted-average price for common stock unit awards on the date of grant was
$82.18, $48.40 and $30.14 for awards granted in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

** Consists of adjustments to performance-based awards to reflect actual perfarmance.
The adjustments are required since the original grants of these awards were at 100
percent of the targeted amotnts.

*** Includes 127,628 common stock unit awards in 2004 that were paid in cash.

Sunoco follows the fair value method of accounting for
employee stock compensation plans. Stock-based
compensation expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 de-
termined utilizing this method amounted to $31, $13 and
$11 million, respectively, which consisted of $6, $6 and
$6 million, respectively, related to stock option awards
and $25, $7 and $5 million, respectively, related to com-
mon stock unit awards. In addition, equity-based
compensation expense attributable to Sunoco Logistics
Partners L.P. for 2004, 2003 and 2002 amounted to $4,
$3 and $1 million, respectively.

The stock-based compensation expense for stock options

reflects the estimated fair values of $21.91, $13.07 and

$7.08 per option granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These values are calculated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model based on the following
weighted-average assumptions:

204 2003 2002
Expected life (years) 5 6 6
Risk-free interest rate 3.8% 3.7% 3.7%
Dividend yield 1.5% 2.2% 3.3%
Expected volatility 21.8% 28.8% 29.3%

16. Financial instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been
determined based on the Company’s assessment of avail-
able market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. However, these estimates may not
necessarily be indicative of the amounts that the Com-
pany could realize in a current market exchange.

Sunoco’s current assets {other than inventories and de-
ferred income taxes) and current liabilities are financial
instruments. The estimated fair value of these financial
instruments approximates their carrying amounts. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the estimated fair value of
Sunoco’s long-term debt was $1,495 and $1,684 million,
respectively, compared to carrying amounts of $1,379 and
$1,498 million, respectively. Long-term debt that is pub-
licly traded was valued based on quoted market prices
while the fair value of other debt issues was estimated by
management based upon current interest rates available
to Sunoco at the respective balance sheet dates for similar
issues.

The Company guarantees the debt of affiliated companies
and others. Due to the complexity of these guarantees
and the absence of any market for these financial instru-
ments, the Company does not believe it is practicable to
estimate their fair value. The accounting recognition
provisions of FASB [nterpretation No. 45 do not apply to
these guarantees as they were entered into prior to Jan-
uary 1, 2003, the date prospective application of the
provisions is required (Note 1).

Sunoco uses swaps, options, futures, forwards and other
derivative instruments for hedging purposes. Sunoco is at
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risk for possible changes in the market value for these de-

" rivative instruments. However, it is anticipated that such

risk would be mitigated by price changes in the under-
lying hedged items. In addition, Sunoco is exposed to
credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counter-
parties. Management believes this risk is negligible as its
counterparties are either regulated by exchanges or are
major international financial institutions or corporations
with investment-grade credit ratings. Market and credit
risks associated with all of Sunoco’s derivative contracts

-are reviewed regularly by management.

Derivative instruments are used from time to time to
achieve ratable pricing of crude oil purchases, to convert
certain refined product sales to fixed or floating prices, to
lock in what Sunoco considers to be acceptable margins
for various refined products and to lock in a portion of
the Company’s electricity and natural gas costs. In addi-
tion, Sunoco uses derivative contracts from time to time
to reduce foreign exchange risk relating to certain export
sales denominated in foreign currencies.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had recorded assets
totaling $6 million for hedging gains, which represented
their fair value as determined using various indices and
dealer quotes. The amount of hedge ineffectiveness on
derivative contracts during the 2002-2004 period was not
material. Open contracts as of December 31, 2004 vary in
duration but do not extend beyond 2005.

17. Business Segment Information

Sunoco is principally a petroleum refiner and marketer
and chemicals manufacturer with interests in logistics and
cokemaking. Sunoco’s operations are organized into five
business segments.

The Refining and Supply segment manufactures petro-
leum products and commodity petrochemicals at Suno-
co’s Marcus Hook, Philadelphia, Eagle Point and Toledo
refineries and petroleum and lubricant products at Suno-
co’s Tulsa refinery and sells these products to other
Sunoco businesses and to wholesale and industrial
customers. Refinery operations are comprised of North-
east Refining (the Marcus Hook, Philadelphia and Eagle
Point refineries) and MidContinent Refining (the Toledo
and Tulsa refineries).

The Retail Marketing segment sells gasoline and middle
distillates at retail and operates convenience stores in 24
states primarily on the East Coast and in the Midwest re-
gion of the Unired States.

The Chemicals segment manufactures phenol and related
products at chemical plants in Philadelphia, PA and
Haverhill, OH; polypropylene at facilities in LaPorte, TX,
Neal, WV and Bayport, TX; and cumene at the Phila-

delphia and Eagle Point refineries. In addition, propylene
and polypropylene are produced at the Marcus Hook, PA
Epsilon joint venture facility. This segment also distrib-
utes and markets these products. In September 2004,
Sunoco sold its one-third interest in the Mont Belvieu,
TX Belvieu Environmental Fuels MTBE production fa-
cility to Enterprise Products Operating L.P. In January
2004, a facility in Pasadena, TX, which produces plasti-
cizers, was sold to BASF, while a facility in Neville Island,
PA, which produces plasticizers, now does so exclusively
for BASF under a three-year tolling agreement (Note 2).

The Logistics segment operates refined product and crude
oil pipelines and terminals and conducts crude oil acquis-
ition and marketing activities primarily in the Northeast,
Midwest and South Central regions of the United States.
In addition, the Logistics segment has ownership interests
in several refined product and crude oil pipeline joint
ventures. Logistics operations are conducted primarily
through Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. (Note 13).

The Coke segment makes high-quality, blast-furnace
coke at Sunoco’s Indiana Harbor facility in East Chicago,
IN and Jewell facility in Vansant, VA, and produces
metallurgical coal from mines in Virginia primarily for use
at the Jewell cokemaking facility. Substantially all of the
coke sales are made under long-term contracts with two
steel companies, which are in the process of merging.
Additional cokemaking facilities are currently under con-
struction in Haverhill, OH and Vitéria, Brazil, which are
expected to be operational in 2005 and 2006, re-
spectively. Sunoco will wholly own and operate the fa-
cility in Haverhill and will have an initial 1 percent
ownership interest in the Vitéria facility with an option
to purchase, at net book value, an additional 19 percent
joint-venture interest. Sunoco will be the operator of the
Vitéria facility.

Income tax amounts give effect to the tax credits earned
by each segment. Overhead expenses that can be identi-
fied with a segment have been included as deductions in
determining pretax and after-tax segment income. The
remainder are included in Corporate and Other. Also in-
cluded in Corporate and Other are net financing ex-
penses and other, which consist principally of interest,
the preferential return of third-party investors in the
Company's cokemaking operations (Note 13) and debt
and other financing expenses less interest income and
interest capitalized, and significant unusual and in-
frequently occurring items not allocated to a segment for
purposes of reporting to the chief operating decision
maker. Intersegment revenues are accounted for based on
the prices negotiated by the segments which approximate
market. Identifiable assets are those assets that are utilized
within a specific segment.
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Segment Information

Refining and Retail Corporate

(Millions of Dollars) Supply Marketing Chemicals Logistics Coke and Other Consolidated
2004
Sales and other operating|revenue

{including consumer excise taxes):

Unaffiliated customers $11,732 $9,567 $2,197 $1,700  $272 $ — $25,468

Intersegment ‘ $ 7,125 $ — $ — $1,750 $— $ — $ —
Pretax segment income (10sS) $ 908 $ 1M $ 153 $ 4 $ 58 $(279) $ 935
Income tax (expense) bengfit (367) {43) (59) (13) (18) 110 (390)
After-tax segment income. (0ss) $ 54 $ 68 $ U $ 3 $40 $(169)* $ 605
Equity income ‘ $§ 5 $ — $ 2 §$ 19 §$— $ — $ 2
Depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 188 $ 106 $ 70 $ 3 $13 $ — $ 409
Capital expenditures $ 463 §$ 103 § 56 $§ T75** $13H $ — $ 832
Investments in and advances to affiliated

companies ‘ $ M $ — § — $ $— $ — $ 9
Identifiable assets $ 3,125 $1,336 $1,582 $1,254 $374 $ 485t $ 8,079t

* Consists of $67 million of after~tax corporate expenses, $78 million of after-tax net financing expenses and other, an $18 million after-tax gain on an income tax settlement, an
$8 million after-tax loss on the divestment of the Chemicals segment's one-third interest in BEF and a $34 million after-tax loss from the early extinguishment of debt in
connection with a debt restructuring (Notes 2, 3, 4 and 11).

** Excludes $250 million acquisition from EI Paso Corporation of the Eagle Point refinery and related chemical and logistics assets, which includes inventory. The $250 million
purchase price is comprised of $190, $40 and $20 million attributable to Refining and Supply, Chemicals and Logistics, respectively (Note 2).

*** Excludes $181 million acquisition from ConocoPhillips of 340 Mobil® retail outiets located primarily in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia and Washington, D.C., which includes
inventory (Note 2).

t Consists of Sunoco's $110 million consolidated deferred income tax asset, $11 million of prepaid retirement costs and $364 million attributable to corporate activities.
11 After elimination of intersegment receivables.

Refining and Retail Corporate

(Miltions of Dollars) ) Supply Marketing Chemicals™ Logistics Coke and Other Consolidated
2003
Sales and other operating revenue

(including consumer excise taxes): _

Unaffiliated customers; $ 7174 $7,539 $1,730 $1.275 $251 $ — $17,969

Intersegment ‘ $ 4852 $ — $ — $1383  $— $ — $ —
Pretax segment income (loss) $ 416 $ 145 $ 84 $ 34 $ 66 - $(250) $ 495
Income tax (expense) benefit (155) (54) (31) (8) (23) 88 (183)
After-tax segment income (10ss) $ 261 $ 91 $ 53 $ 26 $ 43 $(162  § 312
Equity income (loss) $ 2 $ — $ (6) § 20 $— $ 29 $§ ()
Depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 165 $ 99 $ 65 $ 27 $ 13 $ — $ 369
Capital expenditures $ 245 $ 107t $ A § 3§ 5 $ — $ 427
Investments in and advarices to affiliated

companies ‘ $ 12 $ — $ 25 $ 85 $— $ — $ 122
Identifiable assets ‘ $ 2,344 $1,274 $1,586 $1.121 $268 $ 485ttt $ 7,053

* Restated to reflect the consolidation of the Epsilon joint veniure, effective January 1, 2003, in connection with the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46 in the first quarter of
2004 (Note 1).

** Consists of $40 million of after-tax corporate expenses, $33 million of after-tax net financing expenses and other, a $9 million after-tax gain associated with the Retail Marketing
Midwest Marketing Divestment program and a $32 million after-tax provision for asset write-downs and other matters (Notes 2 and 3).

*** Represents Sunoco's share of a provision recorded by the Chemicals segment’s one-third-owned BEF joint venture to write down its MTBE production facility to its estimated fair
value (Notes 2 and 3}.

t Excludes $162 million purchase from a subsidiary of Marathon Ashiand Petroleum LLC of 193 Speedway® retail gasoline sites located primarily in Florida and South Carotina,
which includes inventory (Note 2).

1 Excludes $198 million associated with the formation of a propylene partnership with Equistar Chemicals, L.P. and a related supply contract and the acquisition of Equistar’s
Bayport polypropylene facility, which includes inventory (Note 2).

1t Consists of Sunoco's $91 million consolidated deferred income tax asset, $11 million of prepaid retirement costs and $383 million attributable to corporate activities.
# After elimination of intersegment receivables.




Segment Information

- Refini
malgg Retail Corporate

(Millions of Dollars) Supply Marketing Chemicals Logistics Coke and Other Consolidated
2002
Sales and other operating revenue

(including consumer excise taxes):

Unaffiliated customers $5,827 $6,172 $1.362 $ 690 $248 $ — $14,299
Intersegment $3,828 $ — $ — $1,158  § — $ — $ —
Pretax segment income (loss) $ (46) $ 3 $ 43 $ 47 $ 65 $(213) $ (73
Income tax (expense) bengfit 15 (11) (15) {(14) (23) 74 26
After-tax segment income (loss) $ @3N $ 20 § 28 § 33 $ 42 $(139) $ (47
Equity income $ 3 $ — $ 6 $ 14 $— $ — $ 23
Depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 153 $ % $ 4 $ 25 $ 12 $ — $ 329
Capital expenditures $ 179 $ 124 $ 36 $ 41 § 5 $ — $ 385
Investments in and advances to affiliated :

companies $ 16 $ — $ 101 $ 81 $— $ — $ 198
Identifiable assets $2252 $1.135 $1,325 $1.021 $278 $ 452+  § 64411

* Consists of $26 million of after-tax corporate expenses, $81 miflion of after-tax net financing expenses and cther and a $22 million after-tax provision for asset write-downs and

other matters (Note 2).

** Excludes $54 million purchase from Unocal of interests in three Midwestern and Western U.S. products pipeline companies and a $6 million purchase which increased the

Company's ownership interest in the West Texas Gulf Pipeline (Note 2).

*** Consists of Sunoco’s $34 million consolidated deferred income tax asset, $5 million of prepaid retirement costs and $353 million attributable to corporate activities.

t After elimination of intersegment receivables.

The following table sets forth Sunoco’s sales to un-
affiliated customers and other operating revenue by prod-
uct or service:

{Miltions of Dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Gasoline:

Wholesale $3934 $2167 $1.787

Retail 6,169 4,529 3,545
Middle distillates 5,764 3,518 2,736
Residual fuel 948 797 549
Petrochemicals 2,719 1,987 1,599
Lubricants 324 295 263
Other refined products 656 505 510
QOther products and services 763 703 596
Resales of purchased crude oil 1,637 1,218 632
Coke and coal 272 251 248
Consumer excise taxes 2,282 1,999 1,834

$25468 $17,969 $14,299
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Supplemental Financial and Operating Information wwuaes

Refining and Supply and Retail Marketing
Segments Data

Refinery Utilization* 2004 2003 2002
Refinery crude unit capacity at
December 31 ' 890.0** 7300 730.0

Input to crude units 895.7*** 708.1 689.9
Refinery crude unit capacity utilized 97% 97% 95%

* Thousands of barrels daily; except percentages.

** Reflects increases in January 2004 for the acquisition of the 150 thousand barrels-
per-day Eagle Point refinery effective January 13, 2004 and a 10 thousand barrels-
per-day adjustment in MidContinent Refining. In January 2005, crude unit capacity
increased again to 900 thousands of barrels daily due to an additional 10 thousand
barrels-per-day adjustment in MidContinent Refining.

*** Data pertaining to the Eaglé Point refinery are based on the amounts attributable to
the 354-day ownership period (January 13, 2004 — December 31, 2004) divided by
366 days.

Other Data 2004 2003 2002
Throughput per Company owned
or leased outlet™ 132.6 124.4 1217

*Thousands of gallons of gasoline and diesel monthly.

Chemicals Segment Data

Chemical Sales* 2004 2003 2002
Phenol and related products 2,615 2,629 2,831
Polypropylene™™ 2,239 2,248 1,346
Plasticizers*** 28 591 615
Propylengt —_ — 774
Other 187 173 178

5,069 5,641 5,744

* Millions of pounds.
** Includes amounts attributable to the Bayport facility subsequent to its purchase

Products Manufactured® 2004 2003 2002 effective March 31, 2003 and the Epsilon joint venture subseguent to its
- consolidation effective January 1, 2003.
Gasoline 442.0 375.6 3752 ... iy . ‘ .
Middle distillates 300.3 2367 931 2 The pllashc.|zer business vwasv divested in Jf'inua'wl 2004. o
Resical e BO b gy Eeud el bl o i e
Petrochemicals 38.1 27.9 30.5 consolidation, P eree proRy g
Lubricants 13.6 136 1341
Other 82.0 776 73.4 Other Data 2004 2003 2002
Total production 9490 7912 7793 Chemical inventories” 437 480 499
Less: Production used as fuel in *Millions of pounds at December 31.
refinery operations 46.2 371 37.0
Total production available for Logistics Segment Data
sale ‘ 802.8 7541 742.3 o .
Thousands of barrls dally Plpelmg Shipments 2004 2003 2002
Crude oil 13.7 12.9 12.6
Inventories* 2004 2003 2002  Refined products 15.0 15.2 15.5
Crude oit 21.7 16.8 17.0  ~Billions of barre! miles. Consists of 100 percent of the pipeling shipments of pipslines
Refined products™™ ‘ 194 17.0 174 owned and operated by Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P., the master limited partnership

* Mitlions of barrels at Decemnber 31.
" Includes petrochemical inventories produced at Suncco's Marcus Hook,
Philadelphia, Eagle Point and Toledo refineries, excluding cumene, which is
included in the Chemicals segment.

Retail Sales* ‘ 2004 2003 2002
Gasoline 296.3 276.5 262.3
Middle distillates 42.7 40.3 36.4

339.0 316.8 298.7

*Thousands of barrels daily.

Retail Gasoline Outlets 2004 2003 2002
Direct outlets:
Company owned or leased 1,396 1,442 1,384
Dealer owned ‘ 546 594 682
Total direct outlets 1,942 2,036 2,066
Distributor outlets 2,862 2,492 2,315

4,804 4,528 4,381

that is 62.6 percent owned by Sunoco.

Terminal Throughputs* 2004 2003 2002
Refined product terminals 340 283 273
Nederland, TX marine terminal 488 442 437
Other terminals 636 479 473

1,464 1,204 1,183

*Thousands of barrels daily.

Other Data 2004 2003 2002
Crude oil inventory™ 2.0 2.0 19
*Millions of barrels at December 31.
Coke Segment Daia*

2004 2003 2002
Coke production 1,965 2,024 2,001
Coke sales 1,953 2,024 2,158

*Thousands of tons.




Quarterly Financial and Stock Market Information -

{Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts and Common Stock Prices)

204 2003
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Sales and other operating revenue
(including consumer excise taxes) $5,232 $6,265 $6,575 $7,396 $4,589 $4,189 $4,630 $4,561
Gross profit* $362 $631 $431 $562 $331 $334 $432 $300
Net income $89 $234 $104**  $178 $86 $81 $109** $367
Net income per share of common
stock:
Basic $1.18 $3.10 $1.40 $2.50 $1.12 $1.05 $1.41 $.47
Diluted $1.17 $3.07 $1.39 $2.48 $1.12 $1.04 $1.40 $.47
Cash dividends per share of common
stock $.275 $.275 $.30 $.30 $.25 $.25 $.25 $.275
Common stock pricett—high $64.48 $65.70 $74.37 $84.51 $38.04 $39.00 $41.42 $52.60
—low $50.51 $58.26 $58.76 $70.52 $29.67 $35.40 $35.93 $40.10
—end of period $62.38 $63.62 $73.98 $81.71 $36.57 $37.74 $40.22 $51.15

* Gross profit equals sales and other operating revenue less cost of products sold and operating expenses; depreciation, depletion and amortization; and consumer excise,
payroll and other applicable taxes.

** Includes an $18 million after-tax gain on an income tax seftiement, an $8 million after-tax loss on divestment of the Company's ane-third interest in BEF and a $34 million
after-tax loss from the early extinguishment of debt in connection with a debt restructuring.

*** Includes a $15 million after-tax provision for write-down of the BEF MTBE production facifity to its estimated fair value.

tIncludes a $9 million after-tax gain associated with a retail marketing divestment program in the Midwest and a $17 million after-tax provision primarily for write-down of the
assets of the plasticizer business to their estimated fair values less costs to sell.

1t The Company’s common stock is principally traded on the New Yark Stock Exchange, inc. under the symbol “SUN.” The Company had approximately 23,500 holders of record
of common stock as of January 31, 2005.
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Directors and Officers

Directors

Robert J. Darnall

Former Chairman and CEQ
Prime Advantage Corp.,
Retired President and CEQ
Ispat North America, Inc.,
Retired Chairman,
President and CEO

Inland Steel Industries, Inc.

John G. Drosdick
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and President
Sunoco, Inc. ‘and Chairman
of the Board of Directors
Sunoco Partners LLC

Ursula O. Fairbairn
Executive Vice President
American Express Co.

Thomas P. Gerrity
Professor of Management
and Former Dean

The WhartoniSchool
University ofiPennsylvania

Rosemarie B. Greco
Director, Office of Health Care
Reform, Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania:

James G. Kaiser
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
Avenir Partnérs, Inc.;
Retired President and
Chief Executive Officer
Quanterra Incorporated

Robert D. Kennedy
Retired Chairman and CEQ
Union Carbide Corporation

Richard H. Lenny
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Hershey Foods Corporation

Norman S. Matthews

Retail Consultant

and Investor;

Former President

Federated Department Stores

R. Anderson Pew

Retired Chief

Executive Officer

Radnor Corporation;
Retired President

Helios Capital Corporation

G. Jackson Ratcliffe
Retired Chairman,
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Hubbell Incorporated

John W. Rowe
Chairman, President
and CEQ

Exelon Corporation

John K. Wulff
Non-Executive Chairman
Hercules Incorporated;
Former Member

Financial Accounting
Standards Board;

Retired Chief Financial
Officer ‘

Union Carbide Corporation

Committees of the Board
Audit Committee

Thomas P. Gerrity, Chair
Robert J. Darnall
Rosemarie B. Greco

G. Jackson Ratcliffe
John K. Wulff

Compensation Committee

G. Jackson Ratcliffe, Chair
Ursula 0. Fairbairn

James G. Kaiser

Robert D. Kennedy
Richard H. Lenny

Norman S. Matthews
John W. Rowe

Executive Commitiee

John G. Drosdick, Chair
Ursula Q. Fairbairn
Rosemarie B. Greco
James G. Kaiser

Robert D. Kennedy
Norman S. Matthews

R. Anderson Pew

Governance Committee

Robert D. Kennedy, Chair
Robert J. Darnall
Thomas P. Gerrity
Rosemarie B. Greco
Richard H. Lenny

G. Jackson Ratcliffe

Public Affairs Committee

James G. Kaiser, Chair
Robert J. Darnall
Ursula 0. Fairbairn
Robert D. Kennedy
Richard H. Lenny
Norman S. Matthews
R. Anderson Pew
John W. Rowe

Principal Officers

Terence P. Delaney
Vice President, Investor
Relations and Planning

Michael H. R. Dingus
Senior Vice President,
Sunoco, Inc.
President, Sun Coke
Company

John G. Drosdick
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and President,
Sunoco, Inc.

Chairman of the Board

of Directors,

Sunoco Partners LLC

Bruce G. Fischer
Senior Vice President
Sunoco Chemicals

Thomas W. Hofmann
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Joseph P. Krott
Comptroller

Michael S. Kuritzkes
Senior Vice President and
General Counsel

Joel H. Maness
Senior Vice President
Refining and Supply

Ann C. Mulé

Chief Governance Officer,
Assistant General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary

Paul A. Mulholland
Treasurer

Rolf D. Naku
Senior Vice President
Human Resources and
Public Affairs

Robert W. Qwens
Senior Vice President
Marketing

Ross S. Tippin, Jr.
General Auditor

Charles K. Valutas
Senior Vice President and
Chief Administrative Officer




Of Interest to Sunoco Shareholders

Principal Office

Ten Penn Center

1801 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-1699
215-977-3000

e-mail:
SunocoOnline@Sunocolnc.com
Web Site: www.Sunocolnc.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information about dividend
payments, the Shareholder Access
and Reinvestment Plan (SHARP),
stock transfer requirements, address
changes, account consclidations, ending
duplicate mailing of Sunoco materials,
stock certificates and all other share-
holder account related matters, contact
Sunoco's Transfer Agent:

Sunoco, Inc.

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.0.Box 43069

Shareholder Services

Providence, Rl 02940-3069
800-888-8494

Internet: www.equiserve.com

Hearing Impaired #:TDD:800-952-9245

Health, Environment and Safety

Sunoco's Health, Environment and
Safety Review and CERES Report is
available at our Web Site or by writing
the Company.

@ Printed on recycled paper

Annual Meeting
Thursday, May 5, 2005, 9:30 a.m.

Stewart Auditorium

Moore College of Art & Design
20th Street and the Parkway
Philadeiphia, PA 19103-1179

For further information about the annual
meeting, contact the Corporate
Secretary at the principal office.
Sunoco's Notice of Annual Meeting,
Proxy Statement and Proxy Card are
mailed to shareholders prior to the
annual meeting.

Shareholders who do not want to
receive printed copies of the Annual
Report and Proxy Statement, but
instead want to access these docu-
ments via the Internet, should contact
EquiServe, Sunoco's Transfer Agent.
Shareholders making this selection will
be mailed Sunoco's Notice of Annual
Meeting and a Proxy Card as well as
detailed instructions when the materials
are available.

Shareholder Relations

Shareholders seeking non-financial
information about Sunoco may write to
the Company at its principal office
address, call 215-977-6082 or e-mail
ShareholderRelations@Sunocolnc.com.

Investor Relations

Shareholders and investors seeking
financial information about Sunoco
may write the Company or call
215-877-61086.

Earnings announcements, press
releases and copies of reports filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission are available at our Web
Site or by leaving your full name,
address and phone number on voice
mail at 215-977-6440.

CustomerFirst

For customer service inquiries, write
the Company or call 1-800-SUNOCO1.

Certifications

The Certifications of John G. Drosdick,
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
President, and Thomas W. Hofmann,
Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, made pursuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 regarding
the quality of Sunoco's public disclo-
sures have been filed as exhibits to the
Company's 2004 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. in 2004, Mr. Drosdick pro-
vided to the NYSE and to the
Philadelphia Stock Exchange the annual
certifications required by their respec-
tive rules certifying that he was not
aware of any violations by Sunoco of
their respective Corporate Governance
Listing Standards.






